NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office: G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi— 110075,
Tel: 011-25076536, Website: nhit.co.in, Email: nhiimpl@nbhit.co.in
CIN: U65929DL2020G0I1366835

Date: 27" May, 2023

Corporate Relations Department, The Listing Department,

BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,

Dalal Street, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 001 Mumbai—400 051

Ref: Scrip Code: 543385; Scrip ID/Symbol: NHIT

Sub: Outcome of Board Meeting of National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited

Dear Sir/ Ma’am,

In furtherance to the intimation dated 18" May, 2024 and pursuant to applicable provisions of SEBI
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 (“InvIT Regulations”), as amended from time to
time, read with Regulation 51 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) and circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, we hereby inform
you that the meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of National Highways Infra Investment
Managers Private Limited acting in the capacity of Investment Manager to National Highways Infra
Trust (“NHIT”) was held today i.e. 27" May, 2024, wherein the Board, inter-alia, considered and
approved the following matters:

1)

Considered and approved the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Results
(including Cash Flow Statements for both Standalone and Consolidated) along with the
Auditor’s Report issued by the Statutory Auditors thereon, for the quarter, half and financial
year ended 31° March, 2024.

Further, please note that the financial information of the Investment Manager is not disclosed
as there is no material erosion in the net worth.

We further hereby declare that in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 52(3)(a) of the
SEBI LODR Regulations, the Statutory Auditors i.e. A. R. & Co., Chartered Accountants, New
Delhi, have issued the Audit Reports with Unmodified Opinion on the Annual Audited Financial
Information/Results of the NHIT for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024.

Considered and approved the quantum of distributions to be paid to the unitholders of Rs.
0.705/- per unit for the quarter ended 31 March, 2024. The distribution will be paid as Rs
0.687/- per unit as Interest pass through (subject to applicable withholding taxes, if any) and
Rs 0.018/- per unit as other income on surplus funds at Trust level

The said distributions shall be paid within 15 days from the date of declaration.

Further, the Record Date is declared as 29" May, 2024 to ascertain the eligibility of Unit
holders entitled to receive the aforesaid distributions.

Took note of the Valuation Report prepared by independent valuer, RBSA Valuation Advisors
LLP (“RBSA”) for the period ended 31°* March, 2024 of the existing assets of the NHIT which
provides the valuation as at Rs. 27,714.2/- Crores (Equity valuation of Rs. 4598.06/- Crores).

Corporate Office (Delhi): Corporate Office (Mumbai):
324, 3 Floor, D-21, Corporate Park, 609, Plot No. C-63, G-Block, A Wing,
Sector 21, Dwarka, New Delhi-110077 6th Floor, INS Tower, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra East, Mumbai-400051



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi— 110075,
Tel: 011-25076536, Website: nhit.co.in, Email: nhiimpl@nbhit.co.in
CIN: U65929DL2020G0I366835

4) Pursuant to Regulation 10(21) of SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as
amended from time to time read with circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, the Net
Asset Value (“NAV”) of NHIT as of 31 March, 2024, as computed by the management based
on the Valuation Report issued by Valuer is Rs 125.46/- per unit pre-distribution and Rs.
124.75/- per unit post distribution.

5) Re-constitution of the Committees of the Board of Directors and dissolution of Investment
and Finance Committee and consequent amendment in the Corporate Governance

Framework.

6) Approved the appointment of M/s. Garg Vaibhav & Associates as the Secretarial Auditor of
NHIT and NHIIMPL for the financial year 2024-25.

7) Approved the corporate Identity (Logo) of National Highways Infra Trust (“NHIT” or “Trust”)
The Board Meeting commenced at 04:00 p.m. and concluded at 07:00 p.m.
You are requested to take the same on your record.
Sincerely,
For National Highways Infra Trust

By Order of the Board
National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited

Digitally signed by
G U NJAN GUNJAN SINGH
Date: 2024.05.27
SI N G H 19:04:54 +05'30'
Gunjan Singh
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Corporate Office (Delhi): Corporate Office (Mumbai):
324, 3 Floor, D-21, Corporate Park, 609, Plot No. C-63, G-Block, A Wing,
Sector 21, Dwarka, New Delhi-110077 6th Floor, INS Tower, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra East, Mumbai-400051
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Ghaziabad-201001 Delhi-NCR National
Capital region Of Delhi

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE QUARTER, HALF YEAR AND
YEAR TO DATE STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE TRUST
PURSUANT TO REGULATION 23 OF THE SEBI (INFRASTRUCTURE
INVESTMENT TRUSTS) REGULATIONS, 2014, AS AMENDED

To,

The Board of Directors

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited
(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust)

G-5 & 6, Sector-10,

Dwarka, Delhi - 110075

Report on the audit of the Standzlone Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Statement of standalone financial results
of National Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the Trust or
NHIT”), consisting ef the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, explanatory notes thereto and. the additional
disclosures in accordance with Chapter 4 of the Securities Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS- -PoD-2/P/CIR/2023 /115 dated fuly
06, 2023 for the quarter, half year and the yedr erided March 31, 2024 (the
standalone statement of Profit & Loss including other comprehensive
income, other compreliensive incoms, explanatory notes and additional
disclosures together referred to as “the Statement”), attached herewith,
being submitted by the National Highways Infra Investment Managers
Private Limited (“Investment Manager”) pursuant to the requirements of
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular.

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according .




explanatiens given to us, the Statemient:

a. Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of
SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as
amended from time to time, read with Securities Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) Circular No. SBI/HQ/DDHS-PoD- -2/P/CIR/2023/115
dated July 06, 2023, and any other relevant circulars in this regard;
and

b. Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards, and other accounting principles generatly accepted in
India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations; of
the net profit and other comprehensive income and ether financial
information of the Trust for the quarter, half year and the year ended
March 31, 2024.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ‘Code of
Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to gur audit of the standzlone
financial results under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and we
havé fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance these
requirenients and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone financial results.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual
financial statements. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives
a true and fair view of tlie net profit and other comprehansive income and
other financial itiformation of the Trust in accordance with the redquiremeénts
of the Secwurities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amepnded from time to tirne (“SEBI InvIT
Regutations”); Indian Accounting: Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies. (Indian Accountingﬁtandards_’] Rules, 2015 (a5 amende




other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with SEB1 InvIT Regulations. This responsibility includes the
design, implementdtion and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statemerit that
give a true and falr view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Trust to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of
Investment Manager either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Trust,

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDAILONE
FINANCIAL RESULTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repart that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Migstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the Statement,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit eviderice that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the.
override of internal control. .




e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing dh opihion on
the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal controls,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by Board of Directors of Investment Manager-

e Conclude on tlhe appropriateness of the Board of Directors of
Investment Manager use of the going caoncern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or
conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the Statement
represent the underlying transsdctions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,

OTHER MATTERS

1. The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the half year
ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between the am




figures in respect of full financial year ended March 31, 2024 and -the

published unaudited year-te-date figures up to September 30, 2023, being

the date of the end of the first half of the current financial year, which
were subject to limited review as required under Regulation 23 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time te time read with
Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023 /115 dated July 06, 2023

- The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the quarter
ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between the audited
figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the
unaudited year-to-date figures up to 31st December 2023, being the date
of the end of the first half of the current financial year, which were subject
to limited review as required under Regulation 23 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended frem time to time read with SEBl Circular No.
SBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023.

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For A.R. & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.002744C

ﬁx« Ol New Dot}
e /’;
CA Mohd Azam An i
Pariner =
Membership No: 511623

UDIN: 2ug 4\ 623 Rie €55 G\ 22Y

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05-2024



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InviT/20-21/0014
Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Al amouns in % lakh unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(Audited) {Audited)
ASSETS
1) Non - Current Asscts
(2) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3.80.163.52 1,39.553.52
(ii) Loans 22,40,043.05 8.90.606.66
{i1i) Other Financial Assets 13, 174.48 9.670.84
(b Other Non-Current Assets 9543 -
Total Nox Current Asseis 26,30,476.48 10,39,831.02
2) Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 3071841 14.080.38
(i1) Other Financial Assets 87,534.15 46,6916
{b) Current Tax Assets {Net) 7.04
(c} Other Current Assels 693.14 1,119.47
Total Current Assets 1,18,952.74 61,892.01
TOTAL ASSETS 27498292 11,01,733.03
EQUITY AND 1LIABILITIES
EQUITY
1) Unit Capital 14.67,093.46 7.41,604.32
2} Initial Settlement Amount 0.0 610
3) Other Equity 1.02,760.63 60.432.64
Total Equity 15,69,854,19 3,02,037.06
LIABILITIES
1) Non-Current Liabilitics
(2) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 11,63,394.94 2,92,158.33
Tofal Non Current Liabilities 11,63,394.94 2,9%.158.33
2} Current Liabilities
(a} Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 10.054.00 2,000.00
{ii) Trade Payables
(2) Total Outstanding, dues of micro and small enterprises 36.17 388
(b} Total outstanding, dues of creditors other than miero and
small enterprises 713.58 34269
(fii) Other Financial Linbilities 5,162.05 5,129.59
(b) Current Tax Liabilitics (Nel) - 8.98
(2) Other Current Liabilities 194,29 42,50
Toipl Current Liabilities 16,180.69. 7.527.64
Tatal Lizbilities 11,79.575.03 2,99,685.97
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 27,49.429.22 11,01,723.03
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI] Registration Number ;- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for thie Year ended March 31, 2024

AN anranity ard i 3 lekls mrlars otherwise sfaieds

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024] 32 March 2023
A ndlited) {lindited)
.|<ash Mlows from operating activities
Net Profit{Loss) RBetore Tax 37,514.31 F1,706.92
Adjustmenis:
Finance Cost {het) 23,015.90 16,590.17
Interest Income on Bank FOR (786.74) (352.28)
Interest Income on Long Term Loan given fo SPV (1,23,103.51) (94,698.30
Profit on redemption of Mutwal Punds {84099} {422.20)
Operating cash flows before Working Capital Changes (2,201.03} (1,1 75.71)
Movements in Working Capital
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assels (0.90) 115.42)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets (292.14) {200.62)
Decrease / {Incréase) in Other Current Assets 579.16 (834.96)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables (312,33) 393.i3
Incrzase f (Decrease) in Other Finaneial Liabilitics - (0.00}
Incréase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 151,79 (57300
Increase / (Decrease) in Carrent Tax Liabilities - -
Cash aséd in operafing activities (2,07549) (1,950.87}
Incorme Tax paid (711.06) (626.67}
Net Casli Flows used in apernting ncfivities -A (2,786.51) {2,607.54)
-|Cash flows frem investing activities
Long Term Loans given (1349436400  (2.84,966.66)
Purchase of Non Cucrent Investments {2,40,610.00) -
Investment in FDR (447.003 (6.299.18)
Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds 840.99 422,30
Inferest received on Long Term Loan given 32,549.94 58.661.00
Interest Received from Bank on FRR 734.73 168.40
Net Cash Flows used in investing activities - B (1506,307.74) (2,32,014.24)
Cusk flows [rom financieg activities
Proceeds from [ssue of unit capital 7,27.206.41 1.43,013.67
Expense incurred towards initial public debt offering - (1,689.00)
Expertise incurred icwards institutional unit allotmens {1,471.46) (1,099.13)
Progessing Fee paid (1,482.16) {197.00)
Proceeds ftom: Long Term Borrowings -NCD - 1.50.000.00
Proceeds {fom Long Term Loans from Externaf Lenders 3.84,700.00 -
Distribution paid to unit holders (54.491.29) (34,927.86)
Repaymént of Long Term Borrowings (3.759.79) 11.010.98)
Finance Costs Paid (34.909.51)] {11.180.86)
Net Cash Flows from financing activities -C 15,25,792.27 2,42,908.94
Net [neredse/Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 16,638.03 8.287.05
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 14,080.38 3,793.33
Cash and Cash Equivalents a1t the erd of the year 30, 718:41 14,080.38




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Nuniber :- IN/EnvIT/20-21/00i4
Disciosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No.
CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS _Div3/P/ICIR/2021/1673 dated 29th November, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations)

Statement of Net Distribotable Cish Elows (NDCF)

A0 amomnts in T iakh umless olieonise sraed)

5. Particulars For the year ended 315t Far the year ended 31s1
Na. : Medreh 2024 March 2023
1 |Profit after 113 as per Stutement of profit amd bessfinevine wnd cxpenidituré {Standalone) 96,819.27 7723617
(A)
2 jAdd Dupreciation and gmortization as per sialement of profit il lass accoumt. fncase- of] -
Inipatineny ceversal. same needs o be deducted frony profit and loss.
3 _|{Add/Less: Lossipain on sale ol inkasiructnne issuts -
4 [Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure asscts adjusted for the folowing: -
relited debts sedtled or due fo be seled (rom sate procecds;
directly, attribuwble wransaction casts;
proceeds reinvesied or plunoed 10 be reinvesied s per Regulation !B(7Wa) of the InviT
regulations
3 |Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructurs asseis not distbuted pursngni to an caricr plan 1o ro- -
invest. il such proceeds are not inlended 1o be Invested subscguently, nét of any profit (loss)
recognised in profit and less account
6 |Add/ Less: Any other it of non- cash expense! non eash income (el of actual cash Nows for £82,058.04) (45 002 001
these itoms}, if dewmed necessary by the-Tovestment Monager.
For example, uny decrense/ increase in carrying smonat of an asser or a Kability recagoised in|
profit and loss /inconie and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the linbility at rair value;
Imierest cost as per effective imerest rate method, defered tax lease rends recopnised on o
struight line basig. cte.
7 {Less: Repayment of extemal debt (principal) / redeemable prefererce shares /# debentares, i, {42067 (1.011.98)
(excludmg. refinancing) 7 nct cash set aside w comply with DSRA requirciment under Joan
AGTCETEINE,
8 | Totat Adjnstment {B} {86,264.77) (46.12.95)
9 [Net Surples (C) = (A+BLNDCF) 10,554.5¢ 31.223.19
10 _|Adi: fncome recopmiged (n previows veur snd received in this year 4668813 M.651.13
11 |Léss i+ Inigrest cxpenses recognised in previons year nd paid in this vear {5.129.59} -
12 |itisiibuinble CCash Flow 52.113.35 A1,874.52
13 |Less: Amaunt already digiributed s Unithelders {for the period from April 23 to Jan 2408 for 1284337 3023578
the peried {rom April 22 to Devember 229
14 | Bilance Net Distributable Cush Floys {vr ke vear ended March 31, 2024 9,261,908 1144851




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :~ IN/InvIT/20-21/0014

Disclosures pursnant 10 SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No.
CIRSEBI'HO/DDHS Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29th November, 2021 issmed under the IavIT

b. Investment manager fees

i) The investment Manager's fee as per agreement dated 27st October 2020 will initially be Rs. 1,100 Lakh (Rupees
Eleven Hundred Lakhs} per anrium,

i} The Investment Managemerit Agreement is fevised and the fee with effect from Ist April 2023 has Leen agreed at Rs
1,800 Lakhs (Rupees Eighteen hundred lakhs) for the Financial Year 2023-24.

iii} The management fee set out in paragraph (ii) above shall be subject {0 escalation on an annual basis at the rate of 10%
of the management fee for the previous vear.

iv) Any applicahle taxes, cess or charges, as the case may be. shall be in addition 1o the mangageinent fee and shall be
Ppayable by National Highways Infia Trust (NHIT) to the Trivestment Manager (NHITMPL).

Payment of frequency: Payment of management fee shall be made by National Highways Infra Trust (NHIT) to the
Invesiment Manager (NHIIMPL) in advance on a quarterly basis at the beginning of each quarter of a financial year.

¢. Statement of Garnings per miit CEPU")

Basic EPU amaunts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period/ year attributable to Unit holders by the weighted
average number of units oufstanding during the period/ year. Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the
prefit/(loss) attributable to unit holders by the weighied average number of units outstanding during the period/ year plus
the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive patential units into unit caphal.

(Al amounts in ¥ akh unless otherwise stated}

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended March | ended March 31,

31, 2024 2023
(Audited) { Audited)

Profit for the period / vear (¥ fakhs) 96,819.27 77,236.17

Weighted average number of units-outstanding for computation of basic and diluted 75.36,14.,276 65,60,08,738

arning per unit,

Earning per unit (basic and diluted) (¥} 12.85 11.76

d. Contingent Liabilities

{Contingent Liabifities ] Nil | Nil ]

e. Other funding commitments

Commitment for loan to Subsidiary Company (Project SPY- NHIPPL) 1';21,:?94;{10 1.40.494 00

Commitment for foan to Subsidiary Company (Project SPV- NEPPL) 34.658.61 ~
1,56,252.61 1,40,494.00




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
Additionz! disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Cirenlar No.
CIR/IMD/DFE/127/2016

Statement of Related Partics

A, List of Reelated Parties as per requirement of IND AS 24 —“Related Party Digclosores”

Nuatiomu! Highways Infra
Projéets Private Liimited
("NILIPPLY)

Enterprises where Coneral / signjficani influcnce exists (Subsidiary Company)

NAIT Eastern Projects
Private Limited
('NEPPLY)

(Subsidiary Company)

B. List of additiomal relsted partics as per Repulation 2E)#v) of the SEBL InvI T Regulations

Partics o the Trust

Nattonal Elighways Infra Investment Manapers Private Limited {NHIIMPL} - Invesimient Munager (1) of ihe Trust
D8] Trustecship Services Limiicd (FFSLY - Trostes ol the Trust

National Higlways Autharity of Tndia (N HAY)- Spensor

Natlanal Highways InvIT Project Managers Private Limiled NHIPMPL)- Project Manager

Promaters of the Parties to the Trust specified sibove

Govemanient ol India (acling through Minisity of Raad, Trnspon & Highways (MORTHY) - Promoter of NHIIMPL
ID8E Bank Limited JDABI Bank] < Promoier of FTS),

Goxernmem of Indja {avting lorough Minisiry of Road. Teansport & Highways (MORTIS - Dromoter of NHAI
Natienal Highways Authority of India INRAT- Promoter of NHIPMPL

Directars of the parties to the Trosi sperifiey aboye

Directors of NHLINIPE,

M. Suresh Krishan Gayal

Mr. Shailendm Norain Roy

Mr. Maiiavir Praspd Sharma

Mr. Fradeep Singh Khargla

Mr. NLR. V. V.NLK. Rajendra Kumar

Mr. Suinit Bose

8r, Pushkar Vijay Rulkami (Appoimed as Direetor w.c.f. 18.11.2023)
Mr. Dicbapratitn Hajava (A ppointed as Ditector w.e.f. (8.11.2023)

Mr. Vinay Komar (Appointéd as Nominee Direclor w.e.l 27.03,2624)
Ms. Usha Monari (Appointed as Womsn Independent Director wel 16.04.2000)
M. Bruge Cang {Cased to be dirccior w.e. ['(7.11.2023)

Ms. Kavita Sal {Ceased to be director w.e.f08.11,2023)

Mr. Amil Kumar Ghosl (Ceased to be direttor w.e T 15.] 1.2023)

Directors of I'FS1,

Mr. Pradvep Kumar Jain

Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranadc

Me. Pradecp Kuar Maflwola
Ms. Baljinder Kaur Manda)

Ms. Jayakamar Subramaniapitld

Direetors of NHIFMPL
Mr. Akhkil Khare
Mr. Ashish Kumar-Singh




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBT Registration Number :- INAnvIT/20:21/0014
Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A fg the SEBL Circular No.

CIRAMD/DF/127/2016-

. Trainsactions with Relired Pacties

{Amounts: in € fukh}

cul Yearesided Yearended
Farficulars 3151 Dsech 2024 315t Mareh 2023
{Mcddited§ tAmdited
Admnemm nu ung Fermi Liang i M T1PPL. 18,900.00 2,84.50%.66
Inferest Incame accrued rn Long Tenn Loon wiven lo NEIRPL 1.20;883,93 1, 608,30
Retmbmesement-of Expense paid by NEAT on behalf of KHIPPL LXil 432,68
Nationa] Hi ¥
Investment Niamr Fen 1.800 U0 138057
Advance luvésimem Munager Fee Paid 453 ARG
Expenge itcurred by HHIIMPIL on our bebhalf 15.3% 19,79
National Higlyyavg Awihowity of lubia (NI[A L}
Iszuz of wiits of Trosd o NHAT 109,081 07 21,366.83
Imearest amd other income disiribution 8.641.92 5.389.34
1 Trus
Payment of Truslee Fee LX) 12.73
Clther fees peluled 10 Koand 1 & 2 Assuls 154 3.54
Qther Fecs related tu Reund 3 Assets {"Project Leap™ 17.58 -
DG Limiwd
Secured 1oan given to NEILT 16,0000 -
Inerust Expense incyrred on Loan 2iven ta NHIT 438
Repayment of Principal Anoust .04 -
l.oan Precessing Fees Paid 1o them 4110 -
‘:uh.«mpnun ol St C .|p|t.1I o NEFPL by NHIT 2A0.610.00 -
Lomg Term Loans given to NEPPL 11,301 526.39 -
Imlerssy Incone Acerued on Lung Tem Loan given to NEPPL 22756 .
Short tenn Advwnce wyen 10 NEPPL 050 -
Expense incurrad by NEPPL. on owr hehadl 0.44 -
Expenses incuared by RHET an flieir behall 3627 -
. Cloging Balances with Rebatedf Farfies
(Amoums jn ¥ lakh)
Particulurs Asni March 31, 2024} As at March 31, 2023
_ fndited) Lebieliredy

National Ilig!u_wms Iafrm Projects Peivide Limitel {(MHIPFLY }
lvestmient i cguity shates of NHE#PE, 1,29, 410.00 1,284 H1 00
Cuistonding long term Lowiss piven 16 NHIIPL 4,089,506,66 £.80,606.66
Tiverest receivable dh Long - Terms Loan given o NHIPPL 3502444 46.68843
Amaunt Receivable for Bvpenses incuned o their behail’ DI -
Issue of unins ol’Tmst 13 NHAN 3.27.003.91 117022 83
Ad\.u'lw IM Iexe 493 -
IM Feit Payabie - 189
(O] Trysigeship Services Limiled
Trustee Fee Pasahble 1.73 £33
Cther Bees refated fo Round 3 Assets (Praject Lenp™) 208 -
IDE] Bunb Limileal
Dudstanding Secured Loan Anwouet 4,999,194 -
NUIT Easicriy Pra ]
Tnvestment in equily shares af RERPL 2ABGI0.00 -
Ameum Receivable for Expenses incusmed on thizir belal F 1672 64 B
OuiStamding Advance fecovenible from NEPRL 20050 -
Amound Payable for Expenses inenpred: on uur beliil 44 -
Outstanding Eong term Loans given e NEPPL 13,350,536, 3% -
Inlerest Receivable an lonedorm Loans given 1o NEPPL, 3.917.36 -




SEBI Registration Number :- INIavIT/20-21/0014 _
Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circolars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS: Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673
dated 29 November 2021 issucd asder the InvIT regulations)

Standulone Sratement of Net Miscts atFair Value AW amgumts are dis € Lokh unless olbewise stated)
Asar March 31, 2024 As at March 331, 2023

Farliculars Bouk yalue Fuir valwe® Hoak value Fair ridue?

A, Assots 2749,429.22 25,799.68 11.00.723.03 11,57.786.51
B. Linbilitics fat book value] 1179572303 1',79,375.00 2,99,685.97 299.683.97
C. 'Net assets (A-H) 15.69.854.19 16,46,225 05,0376 FaB 054
13. Na of units 1,31.22,00, 600 131,22,00,600 72640520000 72,6405 200,006
L. XAV (/Dy} 11064 1254 110.41 118.13

“Tuir values of tofal issets refaiing o the Trust ns m Mavch 312024 & March 31,2023 us disclosed aboye arc based on ihe independent valuer report.

Standatvoc Statement of Total Return ar Fair Yulue: Al anonses e i 3 lakdi unbess othenvise stated}
Particulars Asat AR

March 31, 2024 Alnrch 31, 2023
Tola) comprehiensive income for the year (As per (he Standalune Statement of Proiit and 1.083) n4.810.27 123617
Add: Oflier changes in fair value for ibé vear * 76,3706 $6.063 A8
Tutal retarn 1,73,184.73 1,33.299.65

* In the ghove staicment, oiler changes in fir value for the period ended Narch 31, 2024 and Mareh 31. 2023 bave hean compuled buserl i the independemm
villuer repor.

The accompanying noies form ai infegral part of the Standalone Fiouncia) Statements,

This is the Standalme Satcment ol Net Assers ar Fair Value and SGiadaluire Stitement 68 Totol Rétrn :u Fair Vahie refomved 10 in our-report ol evenr dale,
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvET/20-21/0014
Notes to-the Standalore Financizl Results for the (uarter, ha_lf__year and year ended 31st March 2024

The investor ean- view the result of the National Highway Inlra Trast (Trust) on the Trust's website (hilps:ifvww.nbil.co.in} or on the websites of
BS)E (wyvw. bseindiazcom) or NSE (wwiwy.nseindia.com.

The Standalonc Financial resulls of National Higliways Infea Trust (Trust’y for the guarter, halC year-and year encded 3151 Mureh, 2024 have been
reviewad by the Audit Conmmittee of Nutional Highways Inffa Investiment Managers Privale Limited Clnvestment Manager’ of Trust) on 27ih May,
2024 and thereaficr approved by the Board 6f Direetors.of the Invesunient Manager on 27th May, 2024,

The Statutery Auditers of the Trust have carricd out the audit of Standalone Financial Results of Trust far the-quarter, half vear und yéur ended 3151
March 2024 andd have issued an urmedilted asdit report an these Srandalone Financiad Results.

The Standalone Financia! results comprise the Stundalonc Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and
cxplanatory nedes therelo of the Natlonal Highwuyvs Inlva Trust {*the Trust™y for the quaner, hail’ year and year ended 315t March. 2024 (the
Stattment’). The Statement has beet prepared- in- accordance with the recognition and measurement principles Inid down in Jndian Avtounting,
Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thercto as defined b Rule 2 (1) (a) of the Companics {Indian Accounting Sundards) Rules, 2013 and uther
accounling principles generally aceepied in India. The Statement has heen prepared solely for submissions to be made hy the Investment félanager
with the Stock Exchanges (both BSE and NSE) and as pdditianal information for sizkeholders of the Trust and 1harelore jt may not be switable for
another purpuoss.

National Highway Infrn Tras, ¢Trust” or “TovIT™} is registercd as an Inevocable Trust negistered yndey the provisions of the Indian Trusis Act. 1882
on 191k Qctober., 20201, 1t was registered nnder the Seearitivs sud Exchange Board of Indiz (Infrastructere Tavestmient Trust) Repulations, 2014 on
28h Gerpber, 2020 having registration number PNAnelT/20-2 170014,

The Trust hag quitstnding seeured non-converible detrentures (NCDs) amounting 1o Rs, 1,500 crores for STRPP A. STREP B, and STRFP C which
will matare from R1b anniversiry o 13th asniversary. 13th anniversary (o 18th auniversary. 18th smeiversory lo 35ih anniversary ol alliment
respectively. The NCDs are listed on Bombay: Siock Exchange (BSE} aivd National Stock Exchange (NSE). The sechrity cover exeeeds 1007 af the
principal and inderest amount of NCE's as at 31 March 2024,

Nitture af Seeurity for Nen Converfible delicntures:
The debenture holdars ane sceased by ;

a) a first ranking pari prssu Sccurity Interesi over the Trust's inimovahle assels (i any). il present and fature. The Trust does not own any
immovable properly at the present time. T the event, the Trust aequires any immovable property in fature, the Trust shall morigage said property
within E80 {one hundred eighy} days fram the dat of aequisition of such immovabie ass2tg, The Debentore Trustew shall ke authorised w do all scis,
decds and enler inlo necessary documénts, sgreenicnt, amendments and/or owedifictions, as may hevequired 1o give affect the sane, Inchuding
camying oud the due difigence as may be-required by Debeniure Trustee:

by a fies ranking pari passu Security Jaierest over the Hypotheculod Assels (including Receivables), batly prosent and fulure; and

¢} Negulive Lien Undertakingy

dj corporgie guaruniee exceuded hy the Project 3PV (NHIPPL) in thvour of thie Bebenture Truslee for guarantecing the due repaymént of the secured
obligations in accordance with the teans of the Debentare Trust Deed.

The standalane financial results refating (0 half year ended Mareh 31, 2004 are the balanging figures between the audited ligurss in respect ol fll
finanetal year ended Macch 31 2024 and published figures for hatvens caded Seplember 30, 2023 which were subject t liinited review,

The siandulong rinuncial resnlts relating to quarter ended March 31, 2024 are 1he baluncing figures between the audited ligerres in respeet of Jull
financial year ended March 31, 2624 and published figurcs for the periad ended December 31, 2023 which were subieet o limitad review.

The Board of Directors of the Investment Munsger has declared distribution for January 2024 of Rs. 0.631 per unit which eomprises 61 R (L606 per
unit as intérest and Rs 0.025 por wnil as other invome on surplus funds at the Trust level in theit meeting held on 41h March. 2024, Further, the
Board ol Dircctors of the Invesmacnt Manager has declared Jistibugion for February 2024 & March 2024 of Rs. 0.705 per unit which comprises of
Rs. D.68T per unit ax interest and Rs. 0018 per unit a8 other fncome on surplus funds af the Frost level in their meeting held on 27t M uy, 200,

The Board of Directors of the lnvestment Manager has dectared distribution for Quarter 3 of FY 2023-24 of Rs: 1.697 per unit whiich comprises of
Rs. 1.693 per uuit as felerest and Rs. 0.004 per unit 6s oihér income on surplus funds af the Trust leved in their ineeling kedd o 20d February, 2024,
Tl Board of Dircciors of the Investment Mariager had declared disibution for Quarter 2 of FY 202024 of Rs. 1.816 per unit which comprises of
Rs. 1774 per unit as inferesl and Rs. 0.042 per unit as other incomé on surplus funds’of the Trust level in their meeting held on 8th Novenber, 2023
and the Hoard of Directors af the Invesiment Muneger bud declaréd distibution for Quarier 1 of FY 2073-24 of Rs. 1.754 per ot which comprises
of Rs. 1.742 per onil as infenestand Rs. 1012 per unit as otber incume on surplus funds af thie Trisst tevel i theit mexting held v { Lih Augusi. 2023.

The Trust has invested the mmount of Rs. 2.40:610 Lakk in the cquity share capitil of the NHTI' Eastern Projects Private Limited (Praject SPV's - 1)
during the year. NEPPL acquired rishis for ToHing. Management and:Mainicnance of the seven foll roads under the coneession agreement signed
wilh NFIAT for consideration of INR 15.69,988.18 Lakhis. Appointed date for the project iz w.e.F 01.04.2024,
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- INInvIT/20-21/0014
Notes to the Standalone Finaneial Kesulis for the quarter, half year and year énded 31st Masrch 2024

In current year the Trust alléred an issue of 58,52.93.400 vnin of National Highways infra Trust ("NHIT™), for cash at aprice of 124.74 [T unit
{1 “Issuc price™). aggregating 1o ' Rs 7.37.206.4] lakh thraugh Instifational and preferentiul plicement in accordance with the Securilics and
Exchange Board of India (nlrastiucture Invesiment Trust) Regulations. 2014 including the rules, circalars and guidelines issued thereunder,

As et Ind- A8 36 Tpairment of assets', based o management review on expecied fiture cash flaws and ecunomic conditions of lk: assets of the
Trust, no indicators sFimpairneht of assetk exist as on the reponing date. Henee o prav¥ision: for impairment has been recognized in the books on the
reporling date.

As per Ind AS 109, Financiad Asseis that are iocasured at amartized cost are required fo compuic the Expectad Credil Loss (ECL). Asat the reporting
period. the Dvestment Manager of the Frust assessed the credit risk of fhe finuncigl assers and coneluded thai no provision lor ECL is requircd.

During the year anded 3 st March 2024, the Trust has tadeg a Turther disbuisentesi ol'i;umuuming to Rs. 163 Crores from the Axis Bank Limited and
Ry, 26 Crorcs (fom the Bank of Maharashira in accordunce with Facility agreemiont. The Trust s given the above said amount 10 Project SPV
NHITPL 05 Loan at1he rate of 12.70% p.a lor inftial Improvemem warks. '

During the year ended 3 1st March 2024, ibe Trust has obtsived the saoction af Rs. 877 Crares Trom the Axis buk for initial improvenent warksof
Round  Assets. Further Trust has obiained sanclian of Rs. 9000 Crores from Banks and Finangial fnstitution (or poquistion o Round 3 Assets ond
has faken 2 dishirsement of Rs. 8.658 Crone during the yeor . the Trist bas given the said amount 1o Profect SPY NEPPL 23 Loan af the e of
12.70%; p.a. for acquistion of Round 3 Assets,

Cash & cash equivalent includes Rs. 13,008 Lakhs raised iy current year from unil issuc for leap projeets, W be wilised for ereation of DSRA againgt

loans raised for leap projects. Further these investiments alsa includes Rs. $106.06 Lakhs pertaining o one fime issue rekated expenses unutitized as
on 31-03-2024.

All vahues are rounded to nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicuied. Certuin amounts that are required w be disclosed and do ol appear due lo
raunding off are expressed ay 0,00,

Frevious year fizures have been reclissified/regrouped wherever neeessary to con Firm 1o cument period clasdification.

For and an behalf of the National Highwiys Infrz Investment Mauagers Private Limited (Tavestiment A anagrer

af National Wighways Infra Trost)
.
g7 %

Mathew Genrge
Chiel Financial Q[

Place: New Delhi
Drate; ITih May, 2024




AR & CO. Delhi Office:
Chartered Accountants A-403, Gayatri Apartment Airlines
Group Housing Society, Plot No 27,
Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi -110075
Cell No.-9810195084, 9810444051
E-mail: ar_co1981@yahoo.co.in
pawankgoel1@gmail.com

Corporate and Correspondence Office:
C-1, 11 Floor, RDC, Raj Nagar,
Ghaziabad-201001 Delhi-NCR National
Capital region Of Delhi

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE QUARTER, HALF YEAR AND
YEAR TO DATE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE TRUST
PURSUANT TO REGULATION 23 OF THE SEBI (INFRASTRUCTURE
INVESTMENT TRUSTS) REGULATIONS, 2014, AS AMENDED

To,

The Board of Directors

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited
(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust)

G-5 & 6, Sector-10,

Dwarka, Delhi - 110075

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Statement of consolidated financial results
of National Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the Trust or
NHIT”) comprising its two subsidlaries (hereinafter referred to as “the
National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited or NHIPPL and the NHIT
Easteri Projects Private Limited or NEPPL"} (the Trust and its subsidiary
“NHIPPL& NEPPL" together referred to as “the Group”), consisting of the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Laoss including Other Comprehensive
Income, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures in
accordance with Chapter 4 of the Securities Exchange Board of India {(SEBI)
Circular No. SBIfHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 for
the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024 (the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,




explanatory notes and additional disclosures together referred to as
“Statement”), attached herewith, being submitted by the National Highways
Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (“Invesfment Manager™) pursuant
to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI
Circular.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, and the based on the consideration of our report on
subsidiary’s Standalone Financial Statements, the Statement:

a. Includes the resuits and other disclosures of the National Highways
Infra Projects Private Limited and NHIT Eastern Projects Private
Limited;

b. Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of
SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts} Regulations, 2014, as
amended, read with SEBI Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023, and any other relevant
circulars in this regard; and

¢. Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards, and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, tothe extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, of the
consolidated net profit and other comprehensive income @nd other
financial informaticn of the Group for the quarter, half year and year
ended March 31, 2024.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accardance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chiartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
results under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.




EMPHASIS OF MATTER

a) We draw the attention to Note No. 12 to the financial result regarding
Initial Improvement Works. The. group has recognized provision for
initial improvement works on 1st December 2023 amounting to Rs.
1,11,993.43 lakhs with corresponding impact in Statement of Profit and
L.oss amounting to Rs. 1124.63 Lakhs and Rs. 2396.83 Lakhs on account
of amortization of initial improvement work and unwinding of interest
on provision of initial improvement respectively.

b) We draw attention to Note 11 of the financial result which describes that
Major Maintenance Provision (MMR} is made based on the first cycle of
overlay expected to occur in five to seven years and not based on the
total Major Maintenance Cost estimated ta be incurred over entire
concession period. The discounting rate used for arriving at the present
value for MMR pravisions is government bond rate of 30 years for
projects acquired in first phase and 20 years for projects acquired in
second phase.

¢} We draw the attention to Note No. 13 to the financial result regarding
Capital Advance to National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), The
appointed date is with effect from 1st April 2024, therefore the amount
paid te NHAI has been classified as capital advance

Our opittion is not modified in respect of these matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the consolidated anpual
finarcial statements. The Board .of Directors’ of the Investment Manager is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a
true and fair view of the consolidated net profit and other comprehensive
income and other financial information of the Group in accordance with the
requirements of the SEBI InvIT regulations as amended, Indian Accounting
Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(z) of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended} and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT
Regulations. The Board of Directors of the subsidlaries included in the Group
are responsible for maintenarice of adequate accounting records for




safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and appliedtion of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
contrals, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
fer the purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Board of Directors of
the Investment Manager, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager and
the Board of Directars of the subsidiaries included i the Group are
responsible for assessing the abhility of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing; as applicable, matters related to gaing concern and using
the'going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do sa.

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager and the subsidiaries included
in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL RESULTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thie
Statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
wlien it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic. decisions of users taken on the basis of the
Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the




Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient-and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of
Investment Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to contiriue as going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion.

Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cortent of the
Statement, including the disclosures, and whetlier the Statément
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the Trust and subsidiary included in the Statement of
which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the
Statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of financial statements of thve Trust and




subsidiary included in the Statement of which we are the independent
auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust and the
subsidiaries included in the Statement of which we are the independent
auditor regarding, among othier matters, the planned scope ahd timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including ahy significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

OTHER. MATTERS

1. The Statement includes the consclidated financial results for the half
year ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between the
audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31,
2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to 30
September 2023, being the date of the end of the first half of the
current financial year, which were subject to limited review as
required under Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board
af India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts} Regulations, 2014 asg
amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular Na.
SBI/HO/DDHS-PaD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023.

2. The Statenient includes the consolidated financial results for the
quarter ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between
the audited figures in respect of the full financial yeai' ended March
31, 2024 and the unaudited year-to-date figures up to 31st December
2023, being the date of the end of the first half of the current financial
year, which were subject to limited review as required under
Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended
from time to time read with SEBI Circular No. SBI/HQ/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023.




Our opinion on the Statement is ot modified in respect of the above
matters.

For A. R. & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.Q02744C

il

CA Mohd Azam Ansari
Partner
Membership No: 511623

UDIN: QW5 W23 B (SS1WEAT

Place: New Delhi
Date; 27.05.2023




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :-IN/In¥IT/20-21/0014
Audited Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
{AlL amounts in 2 Takh unless otherwvise stated)

Particalars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(Audited) (Aundited)
ASSETS
1) Non - Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21920 125.17
() Capital work in Progress (CWIP) 19.76
(€} Goodwill 10,144.46 10,144.46
{d) Other [ntangible Assels 10,88,670.84 10.01,400.09
{e} Fipancial Asscts
{i) Other Financial Assels 10.177.%6 9.672.44
{f) Defévred Tax Assets (Net) 11,523.20 £.685.32
{h) Nogt Crarrent Tax Assels (Net) 22,38 12.06
{g) Other Non Current Assels 15,70,649.18 -
Total Non Current Asseis 26,91, 42697 10,26,039.54
1 Current Assets
(2) Firancial Assers
() Trade Receivables 385.20 35087
{fi) Cash & Cash Equivalents 46,400,78 21.124.08
({ii) Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 51198 -
(Iv) Other Financlal Assets 4.54 0.65
¢b) Other Current Assets 2.301.89 1.634.06
Total Current Assefs 49,607.39 23.115.66
[TOTAL ASSETS 27,41,03436 10,49,155.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQU'[TY
17 Unit Capital 14,67.093.4£7 7,41.604.32
2) Initial Settlement Amount .10 010
3) Olhwer Equity {27,541 44)| (2,469.56)
Total Equity 14,39,552.13 1.39,134.56
LIABILITIES
I} Non-Current Linhilities
{a} Finoncial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11,63,194.94 2497 15833
(ii) Other Financiaf Liabilities §0.90 -
(b) Provisions 3592332 6.313.81
Tatal Nois Current Lisbilities 11,99.399.16 29847014
2) Cynrpent Efabilitics
{a) Financial Liabilities
{I) Bomowings 10,0540 = 000,00
{ii) Trade Payables '
(2} Total Quistanding, dues of micro and small enterprises 27599 137.23
(b} Tatal autstonding, dues of creditars ofher than micro and , n gs
small enterprises. - 4,479,00 187117
(iti) Owber Financial Liabilities 722453 5.284.95
(¢} Provisions 79,404.66 0.56
(dY Current Tax Liabififies (Net) 185.66 3.98
{b) Other Current Lipbilities 463.23 240,61
Total Current Liabilitics 1,02,083.07 1'2,543.50
T o1zl Liabilities 13.01,482.23 3,19,020.64
TOTALEQUITY & LIABILITIES 274103436 |  J85PRHSEQ
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :~-IN/TnvIT/20-21/0014

Audited Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended Ended March 31, 2024

AN anropnty ey it T lakh unless wthenyiso siared)

Year ended Year-ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 35, 2023
. A netited) td nclifedt
A, Cash flows from aperating activities ) ]
Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 2346547 21,740.68
Adjustments;
Diepreciation and Amortization 24,771.04 17.560.63
Profit an redemption of Mutual Funds (2.141.16) (67117
Inigrest incame from FDR (871.71) (373.43}
Finance Cost {nei) 2501590 16,590.17
Provision for major maintenance expenses 544405 5.879.20
Unwinding interest an major maintenance provision 2,867.62 24.05
Provision for Leave encashment and Gratuity 52.43 11.93
Provision for expected credit loss - 39.60
Bad debts written off - 590
Operating cash flowvs before Warking Capitat Changes 81,603.44 60,8324
Maovements in Warking Capital
Decrease / (Inerease) fa Trade & Other Receivables (34,34) 180,10
Decrease ! (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets {2.52) (203.85)
Decrease / {Increase) in Other Non Cumenl/Current Assets (51699 (83496}
Decrease / (Increase} in Other Current Financial Assets {293.91) (29353
[ncrease f (Decrease) in Trade & Other Puyables 12.68 3.267.81
[ncrease / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 148.39 57.50
Increase / { Decrease) in Provisions (3.57) (0.11)
Increase / {Decrease) in Other Currend Liabilities 22927 {034
Increase / (Devrease) in Chwrrent Tax Liabilities » -
Cash used in operating activities 81,182.64 62,999.48
Incame Tax paid {721.42) {626.67)
Net Cash Flows used in-operating setivities -A 80,461.22 62,372.41
B, Cash fiaws from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Ecuipment, inciuding CW [P, capital creditors and capital
advantes (15.82,977.68){ (2.85.101.04}
(InvestmeniVRedemption in FOR (951.20) (6,299,109}
Interest recetved on maturity of FDK 81099 189,55
Profit on redemption of mutual fands 214116 671.17
Net Cash Flows used in investing activitics - B (15,80,976.79y  (2,90.539,51)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Issue of {nit Capital 7.27.206.4! F43.013.67
Expense incurred towards initiaf public debl offering - {1.689.09
Expense incurred towards institutional unit allotment {1.471.46) {1,092.13)
Precessing Fee paid (1,482.16) (19701
Distribution to Unit Holders (54,49129)  (34,927.86)
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings {net of pracessing fees) 8.84,700.00° 1,50,000.00
Financing charges paid {24,909.51) (11,180.86)
Repayment of Long Term Barrowings (3,759.73) (1,010.98)
Net Cash Flows from financing activities - € 15,25,792.26 2,42,908:84
Net Increase/Tecrease in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 25,.276.70 14,742, 14
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 21,124.08 6.381.94
Cash and Cnsh Equivalents at the erd of the year 46,40H.78 21,524.08




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBF Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0814

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circutars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS . Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673

dated 29 November 2021 issucd under the Inv]T regulations)

Cansolidated Statenient of Net Assefs at Fair Vaine {Al amabnts are in 7 lakh unless wibervis: stoled)
As nt March 31, 2024 Az at March 31, 2623

Particulars Book value Fair value® Book value Fair value®

A, Assets 274103436 2047,706.90 10,49, £35.20 11,68.122.00
1. Liabilities {at book value) 13,01,482.24 13,01 482.24 3.10,020.64 3.10.020.64

C. Net assets (A-B) 14,39,552.12 16,46,224.65 7313456 3,58,101.3¢

D. Mo of units 1,31.22.00.600.00 1,31,22,00,600.00 72.64.03,200.00 12.64.05.200.00

E. NAY (C) 109,71 125.46 .75 11513

~Fair values of (edal asgas relaring 1o tie Trust as at March 31, 2024 & March 31. 2023 a5 disclosed above are based on the independent valuer

Cansolisfated Statement of Total Refura at Fair Value: (AN ammims are in € lakh unjess otherw{sz staed)
Priticulars As at Asat
Mirch 31, 2024 Maseh 31, 2023
Tolal camprehensive income for the yeal (A3 per the Consolidated 2041970 25.659.57
Statement of Profiv and Loss)
Add: Other changes in {2k value for the vear 2.06.672.54 1,18.566.80
[Total reruen 2,36,891.24 £,44,656.37 |

* In the ahove siafement, athdr changes in fair value for the yeur ended March 31. 2024 & Murch 31, 2023 have been computed based on the
independent valuer repon.

The accompanying notes form an intepral part of the Consolidated Financid Statements.

This is the Consalidated Susement oFNet Assets at Fair Value and Consofidated Stuteracat of Total Reiurn al Fair Value referred 1 in our report
ol cven date.




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- INTavIT/20-21/6014
Disclosures pursnant {¢ SEBI circulars (SE_IBi_ Master Cireular No, CIRSEBHHO!DDHS_D“GTPJ‘CEMM111673 dafed
29th November, 2021 issued under the InvIT regitations)

a..Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NIVCF) at Trust Level NDIT

(AR aneids 3 bkl wmless oabvervise sted)

s. Particulars For the year énded |Far the year ended 313t
No. H st Mareh 2024 Mareli 2023
rdudited) {Andited)
1 |Profit afies tax as per Siatement of proflt and lossfincome and expenditure (Standabone} 96,819.27 7733617
(A}
2 |Add: Depreciatiém and amonization as per statement of profit and loss accons, Inease off -
Inspatirmient geversal, same 1eeds jo be.deducted from profit ond loss,
3 |Add/Less Lass/gain on sale of infrastcucione assels -
4 |Add: Precéeds from sale of idvasimcture assets adfusied for the following; -
related debrs scirlad or duc to he serled from sale proceeds;
diceclly attributable: trangaetion cosls;
procceds remwested or planmed 19 be reinvested as per Regulation 12(7Xa) of the InT]
regmlations )
5 |Add: Proceeds fiom sale of infrstimciure assets not disiributed purseanl to an calier plan tw re -
mvesi, if such precéeds are not imended o bé inesied mbﬁcqlmn[y, net of any profit/ (loss)
recopnised in profit and Joss acconnt
G |Add/ Less: Any other item of non- cash expense! non cush income (net af aciual casl Tlows forl (B2.058.(H) (45,0021
these #ems?, if deemed riscessary by the Imustmens Manager.
For cxample, any decrease/ increase in earrying amouné of an assct or a Liabilily recosodsed inf
profit and loss /income and expendituce on mensirement of the assel ar ibe liability o fair valug:
Ileresi eost us per effective interest rate method: deferved tax (2ose renls recagnised o a straight
firz basis, ete.
7 |Less: Repaymend of externad delsf (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ele. {4.206.73] 101098}
(excluding refinancig) / vet cash sel oside to comply wilh DSRA requiremant under boary
agreenents,
g [Total Adiustment () (86.264.77) 146,012.98)
9 |Net Swrphs (C) = (A+B) (NDCE) M),554.5i 31,221.1%
10 |Add: Income recogniscd in previous yéar and received in fliis yéar 4668843 §0.651.13
11 |Less:- [merest expenses recogrised i previous vear and paid in this vear 15.129.59) -
12 |Dimibwtable Cash Flaw 52,11338 41,824.32
13 |Less: Anwatt alceady distributed to Unitholders ((for the period Tram April 23 to Jan 24)(FY for 4284337 3022578
the peridd from April 22 o Decomber 22))
L4 |Balumee Net Distribuialde Cash Flows for the year caded March-31, 2024 9,2649.97 11,648:54




NATHONAL HIGHWAYS JNFRA TRUST

SEBI. Registidilion Nuinbér - INTavIT/20-210014

Disclosures pursicant {o SEB elreulars (SEBI Master Cirenlar No, CIRSEBITIG/DDHS_DivI/P/CIR/Z021/1673 daigd 29%h November,

2021 issued under ibe InvIT regulalions)

b, Statement of Net Distribntable Cash Flows (NDCF) ot SPV Level (NHIPPL)

{AJN nsiants i 2 Takh nnbess Glberwise staled}

. . For the yesr coded | Tar thie yéar caded
$-No, Particulars Maich 352024 |  Maren 31,2023
{Lirdited) {Auditeid)
I |Profits (Ess) after tax as- per Siaterend of profit awd Jassfncome and cxpenditure {55,433 35} AST,346.60)
(shandalone) (A}
2 |Add: Depreciation and amartization as per statemeni of profit aid loss aceount, Tnease off 247700 17,560 63
Impairment réversal, same needs 10 be deductzd from profif and 1oss,
3 {AddMLess Loss/gdinon sak of infasinacure assets - -
4 |Add: Proceeds from 5212 of infrastructwe assests adjusted far the following: - -
relaned dehts sardled oz due to be saled from sale proceeds:
direcily attribsuatdi ransaction costs;
proceeds rinvestd or plivined 10 be reinvested ag per Begulation 13(7)() of the TnvIT
regulations
5 |Add; Proceeds trom e of infrasimctuce assets not distnbured pursnant to on carlier plan {14270 (134.38)
to re-invest, i such peocewds are nof intenwded ta be invesied subsequendly, nel of anry profil|
{loas) recopnised in profit and loss account, ¥
f [Addf Less: Any ather item of noi- gash expensef non cash ineome (el oCactital cash Hows 1,25403.04 9o 138 43
for these Rems), i deemed recassary by the Tnvestment Managar.
For example. any decrease! increase in cavrying amount of o asser or a [afnkiey recogniscd
iny proditand fows fincome and expenditure o measurernent of the assct or the liability of fir
vitkue:
Tnterest cast as per effeciive interes) rae meihod, defierred fax lease rents recopivised on 2
straight line busis, eic.
7 |Less: Repayment of externad debt {priocipal} / redeemable prefereice shares # debontureg, (504.26) {3,000 00)
eic.. fexciuding refinancing) / net casl set aside 10 comply with DSRA requindnest ander
loan agreements. **
§  |Tofal Adjostments (B) 1.49,526.96 1,12.658.1
9 | Net Disiviluiable Cosle Frows (C) = (A4 B) 84,003.58 6111210

¥ This includes amount utilized for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipmen's and Inmongible Asscix

4+ gt 31-03-2024 this indudes Fived Deposit af Rs. 304,36 Lakhs licn mariced in faver of Bank of Mahatasiim apainst Perfomance Bank
Guaranlee isswed in frvour iENHAL '

Autjustinent-to Met Distcibwiable Cash Flons
5: No. Particulane For the yeareaded | For the year ended
March 31, 2624 March 31,2023
1 |Net Digiributable Cash flow for dw year (From {C) Abovel 84,003.58 a1,112.19
2 |Less: Actuat Disinbution during the vear {§2.319.93) (5§,66).00)
Balaece L3345 15008 |
Add: Opering Sarplus { Dpening Cash adjusted with Net working Capital a5 on 31-03-
3 [2023) 3.896.22 -
& _|Less: Cosh Set Aside For movemnngt in act working copital s om 31-03-2024 (23495 -
Talnisce Distribnlable € ash Flow"#% 518403 145100

s6d B3, 516205 lakhs of Cish am of Balance Distributable cash as o 31s1 March 2034 has bean distribaled to Trast in April 2024,




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :-IN/InvIT/20-21/0014

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Divd/P/CIR2021/1673
dated 29th November, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations)

¢ Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flaws (NDCF) at SPV Levet (NEFPL)

(AN amounts 1 ¥ lakh imless ohervise stated}

5. No.

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31,2024
] Profit/ (Loss) after tax as per Staiemeni of profit and loss/income and cxpenditure (1,693.38)
(standalone) (A)
2 [Add: Depreciation and amortization as per statement of profit and loss account. incase of] 13
Impaithent reversal, same needs to-be deducted from protit and loss.
3 |Add/Less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets -
4 Add: Proceeds [fom sale of infrastruchire assesis adjusted for the following; -
telated debts settled or due to be settled from sale procceds;
directly attributable transiction costs;
proceeds reinvested or planned to be reipvested as per Regulation 18(7){a) of the InvIT
tegulations
5 {Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure asseis pot distributed pursuant 10 an earlier plan ta re- (0.50)
invest, if such proceeds are not intended fo be invested subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss)
recognised in profit and loss account. *
& Add/ Less: Any other itemn of non- cash expense/ non cash income (net of aciual cash flows for 2,217.93
these items), if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager,
For example, any decrease/ increase in cartying amount of an asset or 2 liability recognised inj
profit and loss /income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the licbility at fair value:
haerest cost s per elfective interest rate method, deferred 1ax lease rents recognised on'a straight
ling basis, atc.*¥
7 |Less: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debenfes, etc. -
(excluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan|
agreeients.
8 |Total Adjustments (B} 2217.57
9 |Net Disiributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B)** 524.19

* This includes amount utilized for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment's and Intangihle Assets
i The distributable cash flows are retained for working capital requirements of the Company.




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :-IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
Disclosures pursnant to SEBI circulars (SEBT Mastér Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673
dated 29th November, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations) '

d. Project Management Fees :-
Tiw; project manager National 1liphways InVIT Project Managers Private Limited (' NHIPMPL®) Jor NHIPPL (R1 & R2 assets) and is emitled
1o fixed fecs based an the Project Implementation and Mamagement Agreement (FIMA) sipned by both thie pariies dited 30th March 2021 as
smended on 6th Mach 2024, WHIPMPL is also Project Manager for NEPPI. {R3 usscts) wel1st Aprit 2024 as pér deed of adherence signed
on 7ih March. 2024,

e. Investment Manager fees
1) The Invesiment Manager’s fee as per agreement dated 21st October 2020 will initially be Rs. 1100 Lakh (Rupees Eleven Hundred Lakhsj
per amunl,
{i) The Investment Manapement Agreement is revised and the fee with effect from st Apeil 2023 has heen agreed al Ry 1800 Lakhs (Rupess
Eighteen hundred Jakbs) For the Fimancial Year 2023.24, ) )
Hi} The management fee sct uwd in paragraph (i) above stiall be subject (o cscalation an an annual basis af the rate of 18% af the mamgemeand
fize For 1he previous year.
iv) Any applivable taxes, cess or charges, us Whe case may be, shall be in addition (o the management e and shalk be payuble by National
Highways 1edtn Trost (NHTTY (o the Investiment Manager (NHLIMPL).
Payment of ffeguency: Payment of munagement [2¢ shall be made by Nationul Highways Infid Trost (NIUT) @ the Envestimend Manager
(NHIIMPLY in advance on a awrderly bosis at the beginnine of each avacter of u lnuncial vear,

£, Statement of carnings per unit ('EPLY)
Basic EPU amounts arc caleukated by dividing 1he prafit tor the periad/ vear atributable 10 Unit holders by the weighted uverage number of
units oulstanding during the peried? year. Diluted EPU amounts are caleulated by dividing Uhe profittloss) attribolable 1o wnit holdees. by the
weiglued average number of units sutsianding during the peried” vear plus the weislnied average mumber of apits ihat would by issued on
conversion ol all the dilnive natential uniis inliy unit capital,

Farticulars For the Year ended { Far the Year ended Mareh
larch 31, 2024 31, 2023
(Audied) {Andited)
Prodit for the peviod £ vear (3 kakhs) 0,419 20 L6857
Weiphted average number o vaits outstanding for computation ol basic and diluted 73.36,14.276 636668738
carmng per ik,
Earaing per unit (bagic and dilated) &) .90 3.

g. Stateinent of Contingent Liabilities/Contingant Assets

{ AL amounts are in

lakh unless othenwise stated)

i) Contingent Liabilitivs

200000000

Corparaje Guarantee issued 1o senos lenders 2.87.200.00

Cormporale Guiraniee issued (o Debenfure Trusice on beballNof Kon Convertiblé 1.561.000.00 1,50.000.00
Debeninie 1lolders

Swmp Duty on Concession apreemo on RBelaamn Kazal Project {refer nole (a) helow) £.990.00 -
i} Contingent Assels

S1aimp Duty-on Concession greenol an Belgawn Kagal Project {refer note (b) below ) £.990.50 -




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Numbér :-IN/InvIT/20-21/40014
Disclosures pursuant ¢o SEBL circulars {SEEB1 Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673
dated 29th November, 2021 issued under tlie knvIT regulations}

Note (a) Stamp Daty on Corncéssion agrecment on Bélgaum Kagal Praject - The group has received notice from OiTice of Depiiy
R_cgislri;.r of Stamps. Government af Kaimataka. As per thiz notice additianal stamp duty of Rs 69.%0 crore has been impased an the-group for
the concession agrecment sntered iito lor Bélgoum-Kagal road,
Stamnp lepislation in certain stutes (including Kdmaiaka) dlso specifies that copy of the maiv_gocwment in respect of any propenty, orany
business within ibe st alsa needs lo be stamped with ori ginal amount of stamp duty. it ihe original ducymen has nat been stamped with
{irll amaunt of the stamp duty applicabie for place of business.
As regords 1o the applicability of stwnp duty on {oncession Agreement. H may please be nated thit there is no specilic éntry in respect of the
cascession agreement. Such agreements are staniped under the residuary category of the agreements and a1 nomdinal smount was paid on such
agreaments. We are given 1o understand that the Karnataka Stale Guvt. has given instructions o procyre capies of licence /Agrecment oftall
colfccting agencies in respect of roadg passing through sime of Karnatuka. We have further Been issucd  nolice for recovery af sharifall in
stamp duty.
Varivus judicial pronouncements by various high courts have divergeni views and the issee is debatable and there is na clarity on the ne.
e group, is contesting this inpsition of deficit stawp duty on concession agrecment notice with Government of Karnntaks, We are also:in
receipt of capes of letters sent by NHAL 10 the Karnataka State Govt clasifving the issue. The group 15 in the process of filing injuction with
the Dharwad beaeh of Karmnataka High Court.

Nate (b} Contingent Assels

Stamp Duly on Congession sgrecment on Belgaum Kagal Project- | thie event af the stwup duty becoming payabic, i shall be reimbursed by
NHA! as confirmaed by them vide letter Mo, NHAIF&A/ aVIT2021-20CLIN_GST&SDUE-106870) daad 28.09.282 1. Since ne provision
has heen recognised in the books with respect ta stamp duty. the reimbursement has not been recognised ag an assel considering the puidance
in Ind AN 37,

¢) Corporate Guaranives )
317 March 2024 Rs 4.37.700.00 Lukh
31 Marely 2023 Rs 3.50,000.00 Lokl

The Project SPV campany (NHIFPL) has jssued Corporate Guarantees gmounting 1o Rs, 2000 Crore or secored obligations on 14.03.2022
and s 477 Crore or secured obligations on 63.01,2024 in favour of Senjor Lenders, Re. 1.500 Crore or secured obligations on 21.10.2022 in
frvour of Debentire Trustee of the Trust for the benefi of NCD Talder,

The geawp during previous year has carried out a fair valuation of Carporate Guarntes referred above from an independent exlerm vakuer.
Busis such valuation report und manigement estimate, Fair valie of vorporate guranice is estimated 10 be Nil.

h. Capita) Commitments as on 31032024

i Alt amounts arc in Z-Jakh unjess othenvise stated)

For the Year shded For the Year ended
. _ 2
Particnlar RMarch 31, 2424 March 3E, 2023
The catimaied viitue of contingis W be executed and nol provided for 49.698.13 Nil
Oiker Commitments Hik Kil
Tot:l 49.695.13 Nil
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Additional diselosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A tq the SEBI Cireular No. CIR/IMD/DE/1271201 6

Statemient-of Reluted Parties

Ao List of Related Parties as per requirement of TNDLAS 24 - “Redated Party Disclosures”

Entterprises where Cantral / signiticant influence existy

anoaal JIgmTs
Infrn Projecis Private
Limited ('NHIPPLY
(Subsidiary

mnanl

NINT Eastert
Frojeces Private
Limited {'NEPI’LYY
(Subsidiary

B. List af ydiditional related parties as per Regelation 2¢1)(zv) of the SERI InvLl Repulations
Iarties fo thie Trusi

Natignal [ighways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (NHIIMPL) - Investment Manager (IM) of the Trost
1BBI Trusleeship Services Limited (FTSL) - Trustes of the Frust

MNatianal Highways Aaihority of India (NHAT»- Sponsar

National Mighwys v T Project Maaagers Priviie Limired (NHIPMPLY- Praject Manager

Government of India (acting 1hrough Ministiy of Road, Transport & Highways (MORTHY) - Promoter of NHIIMPL
IDR1 Bank Limficd {1131 Bank) - Promoter of [TSL

Govermment of fodin {acring 1thmugh Ministry of Read, Transport & Highwaws (MORTH)) - Promater of NHAT
National Highways Autherity: of India (NHAI)- Promoter of NHIPMPLL

Dircetors of the payties to the Trust specificd xhove

Directors of NHLIMPL,

Mr. Suresh Krishan Giyal

Mr., Shailendea Narain Roy

Me. Mabhivir Prosad Sharma

Mr. Pradeep Singh Kharala

M NV VMK Rojendra Kunmr

M. Sumil Bose .

Mr. Broce Cane (Censed w0 be Direetor we,f, 07.11.2023)

Mr. Amil Kamar Ghosh {Censed o be Director w,il, 13.11.2023)
Ms. Kavila Saha (Ceased 1o he Dirgetar wes. [ 08.11.2023),

Mr. Pushker Vijay Kulkarni {Appointed as Dircclor w.e.l. 08,11.2023)
Mr. Debapratim Hajar (Appoinied as Dizector w.e.f, 08.11.2023)

Mr. Vinay Kumwr {Appointed as Nomince Directar w g1 37.05.2024)
Mz, Usha Monari (Appointed as Women Independent Director w.s £ 16.04.2024)

Directors of NHIPPIL,

My, Soresl Krishan Gayal

Mr. Shailendra Narain Roy

Mi, Mahavir Prasad Sharina

Mr, Murdlidhar: Ruo Gugatha

Mr. NR V.Y M.K. Rajendra Kumar

Trireciors af NEPPL,
dr. Surcsh Krishin Goyal

Mr. Mathew Géorpe
vl r‘.-Muhuvﬁr Priisad Sharma (Appdinied as Director wielf, F5.04.2024)

M rﬂg@gu sain Roy {Appeinted 18 Dirccior w.o f. 15,04_2024)
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Additional disclasure as required by parsigraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/AMD/DF/1272016

Direetors of I'TSL

Mr, Priidecy Kuoyw Igin

Ms. Juyashree Yijay Ranade
M, Pradeap Kumar Malloira
Ms. Baljinder Kaur Mandl

Ms. Jayukumar $ehramanizpilioi

Birectars of NIHIFMPL

Mr. Akhil Khure
Mr. Ashish Kumar Singh

Transactions with Related artics

LAronnt in 7 kkh)

National Highways Autharity of India (NHAT
lssue of units of Trust (0 NHAIL

1.09.081.07

Yeur ended Yoar endeil
Particulars Sist March 2024 | 31s1 March 2023
{Auclited] {udited)}

 National Highwavs Infea Investment Managers Private Limited (N

[nvestent Manager Fez 1.800.00 149117
Advance Irvesiment Manager Fee I'aid 4.03 R6.06
Expanse tncureed by NHIMPL on belidf of NHIT 13.33 9.1
Expenses incurred on behall of NEPPL by NHIIMPL. 25.00 -
Ciher Suppor Services o NHIPYI, 3296 312
Expenses meurred by NHIPPL. far NHIMPL Behalt .65 -
Reimburseinent of Expeanses - 0.07

21.366.83

0,58

Inerest and other incorne distribution 8.641.92 7.589.34
Payment related Lo aguisition of inlangible asseis - L84.966.00
O & M Eapenses 90.01 1,152.32
Double 10l fees 328,00 679.17
Reimbursement far Initial Improvement Works 3.146.39 .
Independent engineers tees 28,56 343.38
IDB1 Trusteeship Serviees Limited {(ITSL)
Paynient of Trusiee Foe 9.60 1273
Ouliey fees related 1o Round 1 & 2 Assels 1.50 354
nher Fees rebted 1o Round 3 Assets {"1'roject Leap”) [7.58 -
IDBI Bank Limited
Secured Loan given Lo MUIT L0.000.00 -
Indcrest Expense inctred on Lowe given ta NET .58 -
Repaviment of Pringipal Amount 0.00 i
Loan Proceessing Fees Paid 10 them 41.30 -
atiynsl Highways InVIT Project Managers Private Limited

Praject Manager Feex 1,168.20 691.20
Summary of Transactions with Key Managerial Persannel (KMP)

tAmwounts in § lakhy

Nime of KMP sand Natvre of Transaciivn 3];'::;::;%24 3 l:""."'[:::[?:] 3
fudired) tAudited)

Mr. Suresh Krishon Goyval - Reimbursement of Expenses 0.7% 0.39
Mr. M.P. Shonnn - Direclor’s Sitting Fees 8.00 640
Mr. Shuilendm Narain Roy - Directots Sitiing Feck .00 6.40
Mrs, Ajania Sen - Short Term Employment Benefits - R
Mr. Arun Kumar Jha - Shait Term Employmenl Benefits 69.35 s
Mr. Arun Kumar Jha - Reimburscment oF Expenses 331 -
Mr, Bhann Sharma (%) - Short Ternl Employmerit Bencfits 7.49 391
Mr. Bhanu Sharma{CR)_ - Reimburscntent of Expénses (.47 -
#s. Aashima ; 6.2%




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registrafion Number :- IN/EnvIT/20-21/0014
Adaditional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No: CLRAIMD/DF/127/2016
L. Closing Balynecs with Related Paitics
{Amounis in ¥ Jakh

Pariiculirs Asat i'n'l:m:!l 31,2024 | Asat March 31, 2023
{Audited} {Auditeri}.

National Hishwiays Authority of lndia (NITAT
Tssue of unils ol Trust to NHAI 23700391 1.17,922.85
&M Expenses payable: 71758 880,35
Double toll fees payable 10.19 13417
Independent Engineyrs Fees payuble 45145 276.03
Amount Pavable for Initial Lmprovement Works £20.85 -

Natiinal Highways Infra Javestment M

Advance 1M Prg 4.93 -
1M Fee Payable - 1.89
Favuble by NHIFLPL for Other Support Services 6.6% -
Expenses Payable - 0438
Amount Payuble by NEPPL for expenses incurred on their behalt by NHIIMPL 23.00 -

TDIE Trusteeship Services Limited
'_["n_lslu_:: Fee Payable 1.73 1.73
Other Fees related o Round 3 Assets ("Praject Leap) 268

(DB} Bank Limited
Outstanding Secured Loan Anmount 9,909,900

National Highways InVI'T Project Alanagers Private Eimited (NOIFMPL)
Project Minager Fees Payable 540,00 T62.50
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Nates to the consolidated financial results for the quarter, half yéar and year ended Ended March 31, 2024

LA

n

The investor cam view the resul of the Mattonal Highway Infra Trost (Trost) on the Trast's websie (hips:Avasw.nhit co.in) ar on the websiizs ol BSE
{www bscindiz.com) or NSE (woow nscindin.com),

The-consalidaied Financial resuhs of Notipnal Highways Infra Trinst ¢Trust) foc the quarted, haff year and yeur ended 315t March, 2034 have been
reviewed by the Audit Cominittee of National Mighways Infra Invesimenl Managers Private Limited (Tovestment Maiaze' of Frust) an 27ih May.
2024 amd 1hercalier approved by thy Boied of Direélars-of the Investment Mﬂuagcr o0 270 May, 2024,

The Stamiory Awditds of (he Frust buve varried out the gudit of Congalidated Financial Reswlés of Trust for the-quarnter, half year and year gnded 31st
Mirch 2024 and have (ssued an uimodified nodit réport an these Consolidaivd Finsmeial Kesulis,

The. Conzolidagey Fywmeinl results comprise the Consolidated Balance Shoer as at 31st March, 2024, Consalidated Stdement of Prof apd Loss and
explamatagy noles thereto of the Nationod Highways: Infiq Trest (“the Trust™) for the quarter, hall yeor and year ended 31st March, 2029 {“(we
Statement’). The Smtement has been prepaced in uecordancé wilh the recognition and messwenicm principles faid down in Inding Aceuonting
Standards {Ind ALY and/or any xddendum thereta s difined in Rule 2 (11 (a) of the Compinies (Indim Accounting Stadards) Rukes, 2015 and other
accaymtiriz principles gencrally sceepted i findiz. The Shiement hus been prepared swlely for submissions to he made by the Investmend Manager
with 1 Stock Exchanges (bath BSE and NSE) and as udditions) information for siakeholders of the Trus and therefare it may mid be suituble for
anothier purpose,

The Consolidated Financial Resulis incorporale the Ficancial Resnlis of the Trust and its subsidiaries (Psoject 8PV~ NHIPPL and NEPPL), The
Consulidated Finaneial Results combine the financial statements of the Trust and s subsidiaries of a line-by-line bosis by adding wgether the like
dlems of ussets, Yiabititics, incomc, snd cxpenses. AN jolea-proup assets. Tiabitities, income, expenses und anrenlised profilsfosses o inveegroup
trafsactions ave climgfuted on consolidation wnless the transacuon provides cvidence of an impairment of iansfereed wssct. The carrying amongt of
the Group's investment m cach subsidiany-und the Group's portion of cquity &1 each subsidinry ans offat with gach other in the Consolidated Finanviak
Results.

Natiemal Highway Iofra Trust ©Trest” or “InIT) i registercd a5 an Irvevacabie Trasi segistered under the provisions of the Indian Trusls Act, 1882
on 190l Outoher, 2020, N was regisiered under. the Securities and Bvehange Boand of India (Infrastrocture Inveshnent Tt Regulafions, 2004 of
281k Qctober, 2020 having repisimiinn number WAnv T/20-210014.

The cansalidated Jinaocial sesults rckming 1o half vear ended Marchi 31, 2024 arc the balanciog {ipures betweien fie audited fpares i respect of ful
fimuncial year ended March 31, 2024 und published figures for half year ended September 3, 2033 which were subject 10 limited revie,

The coisolidated financial vedults rebting 1o quaricy ended Mareh 31. 2024 are (he balancing figsrces between the sndited Tiures in respect of full
fimtnciel vear ended March 31, 2024 and published figures for the period ended Decembier 31, 2023 which were subject fo- Timited review,

The CGronp hiud onlsianding seéured non-converlible dehentires (NCLs} amoanting 1o Rs. 1,500 croves for STRPP A STREP 82, und $TRPP C which
will nudure Trony $ih sneiversary o (3th anmiversary, 1310 aniniversary 10 TR anmiversary, 18t anniversary to 23th mmiversary of alloiment
icspecetivety, The NCDs are fisied on Bumbay Stock Exchange {BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE). The seoirity cover exeeeds (0% of (e
principal and interest amount af NCEs as al 31 March 2024,

Kot of Sevatity Tor Mon Convertible debentures:
The debentnre halders are secured by

a) a first ranking pari passi Secority Interest over the Trusks inwpovable assels (iF anyd, both presnd and Rayce. The Trust ddes oM own ey
immwvable property ot the present e, In the: event, Qs Tt acquires any imimoyvable propeny in fulure, tie Tt shall mongage said prgeny
withiii |80} {onc hundred cinlity) davs (Fom the duti of noquisiion ol suih imavible assets. The Debenwre Trusice shall he-hatharised 1o do all acts.
deeds, and enier into necessary documents, agreema, ameiulments and/or modificions. 98 way be reqnired (o give effect the same, inchufing
earrving ol ihé dne diligence as may be required hy Debentuee Trustee;

1) a first ranikilag pari passu Sccurity Interest-over the Hypoibecated Assets (including Reccivables ). both present and fuinre: and

) Neggiive Lien Undenaking

d) corporate puarmice-execuied by the Project 5PV (NHIFPL) in Bivaur of the Debentuce Trustee (o gumsuniecing the due repayment af e seoured
vbligations in accordance with the terms of the. Debennre Trast Decd,

The Raird ol Directors ol the [rvesiment Manager has declared distribution fo Jannary 2024 of" Rs. 0.631 per nnit which comprises of Rs, 1,606 pef
unit as interest spd R, (1025 per unit as ather inconie an suzplus funds at the Trusy level in their meeting held on 4t Marcl, 2024, Furber, the Board
of Directors of die Invesimeni Momager has declaréd distribution for Fobraary 2024 & March 2024 of Rs, 6.703 per unit which comprises of Ks.
t.687 perunil as interest and Ry, 0,01 % per unit as ollier income on surplus fonds at the Trst fovel in thefr meeting held an 27 May, 2024,

The Board of Directoes of the nvesiment Manager bas detkired distribution for Quaner 3 of FY 2023-24 of Rs. 1.697 per it which comprises of
Ra. 1.693 por unil as inferest and s, 0.009 per unil 95 olber income-on surplus funds at the Trust level i their meeting beld on Znd February, 2024,
The Baowrd of Directors of the Invesiment Manager kil declared disteibution for Quarier 2 of FY 2023-14 of Rs. 1,816 per unit which comprises of
®s. 1774 por upit i interest and Rs, 0.042 per il is oBgr income o surplas finds al-the Trast bovel in their mecting held an St Novenber. 2023
and the Beard of Dircctacs of fie nvesinent Monager hi d-.chlmd distribution for Quarter | of FY 2023-24 6f Rs. 1.734 per unit which compriscs of
5. 1,742 per unit as jiterest and Bs_0.012 per il as oiber icome on surpivs funds at the Urast Jevel in dieir mecting held on LIl August, 2023,

Provision for Majur Maintenanee.
‘The group has a conmmxctival obligaiion t¢ maintain the perlormance slandards of the Praject Highways in respeit of riding guality und allicd micasures
as per the perfornnnce parmmeders stipukifed wader the respective Concession Agreoments. Crst of snch obligation is measuved at the best estingly of
the cxpemdlitire required 1o settk the obligation i the balanee sheel date wnd recognised over e peripd at the end of which the averlay-is estimated to
he carmied out using Discounted Cﬂsh Floawws method with tlw discennt rafe faken os. tllc nb};-ﬁ'cl.. Interest rafe e e dlscduntmg Fik

'c_;,u!ﬂmg o Rs 4 Tg

filrin mink\tn?mmﬁl:.'
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Notes to the conselidated financial resnlfs for the quarter, linlf year and yewr: eaded Ended March 31, 2024

|

[H

4

2 Indtial Improvement Worls

4 per the concession ugreement between NEIPEL md NITA), the goncessimnire is oblizared o indertake initiad Inprovemenl warks s gpixified i
Seheddle B indlmiing ceriain tmprovement works required initially and shen 10 exiond seqaired repuiins waienance, regnlar upkeep af the Pmject
Mighway. These obligatians will require autflow of econamic resuiereey and will be {ullilied over the perdod of tme: Therefore, f provision shal be
recopnised ard measured o5 gier il AS 17 for contmetual ohlipations toward the Fair Valug of fillure upgrade services and eorrespandingly the group
shall copitalize the present vilue of provision For upgrade services 1o the intaneibe assel af the thpe off acqeisition.

At the fime of acquisition of SPY"s there was uncerdaindy with respeet 10 the cost estimares Far the initial inprovement werk Lo be done and the emup
was in-discussion willh NHAT e de-scoping of' centain wotk. Firther. as per Ind as 38, ain inkeingible ssset ¢ be recognised it and only. it the cost of
fhe assel can be measured ecliahly,

Sinco the-cost for initinl impravepinl work vais not ascertainable il 1st Dee 2623 finder Ind AS 18] beconse of discussion around de-scoping of
various works, no seliable esiimates confd be made for the Fair Value of e sail scope, This was fanlier sebstantiated with the technical note
prepared hy: the techaical department basis fheir discussion and mectings with NITALand various vendors. Considering that the management has now
aseeripiged the costs based on cantencts awarded and the gige off received froni the PMC, (estimnted as required nnder il AS 38) fins now . based an
discussions wilh its wehnicil consultanls, capiiglised fae inHial improvemen works amounting ta Rs. 1,21.227.32 Lakhs (Undiseounted Vi) on
is) Dee 20723,

Further the group has abio recopiised provisiar for initjal inprovement works as per Ind AS 37 amounting 10 Rs. 1.15.993 43 Lukhs {Present Vodice)
on 151 Decentber 2023 witl corresponding impael in Statcment of Profft amd Loks amaudting to Rx. 112463 Lukhs and Ry, 239683 Lakks on acconnt
of asmonization of inifial improvement work and unwinding of inlerest un provision of initfal improvement respectively.

Actuak initil impravement wark dorc up to March 2024 is Rs. 14.346.87 Lakhs,

The Frust s invested the amouat of Rs. 240,610 Eakl in the cquity sharc capinl of the MHIT Enasiern Projects Private Lisiled {Projeet SFV's - 1)

during the year, NEPPL auquired rights for Toltitg, Mmmagement and Maintenawee of e sevent 1ol] roads mder the concession agreement signed willy
NHAT for consideration of INR-15.69.988.18 Lakhs | Appointed date for the project is we.f 01,04, 2024

Iy cureenk year fhe Trost affered wn issne of 58,57.95.400 units of National Highwiys Wk Trost ©RHIT), for cash 4 a price af 124.]4 per ainit (the
“fsu price™). ipprepating fo * Rs 7.27.206.41 lakh thensgh Iretitutionasl and peeferentinl placement iy accordance with (he Securities and Exclage
Board-ol ndia {Infmsirucisre lavesiment Trast) Rugulations, 2014 inctnding e ralvs, cirgulars and geidelings issuéd thereder,

As fwr Ind AS 36 npairmea of assets, based on management raview on expected faure cish s al veonomie comlitions of the assels of the
Trust, no iruicators af immirment oL nssets exist as on the reponting date. Hence ng provisian for impaioent hus been recognized in the hooks ca the
reporting dale.

The Gronp has nt crenfed defired tax asséis on major sixintenance oblipations, a5 canicd (arwisd business losses will nat e available far wilisation
wiflyin 1e fime Jimid allowable as per e Tneome Tax Act based on the futore prajections of Ui profitability of the emily.

Durizr the year andud 3151 Morch 2024, 1the Ciroup s tker o forther disburserent o amounting 10 Rs, 163 Crores from the Axis Baok Limited-and
Rs. 26 Crores fram fhe Bank of Malmcashtra in accordance with Facility ageecment. The Trust has given the ‘above said amonnt lo Projuet SPY
MHIPIL as Loan a1 the rate of (2.70% p.a. lur indial Improverent works.

Liuring the yeur ended 315t March 2024, the Group bis oblained thesmetion of s, $77 Crores (rom the Axds bank for initial improvimient works of
Reund 2 Asseis. Further Groog has obtained sanetion of Rs. 9900 Crores tromy Beaiks and Financial Instivition for acquistion of Round 3 Assets and
has taken & disbmrsemenr of Rs. X638 Crote during tae yeur , the "Trost has given the said mmont 10 Project 3PV NEPPL, a5 Laan ot the vate of
12.70% p.a. Jor acguistion of Round 3 Assets,

Al valies arc rounded te nenrest balkh. woless oflerwise tTodienied, Cerain amoums that are rzquired 1o he disclosed and do ot ippear due 9 mygnding
ofT are expressed as 600

Previous periodfyear figures Fave been reckassifisd/regrouped wherever necessary to confinn o carment perivd classification,

For and an béhall 6f the National Thighways lufra Investment Managers I"givate Limitéd (Invesiaent '\lm:ur

of National Lichways In
-
7oyl o
jatSingh - Mathew Genrge 73

Complinace (4Ticer Chief Financial Oificer

r\
han Goyal
_ Director
DIIN; (2721330
Place: New Delhi
Dated 27th May. 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Unit Holders of National Highways Infra Trust
Report on the Aavidit of the Standalone Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of National
Highways Infra Trust (“the InvIT” or “the Trust”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Changes in Unitholdet’s Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, the Statement of Net Assets at
fair value as at 31 March 2024, the Statemeat of Total Returns at fair value and the
Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ("NDCFs") for the vear then ended and
notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of material
accounting policy and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
*the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and fto the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Infirastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to
time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together referred
to as the “SEBI InvIT Regulations”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in rule
2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules; 2015, as amended
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the
extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, of the state of affairs of the
Trust as at 31 March 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its
cash flows, its statement of changes in Unitholder's equity for the year ended 31
March 2024, its net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024, its total returns at fair
value and the net distributable cash flows of the Trust for the year ended 31
March 2024. | :




BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Our responsikilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the SEBI
InvIT Regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinien on these matters. We
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

1. Assessmentof \‘Iﬁij}annnent of Investment | Our Audit Procedures
made in and Loans given to the subsidiary | included the following :-
company, National Highways Infra

Projects Private Limited (“NHIPPL") e Assessed the

appropriateness of the
As at March 31, 2024, the carrying amount of |  future cash flows
Equity Investment by the Trust in NHIPPL estimated including value
amounted to Rs. 139,553.52 Lakhs. Further, in use determined, In
the Trust has granted loan to NHIPPL till making this assessment,
date amounting to Rs. 90,95,06.66 Lakhs. we also evaluated the

objectivity, independence
{1: accordance with its accounting policy and and competency of
requirements under Ind AS, the management specialists involved in the
has performed an impairment assessment by pracess;

comparing the carrying value of these
investments made/ loans given to NHIPPL {G | » Assessed the assumptions

their recoverable amount. around the key drivers of

the revenue projections,
For impairment testing, value in use has future cash flow, discount
been determined by forecasting and rates / weighted average
discounting future cash flows of subsidiary cost of capital that were

company. Further, the value in use is highly
sensitive to changes in critical variable used
for forecasting the future cash flows
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including traffic projections for revenues and |

discounting rates. The recoverable amount is
the higher of (a) fair value less cost to sell (b)
valne in use. The determination of the
recoverable -amount fromm  subsidiary
company involves ranagement estimates
and judgment which may affect the outcome.

So, there is an inherent risk in the valuation
of investment/ recoverability of loans, due to
the use of estimates and judgements
mentioned above,

Accordingly, the assessment of impairment
of investment/loans in subsidjary comparny
ias reen determined as a key audit matter.

Refer Note 2.1 (m] for the accounting policy

on lmpairment of Investments & Note 31
relating to Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 36
“Impairment of Assets” in Standalone
Finaneials as at 31 March 2024. Alsb Refer
Note 2.1 () for the Accounting policy on
Financial asset relating to Expected Credit
Loss on Financial Assets for impairment of
loan receivables in the Standalone Financials
asat 31 March 2024,

NHIPPL, we havé obtained

and considered
Management evaluations
of recoverability of leans
granted ta NHIPPL.

Tested the arithmetical
accuracy of Impairment
Sheet.

QObtained Managerient
Representation in this
respect.

Computation and  disclosures as
prescribed in the SEBI InvIT regunlations
relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair
Value and Total Returns at Fali Value

As per SEBI InvIT regulations, the Trust is
required to disclose statement of net assets
at fair value and statement of total returns at
fair value. The fair value is determined by
forecasting and discounting future cash
flows from the operations of the investse
entities  which involves management
estimates and judgement. These estimates
and judgements include discounting rates,
Tax rates and inflation rates which are
considered for computing the fair value.

There js an inherent risk in the computation
of fair value due to the use of estimates and
judgements mentioned abovea,

Therefore, computation and disclosures of
statement of net assets at fair vilue and
statement of total returns at fair value is
considered as a Key Audit Matter.

Refer Note-2.1(m) Significant Accounting

Qur

Aundit Procedures

included the following :-

Obtained
understanding
requirements. of SEBI
InviT  regulations for
disclosures relating to
Statement of Net Assets at
Fair Value and Statement
of Total Returns at Fair
Value.

the
of the

Assessed the Valuation
Réport issued by the
Independent. Valuer
engaged by the
management. Alsa
assessed the
appropriateness of the
Trust's valuation

methodology applied in
determining ¢
values,




Assumptions - Fair Valuation and
Disclosures and Statement of net assets at
fair value and Statement of total returns at
fair wvalue in the standalone financial
statements.

¢ Obtained Management
Representation in this
respect. '

® Tested the arithmetical
accuracy of computation
in the statement of net
assets and total returns at
fair value.

¢ Ensured that disclosures
is In compliance with
SEBl InvIT regulations
reflating to the statement
of net assets at fair value
and the statement of total
returns at fair value.

Related Party Transactions and

‘Disclosures

The Tiust has undertaken trausactions with
its related parties in the normal course of

business. These include making loans to

Project SPV; earning interest on such loans,
fees far services provided by related parties

‘ta Trust etec. as disclosed in Note 34 of the

Standalone Financial Statements.

Considering the importance of accuracy and
completeness of related party transactions
and its disclosures in the aforesaid
standalone fipancial statements, we have
considered this as a key audit matter-

Qur Audit Procedures
included the following :-

+» Obtained the
understanding of policies,
processes and procedures
in respect of identifying
related parties, necessary
approvals, recording and
disclosure of related party

transactions, including
compliance of
transactions and

disclosures in accordance
with InVIT regulations.

» Tested the related party
Iransactions with the
underlying contracts and
other supporting
documents for
appropriate authorization
and approval for such
transactions.

* Reviewed the minutes of
governing body of Trust in
connection with
transactions to assess
authorization by the
Board and whether the
transactions are in__the
ardinary e &




business at arm’s length
and if accordance with
the ‘SEBI InvIT
regulations.

s Obtained Management
Representation in this
respect.

¢ Ensured that the
disclosures made in
accordance  with the
requirements of Ind AS
and SEBI InvIT
regitlations.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the informatior included in the
Management Biscussion and Analysis Report, Investment Manager's Report
including annexures to Investment Manager's Report and other information as
required to be given by SEBl InvIT Regulations, but does mnot ‘iiclude the
standalone financial statements and our report thereon.

Cur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other iriformation is materially tnconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement af this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the preparation
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position as at 31 March 2024, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and the movement of the Unitholder's equity
for the year ended 31 March 2024, the net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024,
the tétal returns at fair value and the net distributable cash flows of the Trust for
the year ended 31 March 2024, in accordance with thé regilirements of the SEBI
InvIT Regulations, Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(g




accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not.inconsistént
with SEBI InvIT Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
a'd'equate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI InvIT
Regulations for-safeguarding of the assets of the Trust and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting ‘policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and.design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls for ensuring the accuracy and cempleteness of accounting
recofds, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due ¢ fraud and ervor.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directers is
responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern,
dishlosing, as applicable, matters related ta going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of Investment Manager
either intends to liguidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager are also responsible for overseeing
the Trust’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
consgidered material if, individually or in the aggregate; they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to these risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control

e Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, b '
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of t
inteinal controls.

e 2 et




« Evaluate theé appropriateéness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Board of Directors of the investment Manager.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of Investment
Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our opinion. Qur canclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Hawever, future
events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial stdtements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalene
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner thatachieves fair presentation.

Materizlity is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeahle user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i}
planning the scope of cur audit work and in evaluating the results of our waork;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financlal
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requireinents regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters e6mmunicated with those charged with governance, we
determine, those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024 and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or-when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing:so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.




REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit and as required by SEBI InviT Regulations, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
thie. best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our

audit;

b) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
incdluding Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash
Flows, Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity, the Statement of Net
Assets at fair value, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the
Statement of Net Disiributable Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the beooks of account of the Trust;

¢) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a} of Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not inconsistent

with SEBI InviT regulations.

d) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Protection and Education Fund by the Fund.

For A. R. & Co.
Chartered Accoun
FRN. 002744C

S

CA Mohd Azam Ansark
Partmer
Membership No: 0511623

UDIN: 2WSW23 @ wcss F VAGS

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05-2024




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SERBI Regisération Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET-AS AT MARCH 31,2024

FAMN arsurntx er iy € Nikdy pnlers athervlse siapedf

Parliculurs Naies Ay at As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2033
Assels
1) Nog - Current Assers
() Financial Asscis
(i) nvesiments 3 3,80.163.52 1,39,551.52
(i) Loans 4 22 AC,043.05 $,90.606,06
L) Qlber Financial Assels 5 10,174.48 9,670:84.
i{b) Other Non-Carirtent Assets & 9543 -
Tutal pon cdrrent asseds 26,30,476.4% 10,39,831.02
2) Current Agiets
(2} Finuncial- Assels .
{i) Casli and Cash Bquivilenis 7 0,718.40 14 080.38
(i) Othet Finaneinl Assets 8 87.534.15 4669216
() Current Tax Asscts (Nel) 9 T -~
te) Oubier Currem Asscts 10 693,14 111947
Total cuerent nssets 1,18952, 4 1,892.01
Total Asscts 27,49,429.22 11,01,.72343
Foquity ani Linbilities :
Equity !
I} Unit Capital 1% 14,67.093.46 7.41,604,32 :
23} nisial Senlement Amount 010 19
3} Other Bauity 12 1.02,760.63 60,432.64
Total Equity 15.69,854.19 802,037,086
Lizxbilities
1) Non-Current Lisbilifics
{a] Financial Liabitities
(i) Borrowinps 13 £163,394,04 2 42,158.33
‘Tatal Non-Current Liahilitles 11,63,394.04 242.158.4
2) Current Linhilitics
{a) Financial Uiabilitics ¢
{i) Borrowings 14 10,5400 2,000.00
(it} Trade PPayables 13
tay Total Quistanding, ducs of micrn and small enferprises 36:17 388
{b) Total mnls.'tam‘ling__ ducs of creditors other than micra and 733,58 e
small cnterprises _
(it} Onher Financral Li abikities L6 5.162103 5.129.59
{b) Current Tax Tiabilitics (Nei) 17 - 8.9%
(e} Othwr Cyurreant [Lighilitivs 18 194,29 42.50
Total Current Linbilities 16,180:09 7.527.04
Tuial Egeiity and Liabititics 27,49,429.22 11,00;,723.03
Mauteria) Acconnting Folicics i-2
“The aecrnpanying teles form an integral part of these tinancial 17
Sstuicments

This is the Ralance Sheet refened 10 in our repart of even dae.
For A.R. & Co,
Chartered Accaunlanis

Fur and on behalr of Bonrd of Nirectors of the National

Highways Infra Mvestment Managers Private Limiled
(Acting as Investment Manpager of National Highways
Infry Trusl)

e o

Pariner
M.Ko. 511623

Pt : 27th May 2004
Place * New Doih

Director
DIN: 12721580

-+

Mathew George
Chief Fingncial Oicer

Mahavir-Farsad Shasna
Director
DIN; 063158417

T

iance Oificer




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21:0014

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(AR s are i € okl urfery wihermee afeuil

Pauticnlars Nates [For the year endud For five year ended
March 31, 2024 Mavch 31, 2023
Locome wad Gains
Indcrest income on b glven 1o subsidiarics 9 £.25,143.51 94 69830
Interest Income on fixed deposits 10 786,724 35228
profit on sale of investments 1 840.040 42220
Other income 22 4.21 31659
Tutal Income 12473545 83.784.37
Exprenses
Igvestiment Manager Foes 1,400.00 136170
Trusiee Fels 9.60 Rt}
Valuntion expenscs 1107 4.00
Annual bisting lees 5380 2000
Ratiug fees 7.73 R.20
Audit Fees
- Stanutory sudil fees 23 575 90
« Other audit services (including certificntion) pk| 1.72 088
Custadian Fees 315 UE:2S
Finance Cost y. 5,139.68 16.590.17
Other Bxpenges 25 156.94 19116
Total Expenses 2722114 1808145
frrofit before Tax D7 A14.31 77.106.92
Tax Expenses 24
Gurrent Tax 6972.56 471,59
Cyrrent Lax - eazlicr yoars (237 0.01
Delerred Tk expenseferedit) - {6
Totab Tax 395.04 4.4
I"rofif after T'nx 96,819.27 113617
Other Comprehensive Tncome .
A (i) Items that will not be reclossilied o Profit or Loss - -
{i7) lncame wx relating 10 jlems thal will st b2 reclassified 1o prolif or loss - -
B iy ltems that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
(il ncome tax relating to s that witl st be reclassitied Lo profit or loss - -
“Fotal G nmprehensive lucome for the vear 96,319.27 1123617
Earpings per Unit
[3asic 27 12,85 11.76
Driluted a7 12,85 1076
Material Accounting Policics -2
‘e aceainpanying poles form an infegral part of these finamcial stalements. 347

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss'welesred (o in our reporl of even date.

For A.R. & Ca.
Chariercd Acoountants

Firm Repistration No. 00274)£

Nl

CA Muohd. Apsm Ansnti
Pariner
M.No. 511623

Dale ; 27ih May 2024
Pluace : New Helhi

For and on beball of Bomd of Direclurs ol the National
Wighways lafri lavestment Managers Privae Limited {Acting
as Investroeot Nanager of Nationat ighways Infra Trust)

n Garal
Direclor
DIN: 02721580

M_nlhi.wv' George
Chief Financial ©1jeer

T

Mahavir Parsad Shayma
Vircouny

DIN: 031584135




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

SEBI Registrat

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE

ion Number :- IN/InvI'F/20-21/0014

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

fil campeniy-uire: b € bk amilexs utherwine pated?

Pariicninrs For the Year ended Far ifie year ended
plareh 31,2024 Nurch 31, 2023

A Gosh Tlows from operatiog activities
Net Profitiioss) Bofors Tax 97,514,310 77, 706.92-
Adjusiments:
Finance Cosl (net) 2501590 16,5M.17
Imicrest lacame on Bank FDR (786.94) (A52.28)
Jntercst lncome on Long Term Lean given lo Spve (§.23.103.31) (94,698.30)
Drofites redemplion of Mutual Funds {540.9%) {422.200] -
Operating cash Muws helmre Working Capital Chanpes {2,201.03} £1,175.11)
Afavements in Working Capital
Decrease / {nerense) in Other Nan Currenl Financinl Assels (050 {15424
Deerense / {inerease} in Other Current Financial Assels (202141 £290.62)
Decrease { (Tncrease) in Other Currenit! HMag-Custent Assels 5719.16 (A34.96)
Jierease / (Decrense) in Vrade & Qiher Payables (312.33) 395.13
Increase / (Devrense) in Otyer Financiai Linbilities - (.00
nercase / (Decrease) in-Other Current Liabilitics 151,79 {37.3n
Inercase £ (Decrepse} in Curnent Tax l.iahikbics - -
Cush, used in operaling hetivities 12,075 .45) {1,9490.8M)
Incame Tax paid (711.06) {426.67)
Net Crsh Flows Mromd{used in) operaiing netivities -4 {2,786.51} (2407.54)

B. Cush flows from investing activitics
f.ong Tenp Loans piven {13.49,436.40)] {2,84.906.66)
Purchase of Non Current Inveslments (2.40,61(:.00) -
Invaeskiment in FOR (447 .00 {5,29%.18)
Profit on redemplion af Mutral Fynds adu 99 4324
Inuterest fecoived on Lony Term Laan given £2_549.94 58,606 .
Interest Received Trom Bank F34.73 J6a.40
ted Cash Flows used in investing activities - B {15,06,367.74) 2,32,014.34}

. Cosh lows Cront finzning activilies
Praceeds Irom Jsste of unil capisal 7.27,206.41 14301367
Rxpense incurred wiwards initial public delat, offering - {1.630:40)
Espense incurred Lowands insti tiomal unit allotment {1,471.46) (1.099. 133
Processing Fee paid (L 482,163 {197.00)
Procceds Fom Long Term Barmowings g 54,700.00 1,50.000.00
Disuribution paid La wnil bolders (54.491.29) {34.927,36)
Repaymcnt of Long Term Rurrowings (3,759.75) (LH0S8)
Finanee Costs Paid {24,90%.31) (11,180.36)
Net Cush Flows fromi(Used in) Gnancing activities -C 15,15, 79527 2,42.908.34
Net (nereaso/Deerease in Cash ané Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 16.638.03 828705
Cash and Casly Equivalems il the Beginming of the Yoar |4,080.38 5791733
Cash snd Cash Eguivalends at fl e -of the Year (Refer Note 7) M, 71541 14,040,533




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SERI Registration Number :-IN, InvIT/20-21/0014
STANDALONE STATFMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(AR omrormue g, 2 firkh smbes oilrertvise volvd)

Reconcilistion of lakitities aviving from Finaacing Activities pursuant to Ind AS 7- Statement of Cash Flovix

Nel Debl Recognition . (Al aimounls are in T Iakh unless ofbenwise dtaked)
Pucticntars For ihe yea r_ellderl For tlie year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

u} Carrying amotnt of debi at the hegimiing of the yene 2.94,158.33 146,537 80
by Additional borroswings duiing the year £.84,700.00 1,50:00000
¢) Repayments diring, (he vear (3.759.70) (F.OK98)
&) Other adjustmentsisetlemems daring the yeur - -
¢} Transactian Cost adikstment 1 1.5459.06) (1:30819)
6 Carrving smoynl of debta the end of e year 15, 73:448.04 2,94,158.13
Note:

£i) Thee sbove Statement of Cash Flows has becn grepared under the indirect method as.sel out in "Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flaws”.
{ii) Amaunt in bracket represent oatfllows.
This is the Cash Flaw Statcment telerredl ia i our report of even date.

For AR &Cu. For aad an behatl of Baard of Directors af the Natonl
Chartered Accowntand . Highways Inirs Eovestment Managers Private Limited
Firm Registeation N .@ ' (Acting as Favestment Man: ager of Natianal ITighways Infva

Wbz

Klalvavir Parsad Sharmas

CA Mahd. Azum Ansari ="

Pasiner Direclor Lhigector
M. N 311623 DIN: 02721550 DIN:O3 58413
e 2 27 May 2034 #Eathew George G fmanﬂ v

PMace : New Qelhi Chicf Einancial Gificer Compliance Oilicer




A, Tnitial Settlement Amount

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBX Registration Number :- IN/lnvIT/20-21/0014

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS EQUITY FOR THE YEAR LNDED

MARCH 31,2024

{1 amnns are i $ Tabh rhess atfurwtse i

Purticnlars Amount
Bulunce as at April 1, 2022 0.10
Changes in unil capitth -
Balanee ns ai March 31, 2023 g
Changes in unil copital -
Balance as ut March 31, 2024 010

&. Unit Capilal*

LA s e it F bin ihoss aflrmi Rt ]

Particolars Number of unit Amgunt
Balance as a April 1, 2022 5%,52,00,000 59944282
Chavges in unil capital 13,52,05,200 143,012.67
One time issue expenses - (B52.17%
Badonee os i March 31, 2033 72,64,05,200 741,604.32
Charges in unit capital 585795300 7.27.206.41
One Wine issae CXpeRses - (1LHTID
Ralunce as a March 31, 2024 1,31,22,90,68¢ 14.67.0493,46

lssue cxpenses ol Rs. 1,717.26 fakhs (Macch 3K, 2

capitdl in accardance with ind AS 12 Finuncial Instruments: Preseatalion’

C. Other Eqguity**

073: Rs 85217 lulths) incurred in conngelion with issus of umils ave heva reduced Fom the Unithalders

(A5 amonngs re i 2 kaki unboss ofheris: siaicd)

Pavticalars

Reserves uii) Surplug

lems of Other
Comprehensive Incams

Hems that will not be
veclassificd te profit or loss

Remeasurcment of Defined

Tatal

Reiained Exrnings Henefii Qhligatiun! Plag
Ralance a1z af April 1, 2022 18.124.33 - 15,124.33
Profit for the your T7.23617 - 7123647
L.ess: -
Disyribution {o uni, hglders -
Return on capital - - =
Interest 34.183,66 - 34,183.06
Ohier incoame Tdd.20 - F44.20
Balance a5 41 March 3E, 2023 nA32.64 - 6043261
Prolit for ihe year 819,27 = 25.819.27
Less:
Distributian 10 unit halders®
Inderest 3370168 - 51,701 6%
Oiher lncome 789,60 - 789.60
Baloonee as at March 31, 2024 102,760,063 - L2, 7600

*The distsibuticn relates 1o the distribations during |
the distribution relating (6 ihe period Febneary 01, 2024 to March 3
holders aze based an the Nut Distributabie Cash Flows ol ihe Trust under the SEB!

* Refer Note 11
12 Refer Note 12

For AR. & Ca.

Ty ! - -. e
f.}l.ll‘ttl'ﬂ(} Aceountan //' 2 C \\
Fiem Registratian N ;" 40

Y

CA Molhd, Aram Ansart
Pariner

M. Na. 511621

Date : 27%h May 2024
Place * Noew Delhi

Tie Tnaneiad year along with the listribulion selated o thel

inv)T Regulations.

1 ast quarter of FY 2022-23 and dies nol include
1, 2624 which will be paid afier March 31. 2024 The disiributions by the Trust ko ils wnit

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of the Natiomst Highways
Enfra favesimenl Managess Private Limited {Acting a5 Inyesiment
Manager of Natinsal Highways Tnfra Trust)

resh Krkilan Goyal
Director
OIN: Q2721588

Mathew Geirge-

Chiel Financial Officer

a2

Alsthavie Parsad Sharmis
Direclor
DIN: 03158413

wd T

Compliznce Officer




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number ;- IN/InyIX/20-2£/4014
Notes to Standzlone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Disclosures pursuant to SEBI cirenlars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Div3/F/CIR/2021/1673
dated 29 November 2021 issued under the InvIT regulaticns)

Standalone Statement of Net Asseis at Fair Value (Al anraurtts are in 3 Gkl unless othewise sielh
A5 uaf Ahsirch 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2623

Particialars i Bonk value Fair vatue® Bouk value Fair valoe™

A, Assets 374042022 28.25,199.08 11,01.723.03 11‘57,786.;-31
B: Linbilitics {at book value) L1,79.575.03 11,79,375.03 2.99,685,97 299 68547
C. Net assets (A-B) 15,69,854.19 16,46, 225 %,02,037.06 ¥.58,100.54
13, Na of uniis 1,31.22,00,600 1.31.2200,600 72,6405, 30048 12 61052000
E. NAY (CID) 119.64 12546 150.41 118.13

~Fair vilues of ol asscls relaling (o the Trust agat March 31, 2024 &-March 31. 2023 s disclosed abave are based on the indepandont valuer report.

Standatone Statement of Total Return at Fair Value: (AN ewnns are i ¥ Edda anless oliwpwise stand)
Farticnlars . As at As at

Murch 31, 20624 March 31, 2023
‘Total camprekensive income for the year (As per the § tandalone Statemesii of Profil and Lass) 9631927 77.250.17
Add: Drher changes in Tair value. for the year * 76,270.46 $6,063.4%
Total redurn 1,73,189.73 1,33,299.66

* In the abave stalemenl, ofiee hanges in Qi vatue For 1he period ended March 35, 2004 and March 31, 2023 have been compuled based o the indupendent
vyluer report.

The aceompunying notes form an infopral part of the Standalone Financial Staements.
Fhis is the Standalonc Statement of Ner Assels at Fair Vatue and Standalone Staement af Total Return at Fair Value refermed (o in our report o oyen dae.
For A.R. & Co. For and on bebaall of Buard of Directars-al e ¥atioml Higirays Infra

Charteréed-Accoantants Investment Managers Privale Limised {Acting a5 lovestiment Manager of
Firm Registration No, 002744C National Highways Infra Trust)

) | [y -
CA Maohd. Azan ;"‘ Nlhavir Farsad Sharma
Partier £ A Rirecior
M.No. 511623 \\ &7 DRN: 02721560 BIN: (3158413

Date : 27th Muy 20NQST RS
Place : Xew Delbi

2.

Mathow Gearpre Gu mz mgh E

Chicl Finaneid O icer Compliznee QlMieer




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI-Registration Nuinber ;- INAnyIT/20-21/0014
‘Disclosures ursuant io SEBI circulars (SEBI Mastér Cireular No.
CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29th November, 2021 issuied nnder the InvIT regulations)

Statentent of Net Distribuable Cash Flows (NDEF) _
LA avupuns i  bakla i vl stdel}

8. Tucticalars Feir the year ended 31si| For (e year eaded 315t
Ne| _ _ Alarch 2024 Mareh 3023
1 [Prelit after tiex ss per Statemesit of profit and lassfincome and expenditure (Standatene) 96.819.27 7123412
Al

2 | addc, Depreciation aud amoriization us per statement of prafit and lnss wecount. Incade of -
{mpetiement reversal, same needs to be deducted from peofit and loss. -

3 |AddiLess: Lipss/pain on.sale oF infvastruciuns assels -

4 |Add: Proceuds From sale oF finlrastructuie-assets adjusted for the following: -

related debis seillied or due e he settled from sade prodeeds;

directly sinbutzhle transaction Cesls,

proveeds reinvesicd or planned to be reinvested as jicr Regutation 18{A(a} af the vl

repulationg

5 |Add: Praceeds from sale oF inliastrclure assets not distributed pursupat 1o a earlier plan 10 re- -
invest, if sweh proceeds are noe intended 10 be invesied subsaquently. net of aay prafit! (Joss)
recopnised in profil and loss dcceunt
6 |Addf Less: Ay ather ifem of non- eash expense/ non cask income (net of actaal casiv Mows for (32,058.04) {45.002.00)
1hase items), il deemed necessary by the lovestmeni Manager.
For cxample, any decieusel increpse in carrying amoudt oF ait assel or a linhility recopniseo i
profit and Toss fincome and cxpendilare on measnrenen of he asset or the Fability m fair vk,
Interest cost as pur cifective iiersst e wethod, defereed fax bease yemts recoguised on a
straight fine basis. cle,
7 |Less: Repayment of external debt privipad £ redecable prefercrce shives £ debentures, 1. 4.206.73) (181098}
(cxcluding refivaneing) / nel cash set aside to comply with DSRA requircrent nader {vun
SLEFCCIMERLS,
B | Yot Adjustonent (17) {86,26-L.77) 46,012.9%)
9 INet Surplns (C] = (A+D] (NDCF) 10,554.51 FIRJEAL
10 | Add: facome recopnised fn previvus vear and réceived in this year 46.688.43 MEGS LAY
T1 [Less - Intérest txpenses rocogrised i previous yeur and paid in this year {5.129.5% -
12 |Dislihniable Cagh Flow 5210335 41874.32
13 {T.css: Amonal already distributed fo Unithatders (for the perfod [rom Aprif 23 w Jan 20(°Y (os 42.843.37 3031578

the period from Avri) 22 g Ceysmber 223 _
14 lakence Net Disiribulabie Cash Flaws fit the ver endedt dlorch 36, 2024 ,269.98 F1,648.51




a)

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Nates To Standaloue Financial Statements for the year énded March 31, 2024

TRUST INFORMATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

National Highways Infra Trust (“Trust” or “InvIT™) #s an irrevecable trust registered under the
provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on October 19, 2020. It is registered under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure [nvestment Trust) Regulations, 2014 on QOclober 28,
2020 having registration number IN/InvIT/20-21/0014.

The Trust was setup by National Highways Authority of India (“NHAI" or the “Sponsor’). The
Trustee tothe Trust is IDBI Trusteeship Setvices Limited (the “Trustee™) and Investment Manager
for the Trust is National Highways [nfra lnvesiment Managers Private Limited (“Investment
Manager™),

The Trust has been formed to invest in infrastructure assefs primarily being in the road sector in
India. The Trust’s road projects dre implemented and held through special purpose vehicles
(“Project SPVs"/ “Subsidiaries™), The units of the Trust were listed in Bombay Stock Exchange
and National Stock Exchange on November 10, 2021.

During Y 21.22, the Trust acquired 100% equity control in Natignal Highway Infra Projects
Private Limited {the “Project SPV”} from the Sponsor with effect from November 03, 2021. The
Project SPV (NHIPPL) has entered inio five concession agreements with National Highway
Authority of India ("NHAI™) on March 30, 2021 for Tolling, Management, Maintenance and
Transfer of five toll ruad projects for a period of 30 years from the Appeinted Date, The Appointed
Pate has comumenced on 16.12,202.3,

In previous financial year, Project SPV (NHIPPL) entered into three new concession agreements
with Natiopal Highway Authority of India (“NHAI™) on September 26, 2022 for Tolling.
Management, Maintenance and Transfer of three toll road projects for a period of 20 years from
the Appointed Date; The Appointed Date has commmenced on 29.10.2022.

During Current financial year, the Trust has invested in the equity share capital of the NHIT
Eastérn Projects Private Limited (Project SPV - NEPPL) & holding 100% equity share capital.

The Project SPV (NEPPL)has entered into seven concession agreements with National Highway
Autharity of India (*"NHAT™) for Tolling. Management, Maintenance and Transfer of seven iof]
road projecis for a period of 20 years from the Appointed Date. The Appointed Date has
conumenced on 01.04.2024,

The registered office of the Trust is G-5 & 6, Setor-10, Dwarka, Delhi - 110075,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the
bourd of directors of the Investment Manager on 27 May, 2024.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

The Staidalone Financial Statement of the Trust for the Year ended March 31, 2024 has been
prepared in ac,mmance w1th Indian Acwuntmg Standard, as detined m Ruie 2(] )(a} of the




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Notes To Standalone Financial Statements-for the-year ended March 31, 2024

Exchange Board of india (Infrastructure Investment. Trusts) Regulations, 2014 (“the TnviT
Regulations” (as amended) including SEBI Master Citenlar SEBI/HO/DDHS-Pol)-
2PICIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 herein after referred to as “SEBI Master Circular”. Refer
note 11 on presentation of "Unit capital" as "Equity" instead of compound financial instruments
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 32- Financial Tnstruments: Presentation). The Trust
has applied the accounting policies consistently during the periods presented.

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Trust comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2024, and the Standalone Statemeot of DProfit and Less {including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Stateient of Cash Flows, the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Unitbolders’ Equity for the year then ended, the Standalone statement of Net Assets
at fair value as at March 31, 2024, the Standalone statement of Total return at fair vaiue, and the
Standalone statenent of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) for the year then ended and a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of
the Corupanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended to the extent nof
consistent with the SEBI (infrastructure luvesiment Trusts) Regolations, 2014, as amended and
the circulars issued thereafier.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance
with accounfing principles generally accepted in India. Further. the Standalone Financial
Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis using uniform policies as explained in the
accounting policics below for iike transactions and other events in similar circumstances, excepl
for certain financial instrurrient and contingent consideration which are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period as explained in relevant accounting policies.

The financiat statements are presented in Tndian Rupees (INR) which is the Trust’s functional and
preseiitation currency, and all amounts are roinded (o the nearest Lakh (*00,000) and two decimals
thereof, except as otherwise stated.

Impact of the initial application of new and amended IND ASs that are effective for current
year:

In the current year, the Trust has applied the below amendments to Ind ASs that are effective for
an annual period that begins on or after April 1, 2023.

(a) The Trust has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 - “Presentation of Financial Statements”
for the first time in the current year. The amendments change the requirements in Ind AS | with
regard to disclosure of accounting poticies. The amendmenis replace all instances of the term
‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy information’, Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other information inclnded in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expeeted to influence decisions that the primary users of
general-purpose financial statements make oii the basis of those financial statements.

(b) The Trusi has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 8 - “Accounting Policies, Changes in
Aceounting Estimates and Errors™ for the fitst time in the current year, The amendments replace
tlie definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under
the new definition, decounting estimates are “monetary amounis in financial statements that are
sub ect o measurement uncertainty”, The definition of a ¢hange in accounting estimates was




| NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA, TRUST
Notes To Standalone Financial Statements for the yeir ended March 31,2024

2.1 Sumnary of Material accounting policies

a)

k)

Current versus non-cuirent clagsification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing aud their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Trust has identified twelve monihs as its operating cycle for
determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with-customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transterred (o the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Trust expects
lo be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Trust has concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangemeits because it typically contrals the services before transferring
them to the customer. Revenue is measured at the transaction price of the consideration received
or receivable, excluding the estimates of varjable consideration that is allocated to that
performance obligation. taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government,

The specific recognition criteria deseribed below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or ag) the Trust satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or serviees to its eusiomers.

Interest income - Interest income is recognised using the effective interest methad.

Dividends - Dividend income is recognised when the Trust's right to receive the payment is
established.

Other items - Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to receive the income-

arises.
Taxes on income

Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on current year's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and. liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current incorite tax charge is
caleulated based on tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in fulf, using the liability method on temporary. ditferences arising
between the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability that af the time of the transaction affects neither the accounling profit nor

taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined-using tax rates and laws that haye been

enacted or substantively énacted by the end of the feperting period and are expected io apply when

lated deferred income tax assei/liability is realized or settled.
gaway
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Notes Te Standalong Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temparary differences and unused tax losses
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be dvgilable to utilize those temporary
differences and losses.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Capital Commitments
Contingent Liabilitics

Contmg:.nt liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of 2 present obligation arising from past events,
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the oblipation or a
present obligation arising fram past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of'a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the ameount of the obligation.

Financial Instriements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Trost becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issuc of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducled from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriale, on inifial recognition. However, transaction costs directly atiributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
are recognized imumediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the Trust determines that the fair-value at initial recognition ditfers from the transaction price,
the Trust accounts for that instrument at thai date as follows:

« at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price
i an aetive market for an identical assel or liability (i.e. a Tevel 1 input) or based on a
valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. The Trust recognises the
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a.gain
or loss.

o in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price, Alter.
Initial recognition, the Trust recognises that deferred difference as 2 gain or loss only (o
the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market. parttmpanls
would take into account when pricing the asset or fability.




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST _
Notes To Standaldie Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Financial Assets

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measuared in their entirety at eithet amortized cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

L. Classification of Financial Assets

Financial Assets that meet the folfowing conditions are subsequeritly measured at amortised cost
(unless the' same aie designated as fair value through profit or loss (FV TPL)):

¢ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

s  The contraciual terms of instruinent give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding..

Financial-Assets at FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and all changes are
recognized in profif or loss.

2. Amortized cost and effective interest method

Income is recognized on an effective interest inethod as per Tud AS 109 for financial assets other
than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in the Statement
of Prefit and 1L.oss and is mciuded in the "Other income" line iten:.

3. Impairment of financial assets (Expected credit loss model)

An impairment loss on financial asset is established when there is objective evidence that the Trust
will not be able to collect afl amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Impairment loss, if any, are recognised in Statement of Profit or .oss for the period.

4. De-recognition of financial assets

The Trust derecognize a financial asset when the contractual rights to the-cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.

On de-recognition of 4 financial asset in its entirety, 1he difference between the asset's carrying
anount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the curpulative gaiil or loss
that had been recopnized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized
in- profit or loss if such gain of loss would have otherwise been recognized in the Statement of
Profit or-Loss on dispesal of that financial asset.

b} Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair vatue and, in the case of loans
borrowings:and payables; net of directly attributable transaction costs.



g)

h)

- NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Notes To Stardalone Financial Statemients for the year ended March 31,2024

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are subsequently measured at
fair value. '

De-recagnition of firancial liabilitics

Financjal liabilit}f is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
carcelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the-terms of an existing liability substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of the iew liability. The difference in the respective carriéd amount is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

¢} Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by Trust are classified as either financial labiiities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and
financing activities.

Cash {low from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for
the effects of;

e changes during the period 1n operating receivables and payables, transactions of a non-
cash nature:

s non-cash items such as depreciation; provisions, déforred taxes, unrealised foreign.
currency gains and losses;

@ all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash arnd short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
integeal part of the Trust’s cash nianagement.

Investment in subsidiaries

The Trust accounts for its invesuments in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses
(if any) in its separate financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balanee sheet comprise balance with banks and short-term
depos wnh an orlgmal matuuty nf three mnnthb (}r less_ and Jnveslmenls in ove ;
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For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equiivalents consist of cash and short-
tertn deposits, as defined above. net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an
integral part of the Trust’s cash management.

Borrowing Casts

Borrowing costs include interest caleulated using the effective inferest method, amortization of
aticillary costs and other costs the Trust incurs in commection with the borrowing of funds.

Bomowing eosts are expensed jn the period in which they are incurred.

Distribution to unit holders

The Trust recognises a liability to make cash distributions 1o unit holders when the distribution is
authorised and a Jegal obligation has been created. As per the SEBI InvIT Regunlations, a
distributioii is anthorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager.
A corresponding amoeunt is recoguised diveetly it other equity.

Earnings per Unit (EPU)

Basic EPU aie calculaled by dividing the profit for the period attributable to unitholders by the
weighted average number of units outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPU are caicnlated by dividing (he profit/(loss) atiributable to unitholders by the weighted
average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units
that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units inte unit capital.

Recent Pronouncements

As on 31st March 2024, there are no new standacds or amendment to the. exis'ting standards
applicable to the trust which has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Trust’s {inancial statements requires managenient to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses. assets and
tiabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilifies,
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment o the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policics, managenient has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the niost significant effect on the
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Classification of unit holders Funds

The Unit Capital has been presented as “Equity™ in accordance with the InvIT Regulations instead
of compound financial instrument. Refer note 11 on preseniation of "Unit capital” as "Equity”
instead of compound financial instruments under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 32-
Financial Instruments: Presentation).

Fair value measurements

Management applies valvation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. The Trust
engages third parly valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Inforination about the
'valuation technigues and inputs used in determining ihe fair value of investments are disclosed in
the notes to Standalone Financial Siatements.

Fair valuation and disclosures

SEBI Master Circular issued under the SEBI InvIT Regulations requires disclosures relating 1o
nel assets at fair value and total returns at fair vabve. In estimating the fair value of investments in
subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages independiént
qualified external Registered Valuers to perform the valuation. The Investment Manager works
closely with the valuers to give all the required inputs 10 the model. The valuation report and
findings are discussed at the meeting of the Board of Directors on yearly basis to understand the
changes in the fair value of the subsidiaries. The inputs to the valuation models are taken fron
Independently conducled Technical and Traffic studies and abservable markets, where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values,
Judgements include considerations of inputs stich as weighted average cost of capital, tax rates,
inflation rates, etc, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair vajue.

Impairment of investments and loans in subsidiarics

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair vatue Iess costs-of disposal and its value in use.
The recoverable amounis for the investments in subsidiaries are based on value in use of the
undertying projects. Tlie value in use caleulation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are
defived from forecasts over the remaining SCA period of the projects.

Expected Credit Loss on financial assets
As per Ind AS 109, Financia! Asscts that are measured at amortised cost are required to. compute

the Expected Credit Loss (ECL). As at the reporting period, Investment manager of the Trost
assessed the credit risk of the financial assets and concliided that no provision for ECL is required.
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3 Envestments: Non €urrent

{AN amannts are in ¥ lakit mrdexs otherwive sivied)

Particulays As al As at
' Mavrch 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 |
Investmerit in Equity Instruments, at cost (unquated)
Subsidiary companias
Investment in Equity Shares of Prajecl 3PV (NHIPPL} £,39,553.52 1,39,553.52
{1,29,41,00,00C nos of fully paid up equity shares of Face Value Rs. 10 each)
Investment in Equity Shares of Project SPY (NEPPL) 2,40,610.00 -
(240,61,00,000 nos of fully paid up equity shares of Face Value Rs. 10 cach)
Total 3,80,163.52 1,39,551.52
Note :
a) Details of shares pledged with lenders who have extended the loan facility to the Trust are as follows:
. Asat As nf
Name of the Company : March 31,2024 | Mareh 31,2023
MNational Highways lnfra Projects Private Limiled 1,29,41,00,000 1,29.41,00000

WHIT Eastern Projects Private Limited

2.40,61,00.000

4 Loans: Nen Corrent

£AN avennts are in ¥ lakh unless othenyise sawed).

Particulars As ot Asat
March 31, 2024 | March 35, 2013
Unsecured
Loan to related porty - Project SPV (NHIPPL) 9.,0%,504.66 8,90.606.66
(Maximum apount outstanding during the year: Ry, 9,09,306.66 lakh; PY: Rs.
£,90.606 .64 fakh)
Loan fo felated pary ~ Project SPV (NEPPL) 13,30,536.39 -
(Maximum amount owstanding during the year: Ks. 13,30,536.39 lakh; PY: Rs.
Nil}
Taotal 22,40,043.05 £.90,606.66

*Based on the assessntent of funds availability at SPY level it is estimaied that principal repayments are ot expected during

the next financial year and therefore entire portion loans has been classified as pon current financial asset.

Loans are non-derivative financial assets which are repayable by subsidiaries as per ithe yepayment scheduie mentioned in the
Facility agreement. Further, the subsidiaries are entitled to prepay all or any portion of the ouistanding principal with @ prior

notice. The loans o subsidiaries carry inierest @ 12.70% p.a,

Noie: Details of Loans / Advances in the nature of loan granted to Pramoters, Divectors, Key Managerial Personnels

(KMPs) and related parties

(AR amounts ard in ¥ lakh unless othenwise seated)

. As at As at
Type of Borrowers March 31, 2024 | March 31,203
{i) Promoters - -
(11} Dicectors - -
(i) KMP's - -
[-Ralated perties 22,40,043.05 8.90,506.66
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Details of Yoans and-advances in the nature of Inans to subsidiarics/associates (including interest reeeivable): .
“The Trust has granted long term loasi ambunting ta 6,500 takhs for Round 1 (R1) assets and Rs. 12,408 lakhs for Round 2(R2)
assets (PY: [NR 2,349.66 Crors for R2) at the rate of 12.70% p.a. to subsidiary company NHIPEL for Rl & R2 vie Facility
Agreement dated 29.00.202) & 10.16.2022 respectively for financial assistance o be utilized for the purposes and terms and
conditions as mentioned in the Concession Agreement between NHAL and NHIPPL. The repayment schedule for the R1 loan
involves 102 quarterly instalimenls due by 31st March 2047 or earlier, while the R2 {oan is to be repaid ennually from March
2037 until March 2043 o earlierin accordance willy preniature repayment oaly if (A) on the relevant priveipal repayment
daiests) sufficient amount are available with the borrower {Which are available and permitted 1o be wiilised lowards repayment
of such principal amounts, without such utilising being in or resultiag in breach of financial documents) to make such
payments in full or part ar (B) the senjor lender has seat 3 lester fo the barrower requesiing it 1o make paymenis on the
relevant repayment dale. However no principal amount under lnvIT seniar facility will be due and payable by the botcower
wmnless the borrower has the project cash flows as aforesaid to make such paynent in full 6r part in accordance wilh the
repayment schednle or the senior lender has sent a letier Lo the borrower requesting it to make the puyment on the relevant
repayment date,

The Trust has sranted long term loan amounting to 13,30,536.3% laklis for Round 3 (R3) assets al ihe rate of 12.70% pa. o
subsidiary company NEPPL via Pacility Agreement dated 12.03.2024 far financial assistance 1o be utilized for the purpases
and terms and conditions as‘meationed in the Cancession Agreement between NHAT and NEPPL.. The repayrsent schedule for
the loan involves 5 annua) instaliments starting from 31st March 2039 upio 31st March 2043 or carliey, dnd in accardance
wilh premature repayment anly if (A} on the relevanl principal repayment Grles(2),sufTicient amount are available with the
borrower { which are availnble and permiitted to be wilised towards repayment of such principal amaunts, without such utilising
beihg in or resulting in hreach of financial documents) Lo wake such payments in full or part or (3) the senior lender has sent &
letler 1o the borrgwer requesting it o make paymenls on the relevant repayment date. However, no repayments for the
principal under the InvIT senior facility are mandatory unless the borrower can. cover such payment, in full or pattly, theough
the project’s cash fiows fallowing the repayment schedule, or if a request is received from the senior lender by the borrover.

5 Other Financial Assets: Non Cwrent
(Al amaunts are in % lakh unless otherwise slaled)

Particulars As b As ut

) March 31,2024 _| March 31,203
Fixed Depasits with banks* 2.916.99 4.469.99
Deposit - Debentare recovery expense fund for NCD's 15.00 1500
nierest receivabie on Debentnre recovery expense fund 132 0.42
Interest recsivable on fixed deposils 241.17 18543
Total 10,174.48 0.670.84

* The Fixed Deposils are kept in Debt Servicing Rescrve Account (D3 RAJ as per borrowing agreements with lenders and as
per terms of the debenture rust deed; to be utilized at the end of tenure of tong term horrowings fram Senjor Lenders sid to
waintain DSRA balanice for Debienture holders, hence elassified as Other Financial Assets- Non Current irrespective of date of
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6 Other Nou-Current Assets

(Al wnounts aré in T lakh upless atherwise stated).

Pirticulars As at Asat

’ March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Processing fees paid for undeawn loan 95.43 -
Total 05.43

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Al} améunts are in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asat As at
Marcly 31,2024 | March 31, 201
Casti & Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks*
In Current Accounts 76.02 0.01
In Esocrow Account 467.42 33804
Fixed Deposits 10,000.00
{baving original maturily of less thar 3 months) -
Mutual Funds** 30.174.97 374233
Total 71841 14,80.38

% Thesc balances with oanks are hypothecated against secured borrowings _
# |pvestment i Mulual Funds inclales Rs. 15,000 Lakhs raised in current yeay from unit issue for leap projecis, to he utilised

for creation of DSRA against loans raised for leap projects. Further these investmenis also includes Rs. 4106.06 Lakhs
pertaining to one lime issue reldled expenses unutilized as on 31-03-2024.

8 Other Financial Assels: Current

{All amounts are in € lakh unless otherwise stted)

Particulars | As at As at

e March31,2024 | March 31,2023
Interdst receivable on long term foans 87.242.01 46.68543
Inicrest receivable on Fised Deposils - 373
Gthers receivables® 9214 -

Total §7.534.15 46,692.16

* Others receivables includes recoverable from both the SPV's (National Highways Lrifra Projecis Private Limited & NHIT
Eastern Projects Private Limited}.

9 Current Fax Assels (Net)

(All amomnts.in Z lakh wiless otherwise slated)

Particolars As ot | Asat

: March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Advance Tax paid * 104 -
Total T.04 - -
sReier Mote No. 17

i¢ Other Curreat Assels

{All amounis are in ¥ fakh unless otherwise slated)

Particulars As at As
- _Mareh 31,2024 | March 31,2023
10:49 3710
52336 6d2.12
152.84 103.49
6.45 0.76
059334 1,119.47
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11 Linit Capital

(Al oo s. e iy 3 Yk oosfess wiberwisg rieand

Particalus As ot March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

Na of Unity Anmount MNa of Dniiy Amount
Uit Capiial®
Opening halanie T2.64.05 200 7AL604,32 | 59,52 (1NN 3.99.442.82
Add: Uniis fss“ed dunng the yrar 53.5?.95,“00 ?,2—?,106,4] |3. |2,05.2w [,43,0 l 3-61
Luss: Issu expensvs {refer note below) - {1,7172.27) - (85217
Galance as ai year cad 1,30,22.80,600 14,67.093.46 TL64,05,200 T 460432

2 58,57.85 400 unils tssucd Al Ks. (24,14 per unit docing, currend Fnaocial year (13:12,03,200 unit issued al Rs 108 per unit in predious
Minancial year),

In current year the Trust oflcred an issué of 38,57,95,400 unils of Natianal Mighways Eulie Trust (FNHET™Y, Gor cash ot a price of 124,14 wr
unit (the “issue price”), apprepating to * Rs 7.27.206.41 lakh thrugh {nstitutional and preferential placcment in - accordance wilh the
Securivies and Exchange Buand af India (Inlvastracture Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 including the rules, circulars and guidalins
1ssued (ycresmlor.

in previous yeae the Trust olfecd an issue af 13,12.05200 wnits of Nationad Highvways Inira Trust ("NEIT™, Tor cash at a priee of 199.00
per unil (the “issue price™), apavegating (0 ° Rs 143,013,607 lakh through Instisstional and prefercntial placement in accordince with the
Securities and Exchange Raard of Indfa (Infrasimcture hieesimend. TrusO) Repulations, 2014 inchuding the tules, cirgalats aud gnidelines
issued therepoder,

Issue expenses-of Rs. 1,717.26 fakhs (Morch 31, 2023; Rs %5217 lakhs) incurred in connection with issue of units have been teduced rom
the Unftholders eapital in acconlance with Ind AS 32 Finoancial struments: Presentation

Kiglets/ preferences and restriclions aptached ta Unit Capital

Subjeci to the provisions of the IaviT Regulations, e indestore of fynds, and applicable nules, repulations and puidelines, the cights of e
unrit halders include:

a1 The beneficial inferest of e wnidboldeér shall be equal and limited W the proportion of the nemibier of the units held by that unitholder 1o
the atal number-al unies.

b) Right fo receive income ar distribulions with respeet e the units held.

) Right o attend the aupoal genceal meeting and otber metings of wnit hoiders of the Trus:.

dy Right 1ovole upon my maversiresolutions praposed in relstivn to the Trus,

e} Right W receive perigdic infornation having a bearing on ihe operation or perfarmance ef the Trust in accordance sitlk the InvlT

1) Right (o apply o 1he Trus te tnke np cerlan issies at moctiags for veil balders approval

¢} Riplit 16 rective additional informatian, il any, in nccordance with InvI§ documents filed with Placement tdcmorandom.

In aceordance wilh e [T Regulations. o unit helders shall enjay superior voring or aay siber rights aver any other wait hakdecs, aod
there shall not be multiple clsses of units, There sl be only one denomination of unifs, Not withstanding the ahove, subardinate upils ngy
be issued only to the Sponsor and its Associales, where such subordinate units shall carry ouly inferior voling or any olhcr rghts compar &
the ather unils.

Linder the provisions of the T T Regulations, not less thag 90% of the net disteiitabli cush Hows ot the Trost is reguired 1o be distributed
te lhe unitholders, and in gecsidance with such stautory obligation the Trust has foomedacd o disiribanion policy to deciane and «isurifme the
digtribatible cash Mows o its unilhedders atleast once every finuncial yoae s approved by e Bawrd of Directors of the Investment Munuser,
The distdbutions made by Teust 1@ its unitholders are bosed on the Met Distrbutable Cosh Flews (NOCF) of the Trust wnder the (il
Regulations, The distribution i propeition to-the number of units lield by ihe unitholders. The Trust declarcs and pays in distributicing in
Indian rupzes.

Lintit:uion to the Liability of the uniél holders

The tiability aF each unil holdens lowards e paymend of any amaunt ((hat may arise in relotion o the Trust including any laxes. duties, G,
levies, liabilitics, costs or exposes) shall be limited enly 1o 1he extent of the capital cemribution of such unit halders wnd afier such capint
contribution shill have been paid in full by the nrit holdars, the unit holders shall not be abhigated 1o make any further payments.

Thie: unit holders shatl nbl have any personal Yiability or obligation will sespéct 19 the Tragl

Chassification af Unit Hoklars” Funis,

Under e pravigions of he oviT Regnl'nlmns, MHIT is requircd to distribute lo Unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net
(I1slnhulablc cash fiows ol NHITTor cuch Basncial year, Accordingly, a porton af the unitholders’ funds contains a canractual obligation of
the “Trust to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. The Unittioiders® funds could therefore have been classified as compound fivancial
instrument wliich contain both cyuity and liability components (n accondance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presenticn,
iHowever, in accardance with SEB1 Cireulurs (No. CIRAMD/DE/ 1472016 died 20- Uct-“m(; and No. CIRAM DH)TJIZ?ENG dated 23-
Nuv—"’ﬂlﬁ] issued umder the IwIT Regulations, the snithelders™ funds have been clessified o3 equily in order 1o comply with the manduay

qairee of. S‘.ctli)u H nf J’m!ll:\turc A {a t]le SEB] Cm:ular d:lcd 20—0c1-20|6 dc'ﬂmg wlth the minimum dqwlnsun.:s !'nr key hmm.lal

s,
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Details Of Bnithalders Toldieg, More Than 5% Voits En ‘The Trast

Name O Unitholders A5 at Maich 33, 2024 As af March 31, 2023

¥o of Ugils % No o Units %
Ontario Limilcd. 32,80.50,150 250085 18.16.01.300 25,00%:
CPP lovestment Baand Privide Holdings Inc. 32.80:50, 150 25-00% 18.16,01.300 251
SBI Balanced Advunfuge 1rust 6.31,60,260 4.31% 6.31.60.260 3608
National Highwiys Awharity of lndia (NITAE 20,30.72,000 15.48% 11,52,02.600 13.86%

As per reconls of the Trust, inchsding its cegister of waitholders and ofher declaration received Trom waithalders reparding beneficiak inters,
the abeve unitholding represent both legal and benefickl ownership of units.

The Trusl has not alloted any Tully puid-up ynits by wity ol bonus units nor has it bought hack any class of units {rom the date of
incorporation Gl the balunce shect date. Further the Trust has not issued ol wnits for consideration ofher than vash during 1he year.

Rl.‘ﬂlll_':ili‘;_llil)l‘l of Nanther ol Enits Ootstanding is sel nat below*:

Pyrti caliirs As gt March 31, 2024 A5 g Klgeeh 31, 24023
Noat Unlls Amount No of Units Amount
{amounds in T lakh) * (amannts in ¥ Lkl
Number of TFnils at the heginning of the year 72.64.05.200 T4 165.67 3932.00.000 f.0H.152.00
Units issued diring (e year 58.57.95.400 7.27,206.41 13.12.05.200 1.43.013.67
Number of Units at il end ofthe year 1.31,22,00,600 16,71,372.08 72.64,05.200 744,163 67

* A Wl elated to issue expetses are nal dedueted inthe reeoncilintiog of number of unit capiind outstanding,
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12. Other Equity

(Al amounis are in T ldh unless olhrwige siated)

Particulars As at Asat
) March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Balanée ot the boginning ol the year G0, 432.04 §8,124.33
Total comprehensive income [or thic year 9541927 77.236.17
Less:
Disiribulion w unil holdees™ -

Interest 33.701.68 34,163.66

Other Incomic 782.60 T44.20
Balance ns al tvkarch 31,2024 1,02,760.63 00, 422.64

~The distribulion rekates 1o the distributions dwring the lnancial yeor along. with the distribution related to ihe Tast quariér of
FY 202223 and does et include the distribution relating ta the periad Februgry 0L, 2024 (o March 31, 2024 which will be
paid afler-Marcl 31, 2024, The distibutions by the Trusi o its unit holders ave based on thiz Net Distibutable Cosh Flows of
(he Tryst underibe SERI Iny{ T Regulations.
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13 Borrowings: Non Correind

EAN amaums are i € lakh unless otherwisesttedy

Particulary . Asat Asat

Miacch 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Secnred
Naa-Converlible Debentures 1,50.000.00 1,50.000.00
Less Unamortiscd Borrgwing Cost - NCD 1,360.21 1.411.80
Tatal 1,489,639 04 1,18.588.20
Note:- Other tcrms anad conditions of NCD
i] lnterost rate 7.90#a p.a payohle soni wanally.

i) Terms of repayment

Redemption of respective STRPP shall be made in equal instalaients

2 STRPP A - starting from eighth anniversaty of deewned date of allnenicn

il thicleemb amiiversary.

i) STRPP-B- starling fromi thittcenth annrversary of duemed date of

allotroemt 1ilf eighteenth annivessary.

Giiy STRPP-C- starting {mn eighteenth anpniversary af deented dae of

allotment il twenuyfilh agniversary.

Term Laan
From Banks 721.927.70 1.45.987.43
From Financial Institalion 3.05.000.00 -
12692770 11598743
Less: Current Muturities of Long Term Bormowings {Reler Note 143 10,034,00 200001
Levs: Unamardsed Borrewing, Cast = Term Loan 2.117.85 41730
Total 10,14,735.85 1 431,57L13
Grand Totnl 11,63, 394,94 29215833

During the year ended 3 15t March 2024, the Trost bas ablained the sanction of Rs. §77 Crores from the Asis bank Far initia) improvement works
of Ruviznd 2 Assels. Fumher Trust hus obnaimcd sunelion ol Rs. 9,000 Crares fram hanks und financinl instinion for acquistion of Round 3 Aseis

and fias taken a disbursemuent ol Rs, $.658 Crbre during the year.

Loan from (Banks {nclude loan seceived Frum 10T Bank winch is Promaler of 1381 Trusteeship Seryices Linsited {TFSL) - Trustee of the Tms),

therelore {he transactions with 1DBI Bank arc disclosed in Related Parly Transaction.

Nolei- Other terms and cynditions of Teem Lonns
i] Intcrest rale
agrecment,

iy Tesms of repyment

Zencmmack Rate filus spread applicable an cach resel dalefor faciliy

[Repayalile i unstruciured quanetly instalirenis with st repayment date

ugto March 31, 204 | & March 31, 2042 For Facility agroement of R1 &R2

Agsscts respeclively,

Repuyable in unstroctured guarierdy insihnems with idst repayment date
upta Magch 31, 2042 for [acility ngreement of R Assct..

Security for Term Loans ;
The lpan bsseeured hy,

- {ivst pari passu charge on all immovable dssets (if iny), movuble assess and receivables of the Trustincluding bul not iniled Lo,

(i1 the inicrest and principal sopayments on the foans advanced by the Trost te Project 8PV

{ii) Jivitkends 1o be paid by Project SP'Vs -t the Trust

- First paci passu Securily Interest on Trust Escrow acconnt and all sub-aseownts therennder, inciuding DERA.
- plédge of. 100% wquily shares af Preject SPVE! (NBIPPL & NEPPL) in demateriziized form beld by the Trust

- assipnment of juans advanced by the Trusi (o Project SPVs' (NHIPFL & NEPPL) and securitics creuted iy the Trust facluding Lhe assignment-of -

rights of substibnion, termiation and {nvocation of provision of Fscrow ngreement in cuse of defauls

- nepautive Yien on immovable wsds linctuding: currerk asséts and cosh Mows) 6 e Project SPVs {NHITPL & NIIPPL) subject W sale of gbsolcle
jlems or cars/ ambnbances, old toli equipment vt ; under nopmal business praclice, subject o maximum cwwilative value of INK. 5-Crore jn any

fnancial year far R1 projects /INR 2 Crire per project in dny financial year for R2 & R3.

Tl senior Janders of the Trust e also been: pravided witli a corporale, guarmnice rom Project SV ( NHIFFL] 10 guarantce uple the senrcd

for payment o coneession fee by, NHIPPL 10 NHAL The cashflows vi I}
e omaotmiing uphi the secured oblipations. of the Trust via Corporaie
- the loan of the Trust i.e. up fo 31,03:2041 and 31.02.2042 respectivgly, fas been
Uie Trust.

PR

oblipations of the Frust. The fonds have hean ruised ai Trust fevel (romy unitholders and domesii s and fhe swne haye been Teat to Projerl

A Py ' _ pittire lying in NHIPPL. Acconlingly,

gmiice Decd duedy4:00.2022 and 05012024, valid

_[{l‘%‘;d%cji by the Project 5PV { NHIPML) o
i




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SERI Registration Number :- INlneIT/20-2170014 _
Naotes to Standaloiie Firiancial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Natice of Searily for Non Cbn\‘c_ljfihle_- dghentures:
The debenture halders are sceused by -

a) u First.ranking: pari passu Seoufity Intenest over the Trust’s inmovable asseis (i i) toth present and fowne The Trust does noLDwn any
jmmiovable progerty ar thi preset finie. in the evenl, l Trust acquires any immovahle preperty in Buture, the Trustshall mortgage said prapery
within 130 (onc I_1uncln:d' cig,hiﬂ' days fron the dae of sequisiton of such immaovable assels. The Débeniure Trustee shall be authoiisd to de all
acig, deeds, and emer o neeessary documents, agreement. amendrenls andiar modifications, a5 may b required to give cffect the some,

including carrying ont the due diligence ds may be reguired by Debenture Trostes,

b} a first rankime pari passu Sceurity Inferest over the Hypothecied Asscts {ineluding Receivables}, buth present and Future, wid

¢) Negative Lien Undertaking

J} corporate guaraniee executed by ihe Project SPV (NHIFPL) in fvour. of’ e Dehentire ‘Frusiee lor guasanteciig the dne repayment of the

securcd oblipttions in accordunce with the terms of the Dihenture Trinst Deed.

The ngn convertible debenture holikers of the Trust auting through delweature trusice have also heen provided wilh a corpbrne poarniee {rwm
Froject SPV (NHIPPL) b guorimiee the repayment af auwount raised from non wonvertible debenfure Twolders by (he Trust. Tie funds have Teers
raised a1 Trust level from debenturchaiders, have been lont o Project SPY (NUIPPL) for paymeal of conguession lee by NUIPPL 1o NTIAL
Accondingly. cerporate guaranice amounling eplo Ihe secured obligations via Carporate Guurantes Deed dited 21.10.2022 s valid ull all
oulstandiag principa) aud accnued imerust payablic by the Trust ace satis fied tg the non, conseriible debenturs balders of the Trust.

Thire have heey no breaches in financinl covanants with respect o the horcowings from eitler senior lenders or dehemare holkders.

14 Borcowings: Covrent

[t sy s 1w 2 Lk unless othenwise stikad)

Particulacs Axat Asat
Aarch 31, 2024 NMirch 31, 2023
Secnrcd
Current Matwirities ol Long Tenm burrowings {Refer N 13} 10,0310 200000
Total 190,054.00 200000

15 Teade Payables; Curreat

£ AN ssmonnes are i ¥ Lakls miess athenvise skial)

Particuluis As ad Asat

March 31, 2024 March_ 31, 2013
Toual oustaading, ducs oCmicrn amd sl enterprises 36.17 3.48
Total owtstanding, dues ol triudz pavables other than migre and small CRtCEPIEes 73358 2oy
tOnustnding for less than |2 moaths from te dus date of payment}
Total 169.75 3657
Mole~

Deluils of dues Lo micra and small endernvises asper MESMLED Act, 2N,

"The Comprmuy bas cerain dugs i supplicrs registored under Miceo, Small and Madivm Enterpri

disclosuecs parsagnl to tie said MSMED Act are as foliows:

ses Developmenl Act, 2006 (MSMED Ac’y. The

Asnl
March 31,221

Asat
Narch 31, 2013

) The principal ameund remaining unpaid to any supplicr at e end-of the year

1) tnterest aceried and due therens fo supplicrs voder MSMED Act ai e above uniound
remaining ynpaid o any supplice sf the end of year. .

) The mnoual of interest paid by liie hoyer in tenms of section 16 ol the MSMED A,
20006, along with te omaunt of the payment nxde 1o thie supplicr heyond the appointed day
during the yeur

o) Thie ameint of interest due and payabhe for tha pedad of delny i making payment {which
have been paid bul beyand the appoimed day during thé year) bu withowt adding he
intereat specified ander the MSMED Act, 2006

) Vhe amonat of interest accrmed and remaining unypmid at the end ol each accounting year

() The ameint of further interesy remaining due and payikle even in the sucteeding yaus,
uatik such daté when the inlerst dues above arc achilly paid to the small enterprises, for the

pose=afisatlowance of 1 deduetible expendiun wnder section 23 of he MSMED Act,
Wakaise! payable fo vendors as defined wnder the “Micra, Small and Mediom
See TReTanent Act, 206" is based on the information aviilabic wilk the Company

% Lot registrazion oF sueh vendors under e said:

bRl 1@ fiom voccived Fom them on requesis mads by the Company.

36.17

188




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
Notes to Standalorie Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Disclosure of payabile 1o vendors os duined under the “Micro, Smali and Medium Epterprise Development A, 2006 is based on the
information wyailable with the Company regarding the status of registralion of Such venders.onder the said Act; as per the intimation reecived
{Tom ithem on tequests made by the Company.

Frade Payable ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

_ Outstanding for following period from due dafe of payment
arti Not due i Totat
Particulars Not duc Lﬂ::::“' 1-2 Years{2-3 Years| More thun 3 Years ofa
i) MSME - 3617 - - - 34617
i) Others. 635.41 96.72 145 - - 733.58
i1y Dispued dizes - MSME - - - - -
iv] Disputed dues - Othcrs . - - - - -
Totul 635.41 132.8% 1.45 - - 769.715
Teade Payable ageing schedule as pn March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following perivd from due date of payment)
: ‘Not thu <5 tha . , Total
Particulars or e Leﬁ:,;:i“ ! 1-2 Vears2-3 Yeurs)  More than 3 Years ot
1y MSME - 358 - - - 3.88
iy Ohers .34 3233 - - - 342.69
iii) Disputed ducs - MSME - - - - - -
iv} Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Tainl ), 34 156.23 - - - 346.57

16 Othirr financial liabiligics

tAl amounts are in & lakh unliess otherwise sited)

Parficuiars As al Asat
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Oihes
{merest accrued bul nol due on NCD 5.162.05 3.029.59
Total 3,162.05 5,129.59

17 Currend tax liahilities (Net)

(ALE amoums are in 2 lakh unfess owerwise satwl)

Particulars Asat As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Provision lbr Income Tax - 398
Total - 898

Reconciliation of Corrent Tax Liabilitics

tAN amokits are in T Jakh anless otheneiss Slated)

Particulars As ot Asat

March 31, 241341 March 31, 2023
Opening Balince 398 161.77
Add: Incame Tax Mayable for the year 00736 475.8%
Less: Income taxes paid during the year (including carlier yebr raxes) 713.38 626,68
Closing Balance {704y 898

18 Other currvent linbilities

{80 amgums are in 2 Jakh unless otherwise skited)

Partienburs Asat o Asat
March 31; 24024 Aarch 31, 2023
194,29 42.50
194,29 42.50




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

19 Interest income on loan given to subsidiaries

{All muoums arz in T lakh wiless olherwise siated)

Particulars

For the Year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest an Long Term Loan given 1,23,103.51 94,693,310
Totnl 1,23,103.51 94,698.30

20 Inicresi income

{AlL dmounts are i 2 1akh undess olherwise skzied)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
On fixed deposits with banks 786.74 352.18
Total T86.74 351§

21 Profit on sale of investments

{All amouats are in 2 lakh unlesy otherwisc stated)

For the year enrded | For the year endul
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Prafil on redemption of Mutual Funds 840.99 42220
Toial 540.99 42220

22 Other Income

(Adl amounis are in ¥ [akh unless gtberyise staled)

S For the year cundéd For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other nen operating iacome

Other Income 4.2 31459
Total 4.21 31659

23 Audit fees

Statutory audif expenses

(Al amoonts are in 2 lakh unless otherwise stned)

Particulnrs

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Statutory auditors’ remuncration;

Audit fees 3495 170

Limited Review 2 80 {20
Tatal 573 2.3

Other andit services (including certification)

Certification Charges 1.72 0,84
Total 1.72- 0.88

Further an amount of Rb 1 lakh (Mal'ch 31, 2023 Rs 6 laklty pald to aaditor as cevtification charges has been
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SERI Registrafion Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Finance cost

CAIl amounts are in T fak)iunless olherwise stmed)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year endcd

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
interest on Term Loan Bomrowings 13,059.49 11,244 9}
Interest on Dabentures i11,882.48 5,12059
Other Financial Charges 197.71 21567
Total 25,139,683 16,590.17
Other expenses

(Al amounts are in T [akh unleys gthecwise stated)

For the year ¢caded

Faor the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Lepal and Professional fecs 134.87 17006
Fee, Subscription & Tages 2.51 ¢.24
Bank charges ¢.03 .08
Miscellaneous expenses 51.23 19.78
Tatal 188.04 190,16
Tax Expense

(AN amonnts are in ¥ lakl unless othervise sized)

Particulars

For the year cnded

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 21, 2023
Current Tax G97.56 47189
Pravision for Taxation-Earlier years (2.52) 0.01
695.04 47390
Defarred Lax expensef{credit} - {316}
Current Tax Expense 695.04 4704

Effective tax Reconciliation:

Numerical reconciliation of tax gxpense applicable to (profit)f loss before tax at the latest statutory enascted fax

rate i India to income lax expense repoted is as follows:

(Al acneents are in T kikh undess otherwise stated)

Particulars Ior the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Accounting Profit hetore Incomé Taxes 97,514.31 77,706.92

Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate - Maximum Marginal

Raie (42.744%) 41.681.52 3321504

Impact of exerption ufs W(2IFC) of the Indian Income Tax Act, _ )

1961 available to the Frust (40,386.48) (32,741.15)

Impact of deferred tax on reversible aflowance! disallowance.of

business exprense andincome, as per Indian Income Tak Act, - (3.16)

1961
Pravision for interest on delayed deposit of income tax - -

Incomp tax expense reported in the statement of prafit and '
6935.04 470.74
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27 Earnings per unit

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Basic and diluted EPU _
Net Profit/ loss available for unithelders {in T lakh ) 06,319.27 7123617
Weighted average number of units for EPU computation 75.36,14276 (5,66,08.738
EPU- Basic and dilated 12.85 11.76

Basic EPU amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable fo Unit holdérs by the weighted
average number of units outstanding during the year. Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the
profiv(loss) atiributable (o unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into
unit capital.

28 Capital and Other Commitments

(to the extent not provided for & certified by the management)
{Al] mnounts are in ¥ lakh unless othenvise staed}

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Commitmenits:

Commitment for {van to Subsidiaty Company (Project SPV- 1.21.594.00 1,40,494.00

NHIPPL)

Commitment for loan to Subsidlary Company (Projeci SPY- 14,658.61 -

NEPPL) :

1,56,252.61 1,40,494.00




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvI'T/20-21/00 14
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29 Capital Management
For the purpese ol the Trust's capital management, capital inciudes issued unit capital and all other reserves atiributable
io the unit holders of the Trust.
The primary objective of the Trust's eapital tanagement is to ensuce that il mainins a strong credit raling and healthy
capital ratios in order to suppen its business and maximise unitlolder value.
The Trust manages it capital structure and makes adjustments 1o it in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the TMnancial covenants.. To maintain ar adjus! the capital structure. the Trust may adjust te dividend
payment / fncomme diswibution to unit holders (subject (o the provisions of SEBI Iny(T Régulations which require
distribotion of at least 90% of the nat distributable cash Nows of the *Frust w unit holders). return capital 10 wnit holders-or
issue new units, The Trust monitors eapital vsing » gearing ratio, which is net del divided by totad copital plus net daby,
The Trust’s policy is ta keep the geating mtia oplimum,

{AlLmonnds see in T lakh unless olhervise siated)
Particulars Asat Az at
March 31, 2024 Mlareh 31, 2023

Net Debt Componcnts:

Long Term Borrowings (Nun-Cumrent portian) (sceured) 1.,63394.94 292,158,313
Current Matprities ol Long="Tern Rormawi ngs {secured) 10.054.00 2.600.400
Trade payubles 709.73 346.57
Other financiol liobilities 3.162.05 5,129:59
Less: Cash and Cash Equivaloms (GO.718.41) {1:,080.28)
Less: Other Financial Assews eontprising DSRA FDs {10,0174.48) (9.670.84)
Net Debt {1) 11,38,487.85 2,75,883.27
Capital Companents;

Lt Capital 14.67.005.16 741,604,212
Inttial Serlenient Amoast 0.10 0,10
Otirer Eguity L02.760,63 60.432.64
Total Cagitul (ii) 15,69954.19 8,02,037.60
Cagital and Net Debt |y ={i + (i 27,08,342.04 i0,77,920.33
Gearing Ratio {i W{iij) J2.04% 25,39%,

In order ta-achieve this averall ubjective, the Board of Direvtors of Investmen ‘Manager, amangst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenanis titached 1 U interest-bearing loans and borrowings that defire caplial structure
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants. would permil the lenders w call loans and borrowings. There
have been no bruaches in the financial covenants of any niteresi-bearing laans and borrowing in the cucrent yeor, No
chapgesasere made in the. objecives. policies ar proccsses for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024
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30 Financial Risk Management.

The Trust's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Trust; to sel
appropriate risk limits and conirols, and io monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and sysiems
are reviewed regulacly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Trust’s activities,

The Board of Directars of Investment Manager has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Trust’s risk management framewark,

In performing its operating, tovesting and financing activities, the Trust is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk aod
Market risk.

Market Risk

Mirket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finencial instrument will fuctuate Becavse of changes in
market prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: imerest rate risk, currency risk, and other price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, Receivables and Payables and Investments measured at
FVTPL.

The senshivity analyses in the following-sections relate to the pasition as at March 51, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

The sensitivity anzlyses have heen prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest
rates of the debt are all constent.

The following assumplions have been made in calenlating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective markel risks. This is
based on the financisl assets and financial liabilities hetd at March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2033.

Fareign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is ihe risk that the fair value or futere cash flows of an exposure will flucteate because of changes in
foreign exchange raies. The Trust transacts business primarily in indian Rupees only, and hence. the sensitivity of profit
and loss of the Trust {0 a possible change in foreign exchange rales is non-existent as on March 31, 2024 & March 31,
2023,

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of
changes fn markel interest rates. Expasure lo risk of changes in market interest rates senerally relaies primarily to long-
term deht abligations with floating inlerest rates.

The Trust’s exposure Lo interest rate risk due to variable interast rate bomowings is as foliows:
1Al amouats are in ¥ lakh snless othenwise siated)

Particulars As at As at

. March 31, 2024 March 31,2003
Floating Rate Borrowings 10,76.927.7¢ 1,45.987.43
Total 10,26,922.70 1,45,987.43

Sensitivity analysis based on average outstanding Debt:

Impact en profit / {loss) before tax

Intorest rate risk analysis

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2013
lncrease or decriease in inferest rate by 25 basis points 2,567.32 16497

Note; Profit-will increase in case of decrease.-in interest rate and vice versa

e risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of ghanges in

o =

i Rcpther than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), 7 ,,-v-‘}“—*xi_-,_ﬁg\
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Liquidity Risl

Liguidily risk is the risk thatan entity will encounter difficully in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another firaricial assets.

The Trust is exposed to liquidity risk due ta bank bormowings and trade and other payables:

The Trust measures risk by Torecasting cash flaws.

The Trust’s appreach o managing liquidity is 1o ensuve, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meét its
liahilifies when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Trust’s reputation. The Trust ensuses that it has
sufficient fands to meet éxpected operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations.

in addition, processes and policies related to'such risk arc overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Trusts ne;
liquiclily position through rolling forecast an the basis of expected cash flows.

(Al amounts ars in ¥ lakh ualess otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying <1 Y. 1-3 Yrs. >3 Yrs.
Amsunt
Term Loan 10.24,809.85 10,454.00 26,862.00 9.87,893.85
Non-Canverlible Debéntures 1A8,639.09 - - £.48,639.09
Trade Payables 769,75 769.75 - -
Other Financial Liakilities 5,162.05 5,162.05 - -
Tatal 11,79,380.74 1598550 2(,862.00 11,36,532.94
A% at March 31,2023 Carrying <l Yr. 1-3 Yrs. >3 ¥is.
Amount
“Term Loan 1,45,579.13 2,000.00 6,000.00 137,570.0%
Non-Convertible Debentures 1,48,568.20 - - 1.48,588.20
Trade Payables. 346.57 346.57 - -
Otlier Financial Liahilities 5,129.59 5,120.59 - -
Totial 2.99.634.48 7476.16 6,000.00 2.86,158.1)
Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk that counterparly will not meet its obligations under & financial insttument or customer coniract, leading 1o a
financial loss. To manage this, the Trust periodically assess the celiability of the receivables, taking inlo gecount the financials
conditions, current economic frends, analysis of historical bad debis and aging of receivables, With raspect o credit risk arising from
‘other financial assets of the Trust, which comprise Balances with banks, Trade Recaivables, Loans and Advances and Invasiments, the
Trust's exposare 1o credit risk arises rom default of the counterparty, with maximum exposure eqeal to the carrying amount of these
insiruments.

The carrying value of financial assels cepresents the maximum credit risk. The maximuin exposure lo eredit risk. was Rs. 27,48,729.03
Lakk and Rs. 11,00,603.57 Lakh as at March 33, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively, being the total canying value of Lgans fo
SuUsidiary, Trade receivables, nvestmients, Balances with bank, bank deposits and other financial assets.

31 Disclosure piursuant {6 [ND AS 36 " Ilmpzirment of Assels"
Based on impairment testing done which involves review of the fulure discounted cash ffows of {he subsidiary, the recoverable amount
is higher than the carying antount of the iitvesiment made in the subsidiary and accordingly, no provision for impairment s requited to
be recognised inthe books as on the reporting date, )

32 Financigl Informatien of lnvestment Manager
The summary fikancidls of Investment Manager are not disclosed alangwith these {nancials as its networth is not materially croded.

33 Withholding Tax liability for intercst scerued but not dae on nen canvertible debentures
The Trust has issued pul:l'licly listed non convertible debsntures ("NCDs"] with intetesi payable on semi-aniual basiz. Interest on these
NCDi was due for payment on 35 April 2024 and for the purposs of payment of iriterest, recard date was 10 April 2074 and debenture-
holders existing as on 10 April 2024 are entitled to the caupon. inlerest. Trust has recarded liability of interest accrued 1L} 315k Mirch
2024 and there is no credit in tavour of any payee at the time of creating sueh provision as entilled payee will be identifiable as on

As _' ZNear ey At reh 2024, there is uncertainty with respect (o the ultimiate recipient of interest income 4
styconte clear o Wie record.date i.e., 10 April 2024 when the obligation of payment of interesi by NI
ha¥md blansPmibing: Thces at the time of ereating these pravisions.
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34 Statemcent of Related Parties

A. List of Related Partics as per requirement of IND AS 24~ “Related Party Disclasures™

Natianal Highways Inlra
Projects Frivaic Limlicd
|(‘NIIIP_I'L§I '
{Snbsidiary Campany)
NITET Bastern Urojects
Private Limited
{'NEIFL)
{Subsidgyry Compynyy

Enterprises where Coutrol / significnstinMience exists

L. List of additional related parties a5 per Regulation 2{1)zv) of the SEBL InvIT Regulations
Mationsil Mighvas fnfr Gwvestent Managers Private Limited {NHIMPL - Investment Manager {10 ol the Truse
IDB! Trusieeship Services Limited OT3LY - Trustee of the Frest
Mational Highways Authority of Inkia (NH AT} Sponser
Matfonzl |fighways InvIT Project Masiagers Private Limited {NHIPMPL]- Project Muoer

Prometers of ihe aviies to ihe Trust specilied above

Cioverament oF (ndia (actng through Ministry of Road. Trausport & Highways (MORTHY) - Pronoier ol NR{WPL,
iDBE Bank Limited (OB Bauk) - Promaoter of (TS0

Governmient of India (acling Weough Minisiry of Rodd, Traaspon & Higlesiys (MORFH]) - Promioter of NIAT
Natianal Highways Authority of Indis {NHAD- Promater of WHIPMPL

Diveciors of the partics to the Trust speeified above

Direciors ul MILLLMITLL

M. Suresh Keishan Goyal

Mr. Shailcndra Naraln Roy

Mr. Melabavir Prasad Sharma

Mr. Pracdcep Singh Kharola

Mr. BLRV.Y.MLK., Rgjéndra Kumar

o Sumgl Byse

Mr. Pushicar Vijoy Kelkarai {Appoinied ns Director wat 08.11,2023)
M. Bebapratim Hafara (Appointed a8 Birector wio, £ 08.11,2022}

Mr. Vinay Kumar { Appainted as Moabee Dicector w.e T 27.03,2034)
s, Usha Monari (Appointed as Woman- Tndependemt Director wae £ 16.04.2024)
Mr. Bruce Cane (Ceased 16 be director w.e l07.11.2023)

Mz, Kavilo Suha (Ceased 1o be direcior we. FORE.T1.2023)

Mr, Amil Kimaw Chash (Congod o be difeclor woe.§ 12.11.2023)

Direetors of ITSL.

Mr. Pradcep Kumar lain

Ms. Javashree Vijay Ramfe
Mr. Pradccp Kunar Malhotra
#4s, Haljindor Kaur Mondal

Ms, Fiyakunir Subramnoriapidlai

Divectors of NHIPAPL
Mr, Akhil Khare




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEDB Registration Number = IN/InvI'T/20-21/0014
Notes to the Standalone Financial S{atements for the year ended Mareh 31,2024

€. Teansuctions with Reduted Portics

) tAmonnis in-Z Jakll
L Yeur ended Year aided
Carticulars 35t Aliiviehi 2024 3ist March 2123,
{Hesdited) ilnckied)
Advimcement of l.ang Fl.'rm Loans lp NHIRPL 13,900.00 284.966.56
interest Income acerd om Long Teem Loan given to MHIPPL 1.26,8585.95 14,6951
Reimbursemend of Expensé psitl by NHIT on behal £ of NIiPPL o 43266
=l Hishwavs Eufva lovestoeal ATAnagery Privite 1imited (NISLIRY ] )
Envestment Managar Fee 1.800.00 1491.17
Advince Envesiménl Mimager Fec Paid 49 46.06
Expense ineurred by NHIIMPL on oorbehalf 1335 kL))
I:u::m. al’ units of Trust 1§ M LAI 1.09.081.07 21.366.83
iritcrest and wther income distribution 8.641.92 354934
IBRY Trugteeshin Services Limited (ITSE.
Payment of Trustee Fee 60 1273
{ier [ees rekaed 4o Ronnd § & 2 Aswls {111 I8
iher Fees redafed 10 Round 3 Asscls "Project Leap™) 17.58 -
Secuped Lown given Lo NHTT 10004130 -
Interest Expense incurred on Loan given o NHIT 433 -
Repayment af Principal Amatnd {00 -
Loan Pracessing Fees Paid w thent 41.30 -
|MHET Easterns Projects Private Liavited (NEPPL
Subsuription uf Share Cupital of NEFPL hy N1ITT 240.650.00 -
Long-Ferm Loans given o NEPPL 13.30,536.39 -
Intercst Ineamie Accrued on Loag Temn Eoan given [0 MEPRL 221756 .
Shor 1arm Advanee given 1o NEPPL 2050 -
Lxpense incurred by NEPPL on o tehall .42 -
Expenscs incusred by NHIT on it behall 262,72 -

1 Clusing Balanees ivith Related Parics

{Amounts in 2 Lkl

Pavticulars

As il March 31, 2024 A ab March 31, 2073

Invesnem in cqmly shares of NPT

Outstanding Long lesim Loans piven 1 NHIPPL

Interest eiceivable on Long Term Loam given o NHIPPL
Amount Receivable for Expenses incuiredl.on theie behal§

National Highways Authorily of India (N1IA T
(ssue ol units of Trust t NHAS

N:Ilil'}tlﬂl Highways Infra Investment Rlangeers Foivate Limited (NIHIAPL)

Advance IM [Foe
1M Fet Payable

18I Irosteeship Serviees Limilee
Trusie: Fee Payahile
Oiiher Fecs rélaked 1o Round 3 Assels PPaject Leap”)

1)) i Amiled
Quistanding Secured Laan Amount

NHIT Enstern Prajecis Private Limited (NEPPL'Y
Lirvestiment in cquily shares of NEPPL

Ammunt Recpivble Tor Expeases incured on iheir behalf
Qutstanding Advance Recoverable Prom NEPPL

Amowst Pnyuhlc for Expenses incurrad on our hebalt

Oy sty L ong tem me piver in NLPPL

titalitecd} {rAndifedy

1,35.410.00 129410.00
'}.09‘,_506.66 4.4.606.66
85.024.94 4568343
a0l -
22700301 117,922 43

443 .
- 1.89
1.73 1.73

268 -

9,044 99 -

2.40,610.00 .

20264 -

20,50 -




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- ]N‘a‘InVI'I'-"!Z[I-'ZIr‘[mH-
Notes to the Standalone Financia) Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

'35 Fimancial Enstrument by Catepory
(All.amouris in T 1akb aless siherwise staind}

As at March 31,2024 As ai 31st Maich, 2023

Pasticulars o Ar i . At .

Amortized Cuost BVTPL AtFYQCI Amortized Cost EVTEL At FYOCT
Assels:
Cuishr and Cash Gguivalents 30.718.41 - - 4,080,318 - -
Invasiment in Praject S0V 3,80,163.52 - - 1,39,553:92 - -
Loans & Advances 22.40,043.05 - - 8,90.606.66 - -
Other Financial Assels 97.708.63 - - 36.363.00. - -
Foial 27 48,633,671 - - 11.00.603.56. - -
Lisibilities: '
Bortowings 11,73,448.94 - - 2.94,158.33 - -
Trade Payables 769.75 - - 346.57 . .
Otber Finoogial Liabititics 5,162,035 - - 5.129.59 | - -
Total £1,79,390,74. - - 2,99,634.49 - -

Dxefruls and breaches

There arc no defiulls during the year with respect 1 repayment of principat and payment of interest and no breaches of the terms and
conditions ef'the borrowings,

There are no breaches during the year which permiued lender to demand accelerated pazyment,

36 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

The carrying amount of all fingncia) pssets and Nabilities appearing in the financiz! sticmems fs reasonuble approximation of Fit values, Fair
value of the financial assets and Gobilities is the amount af which the instrument could he exclumged in o curcent lransaction between willing
partics, cther than Tn a forced or liyuidation sale.

Fair Vabue Hierarchy

The Trust uses the fulluwing bicrarchy Tor fair value measuement of U Frust’s financial assets and liabilities:

lvel 1 - Quoted prices (unadjasted) i aclive markets for identical assets oy liabilities.

Level 2 - Inpuis ather than quated prices included within Level 1 thai are abservable for the assel or ﬁnhﬂ'{l}r, either directly (i.c. as prices) of
indireetly (i, derived from prices), '

Level 3 - [upuis for. the asseis or Hahilities ihat are not based on abservable market daly {unobservable inputs).

FEair value of fingncisd ussets and findncial linbilities that are ant measured at Tair value (but fir value disclasures e required)
(Al amaunts in T dakh unless ofletwise sizied).

Carcying Value Fair Vilue
Particulurs Asat A at Asat. Asat
Mareh 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | Mareh 31, 2024 | Mareh 31, 2023
Finuocial Ayscts ot Amortized Cust:
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 30,718.41 14.080.38 30,718.4] 14,080.38
Investmend ip Project SPY 3.80.163.52 1,39,553.52 3.80.163.52 1,39:553.52
Loans & Advances 22.40.043.05 8.90,606.66 22 AN 43.05 3,90.606.66
Other Finungial Assets 07,708.63 56.363.00 97,708.63 36.363.00
Total, 27.48,631.61 11,00,603.56 27,48,633.61 11.00.603.56
Financial Liahilitics #t Aiertized Cost: _
Borrowings® 11.73,448,99 2,94.158.33 LE73,448.94 29415833,
Trade Payebles 769,75 346,57 769.75 346.57
Qiher Financial Liabilitics 5.162.05 511059 5,162.05 5,129,509
| Total 11,79,380.74 29963449  11,79,380.74 29963440

The carryifg value of cyrgent financial agsets and other financial liabilitics measured ai amortised cogt are-considered 1o be same as their fair
vl tazgcly due to their slor tem e,




NATYONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/00 14
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

37 Statcment of Contiigent Liakilifies/Confingent Assets
There arc o contingent lizbilities as at March 31, 2024 (March 31.2023: Rs. Kil}
38 Distribution made Al amuunts in 7 lakiy unless aiherwise sted)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particik )

e Marel 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Interest #42,240.46 098538
Return of capital - -
Dividend - -
Other incame ol the Trust (402,92 240.3%
Tatal 42,843,358 32577

39 Additional Regulatory Enformation
Financial Ratios
S.No. |Parficulars As on As on
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 | Curemt Assetralio {Current Adsels /Carrénl Liabiliy) 7.33 £.22
2 |Dehi- Equity ratio (Debif Equity) 175 .37
3 [Pebl service coverage catio (Cporating Cash Bow! External Debt Qbligation) 346 .60
4 [lnterest service coverape din {EBI‘I‘,‘ Finanee cast) 4,88 3,63
5 |Asset Cover ratio {valu ol assels having pari-pagsu charecs/outstanding value 2.0 3.21
6 iMNetworth 15.69.454.19 8.02.037.06
7 [N profialier tax 96.4819,27 7723617
£ _[Ouistanding rededtnable prelerence shares {quantity and valug) : - -
9 Capital rcdc_mpliun resceve/debeniure redemplion réscrve : - -
10 jLong lenn debt w working capitil 10,40 522
11 IEamine per unit. 12,35 11.76
12 tBed debl 10 account recervahle ratio - -
13 iCurrend liabililv ratio 0.01 (.03
14 ) Total debt 1 wig) assets _043, 0.27
13 |ROE catip{Net Pralit Equil) 8. 16%| 10.58%
16 |Invenlary turnaver ratio NA MA
17 | 'Teade regelvable wroover ridio NA ™A
18 |Tride pavable Wirndver catio 2.70 4.31
19 [Nt Caplial ivrnover ratio { Tolal lvcome £ Nel Working Capis) 1.21 1.76
20 |Nct profil rtio iNgl prelin/ Total Income) _ 71.62% 30.61%
b N ey eyt a Prom e T - T s Ty o ol
24 gtl;;? on capital employed ratio (INel Prolit plus. Finance Cosuf (Equily + ST RG0%
32 Rewri on investmen {Income oa Investment £ Averape Cost of Inyestnient) 4,946% 17.84%
40  Disclosure ol segment information pursuant to IND AS 103 "Opernting Scaments”

The nctivities of the Trust mainky inelude investing in infiosiructure assels primurity in the SPVs operating in the road seclor o generaie
cash Mows for distribution o unit hoiders, Based on the muiding principles given in Ind AS - 108 “Operafing Sepments™, this activity
falls within a single aperating segment. Further, the entire operatians of the Tost are only in Indi and henee, disclosure of secoryary /
seographical segment inlormation does not arise. Accordingly, requirement of providing disclosures under Ind AS 108 does noturise,
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Notes to the Standalon¢ Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Investment Management Fees

i} The Investment Manager's fee as per agreement dated 215t October-2020 will tnfually be Rs, 1,100 Lakh (Rupecs Eleven Hundred
Lakhs) per annum.

ii) The Investment Management Agrecment ts revised and the fee with effect from 151 April 2023 bas been 2greed at Rs 1,800 Lakhs
(Rupees Eighteen hundred [nkbs} for the Financial Year 2023-24.

iff) The management fee sel pul in paragraph (i) above shall be subject 1o escalation on en annual basis at the rate of 10% of the
magugement fee for the previous vear.

iv) Any applicable taxes. cess ar charges, as the case may be, shall be in addition 1o the managemem fee and shall be payable by
National Highways Infra 'l"mstﬂﬂ'HlT') o the Investment Manager (NHITMPL).

Payment of frequency: Payment of management fee shall be made by National Hi ghways Intra Trust (NEIT) (o the Jovestment Manager
{NIIIMPL) in advance on a quarterly basis at the beginning of each quarter ol'a financial vear.

‘The Baard of Directors of the Investment Minager has declared distribution for January 2024 of Rs. 0.631 per unit which comprises af
Rs. -B.606 per unil as interest and Rs. 0.023 per unit as other income oo surplus funds at the Trast level their meeting held on 4ih
March, 2024, Further, the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager has declared distribulion for February 2024 & Murel 2024 of
Rs. 0.705 per unit which comprises of Rs. 0.687 per wnil as interest and Rs. 0:018 per unit as other income on surplus funds ot the Trust
level in their meeting held on 27th May. 2024,

The Board of Dircetors of the lnvestment Manager has declared distribution for Quarter 3 of FY 2023-24 of Rs, 1.697 per unii which
comprises of Rs. 1.693 per unit as imerest and Rs. 0,004 per unit.gs other income on sarplus funds at the Trust level in [heir meeling
hetd on 2nd February, 2024,

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager had declared distribution for Quacter 2 of FY 2023-24 of Rs. 1856 per unit which
comprises of Rs. 1.774 per unit as inferest and Re. 0.042 per und 25 other income on surplus fimds at the Trust leve! i iheir meéeling
held on 8th November, 2023 and the Board of Dircetors of the Investment Manager had déclared diswibution for Quarder F ol FY 2023-
24 of Rs. 1.754 per unit which comprises of Rs. 1.742 per unit as interest and Rs. 0.012 per unit as oler income on sarplus finds at the
Trustlevel in their meeting held on | Tih August, 2023,

Key sources of estimation

The preparation of financial statenents in conformity with. Ind AS requires the Trust makes estinates and assumpfions that affeet the
repotted amounts of incame and expenses of the period, the reponed halances of assets and liabililics and the disclosures relating to
contingent labilitics us of the duwe ol the financial statefmems. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed en an ongoing
basis. Revisions (o aceounting cstimates include allowance for doubtful loans fother receivables. fair value méasurcment ete, Difference,
ifony. between the actual results and estimates is recotmised in the period in which the resulis are known,

Discloswre pursuant te fnd AS 23 “Borrowing Costs™
Borrowing cost capitalised during the period ended March 31, 2024 Rs, Nil [March 31 . 2023 : Rs. Nil)

Default and yeuehes




(i)

(i)
i}

(iv)

(¥}

(vi}

(vii}
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© Additionat regutnaiory information required by Schedule IT1

Details of benami property held .

The Trust does not hold any benami praperty-ond no proceedings have been inifiated-against the trugt under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder,
Willul defaulter
The "Frust is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial justitution or any other lender during the year.
The Trust have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity] ics), including foreign enrities {Funding Pasty) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or atherwise) that the Trust shali
(2} direcily or indircetly lend or invest In other persons ov entities identificd in any manner whatsoevdr by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ulimaie Bencficiaries) or
{b) provide nny guarantee, sccufity or the like on behalf of the Lllimate Behaeficiaries
The Trust have not advuncé or laancd or invested (either Trom borrowed fund or shae premiun or any other source or kind of tind) by
(e company to or in any person{s} dr entity{ies). including fordign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding {whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that ilie Trust shall:
() direstly or indircetly lend or invest in other persans or entities identificd i in any manner whotsoevér by or on behalf of dic company
(Ultiniate Beneliclarics) or

(1) provide any guurantee, sceurity or the ke on behall ol ihe Ulthmate Beneliciaries

Undisclosed income

The Trust have not any such wansaction which s not recorded in the books o accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Intome Tax Act. 1961 {such as, search ér surveyor any other rcleyan
provisions of the Ineame Tox Act, 196].

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Trust has not fraded or invesied ¥a erypio curfency or virtual currency, daring the current or previous year.

Derivative Contracts

The Trust did fiot have any Jong erm tontracts ineluding derivative contraet for which there were any mawerial foreseeable losses.,
Relationship with struck off companies.

The Trust dees nut have any transactions with the companies struck oif under Section 248 of companics Ael 2813 and therefore no
‘further disclosere required thereunder.,

Comparatives figures have been reclassifiediregrouped wherever necessary o confinm 10 the currem year classi{jcation.

Ear and ¢a bebalf of Board of Dircetess of the
For AR, & Co. National Highways lefra Investment Managers
Charicred Accountants Private Limited {Acting as Investment Manager of
Firm Registration Ne, 002744C National Highways Infra Trust)

f2ho

e

€A Mohd. Azam Ansari S Krishan Goyal  Mihavir Parsad Sharma
Pasiner Direcior Director

M.No. 311623 BIN: 02721580 DIN: (3158411

Dwte ; 27th May 2024 Mathew Georae LJ zr:r. :

Place : New Delhi Chiel Financizl Officer  Comphance Ollicer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Unit Holders of National Highways Infra Trust
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financjal Statemenis

OFPINION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of National
Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the InviT” or “the Trust"} and its
two subsidiary (hereinafter referred to as “National Highways Infra Projects
Private Limited” or “NHIPPL” and NHIT Eastern Profects Private Limited or
“NEPPL"} (the Trust and its subsidiary together reféerred to as “the Group™), which
comprising of the consclidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity and the
cansolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, the consolidated
Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated
Statement of Total Returns at fair value; the Statement of Net Distributahle Cash
Flows of the Trust and its subsidiaries for the year then ended and notes to the
consalidated financial statements including a summary of material accounting
policy and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred ta as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of our report on firiancial
statements of subsidiary and on the other financia] information of the subsidiary,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the infermation required by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Irifrastructure Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time Including any guidelines and
circulars issued thereunder {(together referred to as the “SEBI InvIT Regulations”}
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Stantdards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companiés (Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsisterit with SEBI
InvIT Regulations, of the consolidated state of affaics of the Group as at 31 Maich

2024, its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, its

consolidated cash flows, its consolidated statement of changes in Unithefd
equity for the year ended 31 March 2024, its consolidated net assets at fARy




as at 31 March 2024, its consolidated total returns at fair value of the Group and
the net distributable cash flows of the Trustand its-subsidiaries for the year ended
31 March 2024.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the SEB]
vIT Regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethiral responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
. audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

a} We draw the attention to Note No, 54 to the financial statements regarding
Initial Improvement Works. The group has recognized provision for initial
improvement works on 1st December 2023 amounting to Rs. 1,11,993.43
lakhs with corresponding impact in Statement of Profit and Loss amounting
to Rs. 1124.63 Lakhs and Rs. 2396.83 Lakhs on accountt of amortization of
injtial improvement work and unwinding of interest on provision of initial
improvement respectively.

b} We draw attention to Note 20 of the financial statements which describes
that Major Maintenance Provision (MMR) is made based on the first cycle of
overlay expected to eccur in five to seven years and not based gn the total
Major Maintenance Cost estimated to he tncurred over entire concession
period. The discounting rate used for arriving at the present value for MMR
provisions is government bond rate of 30 years for projects acquired in first
phase and 20 years for projects acquired in second phase.

€) We draw the attention to Note N, 10 to the financial statements regarding
Capital Advance paid to National Highway Authority of India (NHALI). The
appointed date for these acquisitions fs with effect from st April 2024,
therefore the amount paid to NHAI has been classified as capital advance,
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters,

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters aie those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
finaricial year ended 31 March 2024, These matters were addressed in the context.
of our audit of the consolidated financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opintan thereon,_ and we do not provide a sSeéparate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters t
be communicated in our report. /




Assessinent of [mpairment of Intangible
Assets in form of Toll Collection Rights

The Group operates toll assets which is
constructed on Toll, Operate and Transfer
(TOT) basis. The carrying value of the toll
collection rights as at March 31, 2024 is Rs.
1088670.84 Lakhs.

In accordance with its accounting policy and
requirements under Ind AS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”, the Management has performed
an impairment assessment by comparing the
carrying value of the toll coliection rights to
their recoverable amount.

For impairment testing, value in use has
been determined by forecasting and
discounting future cash flows. Further, the
value in use is highly sensitive to changes in
critical variable used for forecasting the

future cash  flows including  traffic
projections and discounting rates.
The determination of ‘the recoverable

amount of the toll collection right involves
significant estimates and judgments and

Our  Audit Procedures
included the following :-

» Verified the
appropriateness of the
Group’s accounting policy
on impairment of
Intangible Assets and
Valuation  Methodology
applied in determining
the recaverable amount,

* C(hecked the Impairment
Sheet provided by the

Management.

* Obtained the
Management
Representation on  the

assumptions around the
key drivers of the revenue
projections, future cash
flow, discount rates /
weighted average cost of
capital that were used by
them.

* Tested the arithmetical

accordingly, the evaluation of impairment of accuracy of tha
toll collection rights has been determined as Impairment sheet.

a key audit matter. (Refer Note No. 2.1 (d) &

Note 2.1 (1) of accaunting policy relating to

Intangible Assets and Note No. 44 of

Consolidated Financial Staternents for the

year ended 31.03.2024)

Assessment of Impairment of Goodwlll on Our Audit Procedures
Consolidation included the following :-
Goodwill on consolidation is tested for | e Verified the

impairment as per Ind AS 36 on an annual
basis by the Group using enterprise value of
respective subsidiary company to which the
goodwill relates to,

Enterprise value calculation invalves use of
future cashflow projections, discounted to

appropriateness of the
Group’s-accounting policy
on impairment of

Goodwill and Valuation
Methodology applied in
the

determining
enterprise value.




present value, terminal value and other
variables. These use of
projections and estimates results in inherent
risk of error with réspect to the valuation of
Gaodwill and accuracy of impairment loss, if
any.

‘Goadwill amounting to Rs. 1.0,144 .45 Lakhs

as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023
10,14446 Lakhs) arlsing out of business
combination as per Ind AS 103 has heen
tested for impairment by the management.
(Refer Note No. 2(c) & Note No-2.1 (r) for
accounting pelicy relating to Goodwill on
Conso]idaﬁon, Note No, 44 of Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended
31.03.2024)

managément

e Checked thé Impairment

Sheet provided by the
Management.

Obtained the
Management

Representation on the
assumptions around the
key drivers of the revenue

projections, future cash

flow, discount rates /
weighted average cost of
capital that were used by
them.

Tested the arithmetical

accuracy of the
Therefore, Impairment of Goodwill has been Impairment sheet,
‘considered as a Key Audit Matter.

3. | Provisioning of Major | Our Audit Procedures
Maintenance/Periodic included the following :-
Maintenance/resurfacing expenses (Refer
Note No. 20 and 53 of the Consolidated Understood the Group's
Financlal Statements) Process associated with

the estimation of
As per Concession Agreement, the Group is resurfacing obligation.
obligated to performa regular maintenance
along with periodic maintenance of road Verified the requirement
assets during the entire concession period. under Concession
The Periodic maintenance includes resurface agreament and Group’s
of pavements; repairs of structures and other accountinig policy.
equipment and maintenance of service
roads. The Group has eéstimated the Tested the assumption
provision required towards major used in determining the _
maintenrance in accordance with Ind AS 37 major maintenance
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and provisian.
Contingent Assets”. The Provision made by
the Group over the Concession involves Tested the arithmetical
detailed Calculation and Judgement and accuracy and also
accordingly, the major maintenance expense verified the disclosure in
is considered to be the Key audit Matter. the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
4. | Computation and disclosures as | Our Audit Procedures:

prescribed in the SEBI InvIT regulations
relating to Consolidated Statement of Net
Assets at Fair Value and Consolidated
Total Returns at Fair Vilue

As per SEBI InvIT regulations, the Trust is
required to disclose statement - of net assets

included the following :-

Obtained the
understanding of the
requirements of SEBI
InvIT  regulations for

disclosures relati




at falr value and statement of total returns at Consolidated Statement
fair value. The fair value is determined by of Net Assets at Fair Value
forecasting and discounting future cash '
flows from the operations of the investeé
entities  which  involves management
estimates and judgements, These estimates
and judgements include discounting rates,
Tax rates and inflation rates which are | * Assessed the Valuation

and Consolidated
Statement of Total
Returns at Fair Value.

considered for computing the fair value, Report issued by the
™ herent risk in th . Independent Valuer
ere is an inherent risk in the computation
: S engaged the
of fair vilue due to the use of estimates and - gag " by Al
judgements mentioned above. management. 50
assessed the
Therefore, computation and disclosures of appropriateness  of the
Consolidated statement of net assets at fair Trust's valuation
value and Consolidated statement of total meéthadology applied in
returns at fair value is considered as a Key determining the fair
Audit Matter. values.

Refer Note-2.1(r) Significant Accounting .

Assumptions - Fair Value and Disclosures |* Obtained  Management

and Statement of net assets at fair value and representation in  this

Statement of total returns at fair value in the respect.

Consolidated financial statements.

e Tested the arithmetical
accuracy of computation
in the statement of net
assets and total returns at
fair value.

e Ensured that disclosures
Is in compliance with
SEBI InvIT regulations
relating to the statement
of net assets at fair value
and the statement of tatal
returns at fair value.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THE REON

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Report of Investment Manager including
annexures (o Investment Manager's Repoit and ofher information as required to
be given by SEBI InvIT Regulations, but does notinclude the consolidated financial
statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the othér
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financia] statements, our
responsibility isto read the other infoimation and, in doing so, e




the othier information is materially inconisistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our Knowledge obtained during the course of onr dudit or
othérwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is respansible for the preparation
of these consolidated financia) statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, consolidated statement of Profit
& Loss including other comprehensive income, consalidated cash flows and
cansolidated statement of changes in Unitholder's equity for the year ended 31
March 2024, the consolidated net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024, the
consolidated total returns at fair value of the Group and the net distributable cash
flows of the Trust and its subsidiary for the year ended 31 March 2024 in
accordance with the requirements of the SEBI [nvIT Regulations, Indian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1) {a) of Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations. The
respective Beard of Directors of the subsidiary company included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding of
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and ather
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls for
ens'ur.ing the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
and error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of Investment
Manager, as aforesaid,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of
Investment Manager and respective Board of Directors of the company included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group t¢ continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of
Directors either intends ta liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to de so.

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and the respective Board of
Directors of the subsidiary company included-in the Group are also respansible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILFTY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '

RN R TI iR e h e e e e




Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance js a high level of assurance, but is not a guaramntee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detéct a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably he
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Ildentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the corsolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement: resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve callusion, forgery,.
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

* Obtainanb understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances; but not
for the purpose of expressing an upinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of Investment
Manager use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
1o continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinton. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
evenis or conditions may cause the Group to cease.to continue as a going
cancern.

e Evaluate the overail Ppresentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statemenits, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain suofficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group of which
‘we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial stateménts; We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

;5'*"}!
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial
statements that, individually er in aggregate, makes it probable thatthe econ omj¢
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We tonsider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in ]
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We commuhicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We alse provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
caomplied with relevant ethi¢al requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought te bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of maost significance in the audit of the
conselidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes piiblic disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our repart because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our audit and as required by SEBI InvIT Regulations, we report that:

a] We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b} the consolidated Balance Sheet, the consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Unitholders’ Equity, the consolidated Statement of Net Assets at fair
value, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the
Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flaws of the Trustand its subsidiary dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

c) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards. as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not inconsistent
with SEBI InvIT regulations.




d) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Protection and Education Fund by the Trust.

For A. R. & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.002744(

CA Mohd Azam Ansari
Partmer
Membership No: 511623

UDIN: 2\ 81y1£3 3 BlesSsHang

Place: New DPelhi
Date: 27.05.2024




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS TNFRA TRUST
SEBIT Registration Nu mber ;- INIavIT/20-21/0014
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

AN sraannty By € (okE anTess piliormgsy galed)

- Mote As Asat
Partieuties No. [ Makch 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
ASSETS

I} Mon - Carrent Assets
(%} Properly, Plun, and Equipment 3 11929 125.17
(b} Capital work i Progress (CWIF) 4 1975 .
{c] Gaedwill 8 10,144 .45 16,044 16
{d) Otlier Endangibfe asscts I 10,88,670 53 10.00,900 .49
1€) Financial Asces
() Onher Financal Assets 7 10,177.85 9,672.44
(D Defaried Tax Assas (nec -] 11,533.20 468332
{2) Non -Current Tax Assets (Nei) 9 2338 1206
(D} Other Noi Cunenl Assets 1 13,70,642.18 -
Fotal non-catrens assels 16,01 40607 102603957 |
| B) Currcdl Assciy
(@) Firmncial Assels
{E) Trade receivabies 11 385320 350,87
{iyCash and Cash Equivalants 12 46,400,758 212308
€iif) Bank Batances Other than Cash & Cash Equivalens L3 5)29% -
{69 Other financial assats 14 158 6.65
{h) Other current aswis 15 2,303,280 153406
Total curveif assels 43.6507.39 23,115.66
TOTAL ASSETS 27 41,00156 10,49, 155.20
TITY ANDY BILITIES
EQUYTY
13 Unit Capiini 16 14,67 093,47 71,60433
2) Initiod selflemcm zmound 0.19 010
3) Ovher Equily L7 (27 541 44) (2,459,86)
Tabd Equiiy 14,39,552.13 | T3, 134.50
LIABILITIES
1) Non-Cwrrent libRilies
{2) FinaséTal dinbiditizs
(i) Bormowings 18 11,63.304 54 29213833
(i) Other Fiwygial liabilivies 19 80.90 -
(b) Provisians | 35,9232 6,315.81
Totul mon-current Habiliies 1,20 399.16 298.£77.14
23 Currend liabilitices
(2} Fimunciad tubilifies .
(i1 Borrowings 3 10,054,00 2,000.00
0Er Trade Payubles pr
(A} Taial Quistanding, dues of niicre and smali
enterprises 27599 137,73
{h) Toial putitanding, dues or éreditors other Hian .
micra aud sniakl enterpriscs 447900 3877
(1iz) Ouher finawchal liabilities 13 722453 5,284.95
(&) Provisions M TOA04.66 036
{c) Current Tix Liabilitoes (Net) 25 18165 898
(d) Other current limbilites 25 4531.23 | 240.61
Tuial crrens tiabidities 10208197 11,543.50.
Toial linbalitics 13.01.482 23 3,14,020.64

[TOTAL EQUITY & LIAGILITIES 1741,034.36 10,49,155.20

Maienia) Acconnting Pafikies B .

The agcompanying nates foem an indegrl part of these consalidated .46

[inancial staeemenys. ]

This js the Consolidated Balince Sheef referved 14 in our report of even dite.

Far AR. & Co, For and on hehall Buard of the Natiomal Highvweays lufrg
Chartered Accountanis e Investmesd hanagers Private Limlted {lovestment

Finm Regisiration o, (0214HC i R f-{,t Manager o Matiops Highways lnfen Trusg)

flr’l ?r-

. —

CA Mahd. A sari rayal Mahmxir Parsad Shavam
Torinei _ Director
M.No.511623 DIN: 02721580 DiN: 03558413
Dite : 271h May 2024 -
Place : How Deihi : i 7‘

. Mithew George Guuj n‘gﬁ&

Chicf Financial Officer Codpliarice Officer.




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
. SEBI Registration Numiber 1 INevIT/20-21/0014
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS.FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

(Al mnounes in, 7 lals wnless adim-iu: nmad).

. Mote For the year ended For- the year ended
Facticulars No.- March 31,2024 March 31,2023
COME
Revenue from Operations 27 94,390.77 68,1120
inicrest fncome 21 871.71 3n4s
Profil on sule of investments 9 214116 671.17
Other Invome k] 59.53 3211
TOTAL INCOME ¥7,463,17 THOSTIL
EXPENSES
fnvesiment Manger Fee L,500.00 1,26370
Teusleeshiip Fee 9.60 960
Valuation expenses 11.0% 400
Annyig} listing fees 53.80 20,00
Rating foes. 7.7 820
Insurmge expenses 73794 62874
Custoding Fer's ERE .84
Praject Management Fees 1,16820 20120
Opersting Expenses 31 13.665.60 9,025 05
Employee Bengiils Bxpenses 32 1,156.60 289403
Fimance Cost i3 25023.17 16,621.32
Depreciation & Amoriization Expunse xE| 28 TT1L04 17,560.63
Audit Fees 35
- Staluéory udit feos 15 49 113
= nher aadit services (inchuding certification} .72 093
Oiher Expenses a5 2,360.61 152437
FTOTAL EXPENSES 71,9917 48,3473
Prafit / (Loss) before Tax 23.165.47 2L TR
Tax Expenscs 7
Currend Tax 880.30 17149
Cuarrent {ax - éarlier years (2.52) .01
Deferred Tax expensefcredin {6.817,29) {4.422.39)]
Total Tax {70541 13, 048.89%
Profit/ {loss) for the year 2941957 2% 68957
Gther Comprekensive Lireome
ltems ihat will nof be reclogsificd fo Profit o Loss ¢.10 -
lacane tax laling to flems that will gt be reclassificd (o prafit or bosy 0.1 -
13 -
Tatal Comprehénsive.lneame for the year - 20.419.7¢ 25,689.57
Earnings per Unit
Baosic 18 300 39
DBilunied 38 340 391
Muferial Aceonnting Policics 1-2
The accompanying nofes foom an itegrsl part of these cansolidated
[mancial siatemenls, 3-66

This is the Siatenens of Peofit and Less vefrred fo in our report of even date.

Fur AR & Co.

C‘harmred: An:c‘dﬁnl.?m!s ',.@ S C
Firm Regisiration rio, (02744C ﬁ
6 Iow {)elhl E
.:?}

. NS '.\ o
CA Mohd. AzamiAnsarl

Parlm:r -
M.No.5) }&23

Date - 271h May 2024
Place | Néiwv Delhi

Far and on behalf Baarit of the Nativun| Ighways Jufis Investmont
Mauagers Private Limiged (Investiaent Manager of Natiomal

Higbways Tnifra Trust}

DIN: (272 (580

M‘lthm Georgt
Clucf Financial- Officer

il
Mahavir Parsed Shatoa

Dicedtor
DN 03158413

S

Colfipliance Officer




_ NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Nuniber :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

(AN amaunts.in X lakle pnless othernise stated)

Particalars For the year ended For the year ended
’ March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

A, OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Brofit/(Loss) Before Tax 23,465.47 21,740.68
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortization 247704 17.560.63
Prafit on redemption of mutual fonds {2,141.16) (671.17)
[nterést income from FDR {371.71) (373.43)
Finance Cost (net) 2501590 16,590.17
Provision for major maintenanee expenses 8.444.05 5,879.20
Uswinding interest on major mainlenance provision 2867.62 24.95
Provision for Leave encashment and Gratuity 52.43 11.93
Provision for expected eredit loss - §9.60
Bad debts written off - 9.90
Operafing Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 81.603.64 60,832.46
Warking Capital Adjustments:
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade & OQther Receivables (34.34) 150.10
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Neon Current Financial Assets (2.52) (203.85)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current/Current Assets (316.99) {834.96)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets (293.92) {293.53)
Increase / (Decrease} in Trade & Other Payables 12.68 3.207.01
Incrense 7 (Decrease} in Other Financial Lisbilities 188.39 37.50
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions (3.57) 0.1ty
Inerease / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 22927 (0.14)

{321.00) 3,167.02

Income Tax paid (721,42} (626.67)
Net Cash Flows fromf{used in) Operating Activitics 0,461,222 62,3728

B. INVESTING ACITIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment, including CWiP, capital
ereditors and capital advances (15,82,977.68) (2.85,101.04)
Investment in FDR. (951.26) {6.259.19)
Interest received on matrity of FOR, 81099 189.55
Profit on redemption of mutual funds 204106 671.17
Net cash flows from (used in) Investiug activities (15.80,976.79) (,90.53050)

C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lssue of Unit Capita) 7.27.206.41 1,43,013.67
Expense incurred lowards initiat public debt offering - {1,6839.00)
Expense incuned towards institutional unit allofment (1.471.46) (1,09%.13)
Precessing Fee paid (1,482.186) {197.00)
Distrilngtion to Uni Holders (34.491.29) {34.927.36)
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowiags {net of processing fees) 4,84,700.00 1,56,000.00
Financing charges paid (24,90%.51) {11.180.86}
Repayment of Long Term Borrawings (3,759.73) (1,010,983}
Net eash flowvs from (esed in} Financing activities 15,25,792.26 2.42,908.84
Net Enerease/Becrease in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 25,276.69 14,742.14
Cash and casli equivalents at the beginning of the year 2112408 5,381,594
Cash and cash cquﬁfml%nls at the end of the year 46,400.78 21,124.08




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
_ SEBI Regis't-ratiﬂn Nuniber - INAnvIT/20-21/0014
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

‘Reconciliation of Liabilitics arising from Finanicing Activities parsuant te Ind AS 7. Statement-of Cash Flaws,

. For the year ended For the yenv ended
Particulnrs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Carzying amount of debt at the beginning of the year 2.94,158 33 146,537.80
b) Additional borrawings during the vear 8,84,700.00 1.50,000.00
€) Repaynients during the year (1,739,73) {1.010.98)
d) Other adj ustmens/sefferaents during the year .- -

¢) Transaction Cost adjustmeny {1,649.66) (1,368.49)
) Unwinding of imerest ~ -

8} Carrying amount of debtnf (he end of the year 11,73,448.90 2,54,158.33 |

This is the Consolidated Cash Flows Statement reforred (o i our report of even date,

For A.R.& Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regjstration na, 00374

For ard on behalf of ¢he National Highways Infra
Investment Mamagers Private Limited (tavestueyt
Manager of Natispal Highwnys fufra Trast)

CA Mohad. Azam Ansari 5 1an Goyal Mahawvir Parsad Sharng
Partner Dircetor Birgctor

M No.511623 DIN: 02721580 DIN: 03158413

Daie : 21h May 2024 Mathew Gearge

Place : Wew Delhi Chief Fiinancial OlRcer




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
Disclosures pursiant to SEBI circulars (SEB1 Master Circular No.
CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29 November 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations)

Consoliddated Statesyent of Net Assets a1 Fair Yalue { AN ameunls are in 7 Jakh unless ntherwise staled)
As ot March 31, 2024 Ay at March 31, 2023

Parficulary Book vilue Fair value® Baok valug Fair value™

A, Asscls 27,41.U34356 2947.706.90 10,49.,155.20 11.68.122.00
B. Liabifities (at book value) 13.0),482.24 13.01,482.24 3.10.020.64 3 I0.020.60
C. Wit asséts (A1) 143955212 16,46,22.1.66 7,39,134.56 8,58,10136
D. No of urits 1.31.22,00.600.00 1,31.22,00.600.00 72,64,05.200.00 72.64.05, 20,00
L, NAV-(CH)) 109,71 12546 11.78 118.13

 Fuir values of tolal assets cefaling 1o the Trust as at Mareh 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023 as disclosed fbave are based on {he independent valuer report,

Consalidated Statemént of Totl Rednen ae Fair Value: (AN ansunts age in 7 lokh unlessatherwise statedy
Particulary As at Asal
Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Total comprehensive income Byr the year (Ag per the Consolidated 29.319.70 25.689.57
Swatement of Profil and Laoss)
Add: Olher chenges in fair value for the vear ¥ 2.06,672.54 1,18.966.80
[Total remin 2.36,092.24 1,:H1,656.37 |

* In the abave stmcment, olher chanpes in fair valye fur 1he vear ended Mareh 3 1. 2024 & March 31 - 2023 have beer computed based on the independeni valuer
rapart,

The atcompanying nodes foew an integral pary of the Consolidated Financial Stutemenis.
This is the Consalidated Stalement of Net Assids af Fuir Value and Consolidated Statement of Towa] Retum wt Fair Value referred o o our rcporl of éven dae,

For AL & Co. For und on behalf of the Nationaf Ilighways Infra
Chartered Accountants Investment Mamagérs Privare Limited {Iovestment
Manager of Nutional Nighways Tnfra Trust)

Firm Registrativn no. 027440

3has
CA Mohd, Azambnsari Sn CrisHan Goyat Mahavir Parsad Sharma
Pariner Director Yireotar
M.No:-511623 DIN: 027213580 DIN: 03558413
ey

Dite : 27t May 2024 oy 4,0/’ o
Place : New Delhi g ’ 7

Mathew Genrge (,u fan. ingh

Chief Financial Officer




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Nusaber :- INTavIT/20-21/0014
CONSOLIDATER STATEMEXT OF CHANGES EX'UNIT HOLDER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED NARCH 31, 2024

A Initia) Seitlement Amount _
AN amoums in £ lakh-unless otherwise siated)

Particulsrs Artwoung
Balance as af April 1, 2022 0.1a
Changes in unil capitul -
Bulanice x5 af Mareh 31 2023 010
Changes in unit capitiil -
Batlance 2y ai March 31, 2024 w1e

B. Unil Capitai *

Particulars Number of unit Amannt
Dalanee us of April 1, 2022 3%.52.00,000 S09.442.82
Changes in unit capial 13,12,05,200 L43.M367
One timez issue gxpenses (852173
Balunce s at March 31, 2023 7244,005,200.00 4L,604.3Y
Changes in unil eagital 38,52.95.400.00 7,27,1541
Cne pm; iSsue cxpenses (1.717.26)
Balance o5 nt NMueh 33, 2024 131,22.00,600 14,67,003 .47

Issue expenses of Rs, 171726 lakhs (March 31, 2023; Rs 85217 Iakdis) incurred in connection with issue of units have bren reduced from the
Unifhaldees capital in aceordance with Ind AS 32 Financial Instrumens: Presentation

C. OTHER EQUITY *=*
LA ainounts i 2 Taki unless otherwvise stoted

Ttems af Qther Comprehensive
Income

Reserves wnd Surplic . -
Particnlars Ltems that-witl not be reckyssified w “T'otal

prafit ar loss
Retined Enrnings Remeasarcment of Defincd Benelit

Obligation/ Plan
Balance as ar Aprit 1, 2022 6.768.43 - 6,768.13
Profit! {Loss ) for the vear | 25.6R9,57 - 25,680.57
Less:
Distriburon Lo unit hetders
Imérest 34.183.66 - Ja83.66
Qthwr Income 744,20 . 4420
Baltnce oy ol March 31, 2023 (2,46%.86) - (2,460.36)
Prafitd (Loss) far the year 2901957 013 20.419.70
Busse
Disiribution to wnié holglors®
Interest 33,701.68 . 53,700 6%
Onher Income THY.00 - TH9, 64
Balarce as af March 31, 2024 (2784157 .73 27,8148y

“The digiribution relales to the distibutions during the finmicial year glong with the distribution related 10'the last quarter of FY 2022-73 and docs nar
include the distribution reluting to the meriad Februsey ), 2024 1o March 31, 2024 wlich will be paid sfter March 31,2024, Thie distribritions by the
Trust to its unit holders aree hased on the Net Diseributivhlc Cash Flows ol the Trust under the SEBI In¥IT Regalativns,

* Refer Nole Mo, 16
*#* [icler Mot No_ 17

For AR, & Cu.
Chariered Acceuntants
Firm Regisieation no. 002744

Fur and ud beludf of the Natiarial Highways Infry fnvestaeot
Munugrers Privale Lineifed (Investment Mamapdr of National
ighways Infra Trust)

L
CA dobhil, A:2im Ansan Makavir Parsad Shuenin
Partner Directar
MNo.5E1623 DI 62721580 _ DI 03138413
7

Date - 271h May 2024 ﬂ W
Place : New Delhi _ /‘@' - maf o

Madiew Gearpe drh

Chicf Finemcial Officer  Officer




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number ;- INAnvIT/20-21/0014
Disclosures parsuant 1o SER! circilars (SEBIMuistér Cireular Na, CIRSEBIIHDfDl}IlS_DiVSIPJCIR!zﬂZNIﬁH dated 2K
Noveriber, 2821 fssued under the InvIT regulations)

A. Statement of Net Distribatable Cash Flows (NDCF) at Trust Level NHIT

(AN Zimonmbs b ¥ ik wiless grherwse st

S.
No.

Parlicolurs

For the yeur ended | Far the year engkd
Jtst Mapch 2024 31st March J03

i

Profit affer tuwy =
(Standalone) {A)

per Staferseut of profit and lossfincome and expenditare

96,819.27 77,13617

Add: Brepreciation and aumortization 88 per siafzment of profit aod
lmpairmn:ut-mv:rs:ll, samenceils to be deducted from profii anid loss.

i0ss acconnt. Incase of

Add/Less: Losstfunin on sale slinfrastructre assets

Add: Procecds Jrom sake of i f;ostracise psseis adjusted for the flfordng:

reluted debis seitled or diz 1o be settled Fom sale proceeds:

directly gitributabls transaérion costs;

procecds reinvesied or plamned fo be reinvesied ag per Regulation I8(7)(a) of dw InyIT
regulations

LA

Add: Proceeds from sqle af Wfensiructure assels not distcibhoted purspant 1o an carlier plan 1o
re-invest, it such proceeds ane not inlcnc_lcd 10 be invested subsequently, net of any profil
{loss) recomsiised in profitand loss agcount

Addl Less: Any offter item of mon- cash expense/ nog cash incomg (nct of petual cusly flows
for these items}, if deenried necessary by the Investment Manager,
For esamgle, any deereases increase in Ccanying mmount af on asset or o liubility recognised in

profil aid loss finegme ad xpendilure on measurcinent of the assed ar e Jiability a1 tair

vilue
Intersst cost as pur effogiie interest rate wethod, defereg o beiise
sirgight line basis, cic.

Fellls recognised op g

(82,058.0%) (415.002.00)

Less: Repayment of cxternal debl {principaly ¢ redeematle
cle. (exeluding refinancing) / oet cash sct aside 13 coinply
ngrecments,

preerence shares 7 debentures,
with DSRA requireiment miler Joan

4,206,733 {L.010.28)

Toin Adjustment (B)

(86,264,77) (46,012.98)

Net Surplus () = (A+B) (NDCF)

10,554.50 31.223.19

Add: Inconvie recognised in previaus year and reevived in this yeor

45.685.43 10.551.13

Less = Interest expensey recupiised in previaus yeaz and paid m this year

(5.129.59)

Disiibetnbie Cash Figw

S4,11335 41.674.31

Less: Amout already disetbused 1o Unitholders {for Mie period Fom April 33 o Jon 20(PY

A2,843 37 3022578

Tt the period from-April 23 10 Decenpher 220

*269.97

Balanee Neg I Able €agl Flows for the year coded March 31, 2024
drs
N

1164851




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
_ SEBI Registration Number :-IN/TuvIT/20-21/00 14
Disclosures pursunnt to SEBA cireutars (SER] Mastor Circglar Na. GlRSEi!Ia‘I-iO!nBHS_Divm}CIMBZI-M 673 dared 2941
November, 2021 ssued under the | nviT regulations)

L. Slm_e‘ﬂ!l!_llf of Mot Wisjributable Cash Flows {NI]_C_F} at 8PV Level (NIIIPP‘L}
CAIF o icds i 2 Tk un Bess nifvenyise sldtedr

. . For the year ended Farrthe year ended
8. No. Pasticulurs Narch 34,204 | Maseh 312023
I |Profit"{Ldes) alter toy qs per Statcinent of profit and kssfieeonie and mpendily (65:433.38) {5L,546.61)
(stand alone} (1) "]
2 |Ada: Dopreciatian and amortization a3 stuternent of prafit aid loss accoun, Iacase o 247791 17,360.63

lmpnirheni sevezsal, sunc needs 1o be doducied Tfrum prafit and pss,
3 |AddiLess: Loss'eain on e of infragtsnctuce asers - -
4 [Adit: Peoceeds fium sile of infiasirmetuce aescsis adjusted for flye following: . .
related debisscitind or duz 10 bet scitled from sle proceeds:

direeily aneibuiable-ransaction co31s;

proceds reinveskd or plined o be reinvésted as per Resulating 18 7Xa} of the TmT
rexulitions

5 JAdd: Pracecds Fom sabe of infrastructure assals ot drstribuied pucssan to an ardier plaiy (27 {134.38)
Lo se-jnves), if such proceeds are ot ended 1o e fivested sabsequenily. met of any profiy/
Uhoss) recognised inprofit and loss accounl, ’
& [AdW Less; Any atber iters of non- civsh expense! s cash income (net of actul ensh flows 1,25, 203,04 9,715,45
for thusse iems), i fdeemed necessiry by the Tnvesimen banager

For extiple, iny decreasss increase. in canrving amousit of an asser we o linbiléty recagnised
T prolit and loss Ancame d expendilge on measareant ol e st or the dinbifivy-at G,
vl

Interest cost as per effivtive Sticres! rale nicliod. defiurred las lease rents recositised giva
straighy o basis, etg, '

P |Less Repayment of exicenal debit Corincipal) 7 redesmoble profirence shares 7 debentures, {304,25) 1:4,004,00)
vie, {excluiling refimicing) 7 oot cash i aside 10 conply wily DSRA requirenent myder]
loan apreeimenis, =*

8 _|Total Adjustamenis (1) 149,526.9¢ 1L12650.71
3 |Met Distvibutabie Cisl: Flows (C) = ;ﬂ-i-ﬂ) 4,003,658 GE 112,10
* This uchides anvound slilized Tor purchase of Property, Pland and Enwimenrs and Tntangible Asscis,
** As 0 3103-2004 thisincludes Fixed Depesit of Ry 504,26 Lakls lien maked in Govar ol iqn): of Mahavashinz iguinst Per foemarge Bank
Guirandee fssued in fivone of NHAI

Adjustieiit fo Net Distribtable Cusls Flows

% No. Particulais For the year coded | Far the year ended
Dlarcl: 32, 2024 March 31,2023
1 INer Distriuiabla Cash figer for. 1he yrar {From{C) Above) . 84,09).58 61,112.10
2 |Lisg Actunl D bagtion urioyr the: year (33, ¥19:93) 58,661,001
| Balxniee L5365 2.441.00
Add: Opeiing Swpis ( Opeing Cosh adjusted with Mer warking Capiialas on 31-03-
3 J20n 3,896,070 -
4 {Cess-Cash. Sel Asige For movémnet i nef weskine capitnd a5 on 31-03-3029 (254,95 -
Batasice Disiributable Cash Doy st F.084.93 | 245109

on 315 March 2124 s been digtributed rg Trugl in Apeil 2024,




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :-1N/InvIT/20:21/0014.

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circiilar No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673
dated 29¢k Noveniber, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations)

. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) at 5PV Level (NEFFL)
(All amounts in 2 lakh unless athényise stated)

Foi the year ended

S. No. Particulars Mareh-31, 2024
{dndived)

] Profit/ (Loss) after tax as per Statemiend of profit and less/income and expenditare (1,693.38)
(standalone) A}

2 |Add: Depreciation and amortizalion as per stalement of profit and loss account. Incase off 0.13
Impairment reversal, same rieeds to be deducted from profit and loss.

3 |Add/Less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastruclure assets .

4 |Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assests adjusted for the followi ng: -
related debis settled or due to be setfled from sale proceeds;
directly attribuiable transaction costs;
praceeds reinvested or planned fo be reinvested as per Regulation 18¢ 7Ha) of the InvIT regulations

3 JAdd: Proceeds from sake of infrastencture assets not distributed pursuant to an sarlier plan to re- (0.50)

invest, if such proceeds are not intended 1o be invested subsequenty, net of any profil? (loss)
recagnised in profif and loss account, * '

6  |Addf Less: Any ather item of non- cash expense/ non cash inconie inet of actual cash Hlows for 1217.93
these items). if deemed riecessary by the Investment Manager. _
For example, any decrease! increase in carrying ainount of an asset or a liabllity recognised in profig
and loss /income and expenditure on measurement of (ke asset or the liability at fair value:

Interest cost a$ per effective interest rate method, deferred tax lease rents-recognised on a slraight
line basis, cic,**

7 |Less; Repayment of extemal debr (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentores, ete. -
{exciuding refinancing} 7 net cash sel sside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan

agreements,
g Tatal Adfustments (B) 2217.57
9 |Net Distributable Cash Flows (C} = (A+B)** 524.19

# This includes amount utflized for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment's and Intanaible Assets
** The distributable cash flows are retined for working capital requirsments of the Company.




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the yéar ended March 31, 2024

GROUP INFORMATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Natjonal Highways Infra
Trust (“the Trust” or “InvIT™) and its subsidiaries (Project SPV — National Highways Infra
Projects Private Limited (NHIPPL) & NHIT Eastern Projects Private Limited (NEPPL))
{collectively, the Group).

The Trust is an irrevocable trust registered under the provisions of the indian Trusts Act, 1882 on
Qctober 19, 2020. It is registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (lafrastructure
Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 on October 28, 2020 having registration number
[N/InvIT/20-21/0014.

“The Trust was setup by National Highways Authority of India ("NHAI” or the “Sponsor™), an
Infrastructure Development Trust in India. The Trustee to the Trust is IDB] Trusteeship Services
Limited (the “Trustee™) and Investment Manager for the Trust is National Highways Infra
[nvestment Managers Private Limited (“Investment Managei™). '

The Trust has been formed to invest in infrastructare assets primarily being in the road sector in
India. The Trust’s toad projects are implemented and held threugh special purpose vehicles
“Project SPVs™/ “Subsidiaries™), The units of the Trust were listed in Bombay Stock Exchange
and National Stock Exchange on November 10, 2021. :

During FY 21-22, the Trust acquired 100% equity coatrol in National H ighiway Infra Projects
Private Limited (the “Project SPV™) from the Sponsor with effect from November 03, 2021. The
Project SPV (NHIPPL)} has enteréd into five concession agreements with National Highway
Authority of India (“NHAF"} on March 30. 2021 for Tolling, Management, Maintenance and
Transfer of five 1ol road projects for a period of 30 years from the A ppointed Date. The Appointed
Date has commenced on 16.12.2021.

In previous financial year, Project SPV {NHIPPL) entered into three new concession agreements
with National Highway Autbority of India ("NHATI™) on September 26, 2022 for Tolling,
Management, Maintenance and Transfer of three toll road projects for a period of 20 years from
the Appointed Date, The Appointed Date has commenced on 29.10.2072.

During Current financial year, the Trust has invested in the equity share capital of the NHIT
Eastern Projects Private Limited (Project SPV - NEPPL} & holding 100% equity share capital.

The Project SPV (NEPPL )has entered into seven concession agregnients with National Highway
Authority of India (“NHAI™} for Tolling, Management, Maintenance and Transfer of seven toll
road projects for & period of 20 years from the Appointed Date, The Appointed Date Has
commenced on 01.04.2024.

The registered office of the Trust is G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, Delhi - 110675,

The consolidated financial statements were anthorised for issue in accordance with resolution




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Nates to Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group comprising of the Consolidaied Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the-Conselidated Statement of Cash Flows. the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Unitholders® Equity for the year then ended, the Consolidated statement of Net
Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, the Consolidated statement of Total return at fair value,
and the Consolidated statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) for the year then ended
and a sumniary of material accounting policies and other explanatory nofes have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies
{Indian Accounfing Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended (“Ind AS”), and other accounting
principlés generally accepted in India to the extent not 1ticonsistent with the InvlT Repulations,

The Consclidated Financial Statements of the Group for the Year ended March 31, 2024 has been
prepared in accordance with Indian Aecounting Standard, 4s defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Aecounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally actepled in India to the extent not incomsistent with the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations. 2014 {*InviT
regulations™ (as amended} wicluding SEBI Master Circular SEBIHO/DDES-PoD-
2P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 herein after referted to as “SEBI Master Circular™. Refer
note 16 on presentation of "Unit capital” as "Equity” instead of compound financial instruments
under Indian. Accounling Standard (Ind AS) 32- Financia! Instruments: Presentation), The Group
has applied the accounting policies during the periads presented.

The Conselidated Financial Statements are presented in India Rupees which is also the functional
currency of the Group. and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Impact of the initial application of new and amended IND ASs that are effective for current
year:

In the current year, the Group has applied the below antendments to Ind ASs that are effective for
an annual period thal begins on or after April 1, 2023,

(&) The Group has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 — “Presentation of Financial Statements™
{or the first time in the current vear. The amendments change the yequirements in Ind AS 1 with
tegand to disclosure of aceounting polities. The amendments replace alt instances of the term
*significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting pelicy information’. Accounting policy
informaiion is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general-purpose {inancial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

{b) The Group has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 8 — “Accounting Policies. Changes in
Accounting Estirnates and Errors” for the first tirme in the current vear. The amendment replace
the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates, Under
the new definifion, accowting estimates are-“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. The detinition of a change i accounting estimates was
deleted.

4




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Notes to Consolidated Financial $tatements for the year ended March 31, 2024

b} Basis of Consolidation

The conselidated financial statements iﬁco;‘porate the finangial statements of the Trust and it’s
Project SPVs’ (NHIPPL - {rom date of acquisition i.c. November 3,2021 & Projéct SPV - NEPPL
- from date of incorporation i.e. April 19, 2023).

Group consolidates entities wliich it owns or controls, Control exists when the Trust has power
over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, 10 variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affegt those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated
through existing rights that ive the ability ta direct relevant activities, those which signifteantly
affeet the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which coniro] is
transferred to the Group until the date confrol ceases.

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. The Group combines the financial
statements of the Trust and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of asseis,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between gronp companies are eliminated.

¢) Business Combination/ Goedwill on Acquisition

The Group acguires operational toll road SPV from the Sponsor. The key activity for these SPVs
is toll colleetion and the maimtenance of the toll roads.

Based on evaluation vis-a-vis the puidance on definition of busintess under Ind AS 103 and also
keeping in view the relevant guidance on similar fact patterns available under accounting standards
applicable in other jurisdictions, the management has classified the acquisition of toll road SPVs
as business combinations.

Business combinalions are accounted for using the acquisition method. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling inferests in the acquiree at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related
costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred,

The acquiree’s jdentifiable asscts, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for
recognition are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition datg,

Goodwill is initially measured at cost which is not amortised, however, it is tested for impairment
annually. In the event of cessation of operatioas of a subsidiary, the unimpaired goodwill is written
off fully.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recogziised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An
imipairment loss recognised for.goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods, Where goodwill
has been allocated to a cash generating unit and part of the eperation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation js included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal, ' ; '
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the yéar ended Maréh 31, 2024

Gaodwill disposed i these circiimstances is measufed based on the relative values of the'disposéd
operation and the portion of the casli-generating unit retained,

Summary of Material Accomiting Policies
Current versus non-current classification

Based on the time involvéd between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in. ¢ash and cash equivalents, the Trost has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for
determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the.
Grovp and the revenue can be.reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made,
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received ar receivable, taking inle
account contractually defined terms of payment and-excluding taxes or duties collected on, behalf
of the government. '

The specific recognition criteria described below must alse be met before revenue is recognised:

Tolt Revenue - Toll Revenue from users of toll roads held by subsidiary company i3 reeognised
in 1espect of toll revenue accrued for respective foll road projects. Revenue from electronic toll
collection is recognised on zccrual basis.

Interest income - Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividends - Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is
established,

Claims with National Highways Authority of india ("NHAY) and other government authorifies
are accounted as and when the money is received from the respective authorities, in cases of
monetary compensations.

Other ifems - Other items of income are recognised as and when the ri ght 1o receive the income
arises, '

Property, plant and cquipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated at hisforical cost, as applicable, less accumniated
depreciation and cumulative impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes puschase price. borrowing costs and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included jn ﬂf]c-,asse_t's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assef, 4§
appropriate, only when it is probable that the future econermic benefits associated with the itenr
will flow to the entity and the cost of the jtem can be measured reljably. Cost includes expenditire

that is directly attributable to .qualifying assets and includes borrawing costs capitalis




NATIONAL H-I_GHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the.year ended March 31, 2024

accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriage
categories of property, plant, and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Depreciation on Plant and Equipritent is provided using straight-line methiod based on estimated
uselul life. The estimated useful life of all the property, plant-and equipment is ascertained by the
management using the best estimate on the basis of technical evaluation; which is depreciated
based on useful life as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on
additions/ deductions is calculated pro-rata fromy/ to the month. of additions/ deductions.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each period end and adjusted prospectively, il appropriate.

The Group bas estimated the following useful lives for ils tangible fixed assets:

Category of Assets | Estimated useful life

(in years)
Temporary Struciore | 3
Computer 3

Office Equipment’s | 5
Furniture & Fixtures § 10
Plant and Machinery | 5-20

The estimated residual value of the PPE has been taken as 5% as prescribed in Schedule 1 o the
Companies Act, 2013. Fixed Assets amounting upto INR 5,000 are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss in entirety in the year of purchase.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated
amortisation, and cumulative impairment, if any.

Intangible Assets are staled at historical cost. as applicable, less accumulated amortisation and
cumulative impairment losses; if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed. as either finite or indefinite.
Rights under Service Concession Arrangements — Toll Collection Rights

The Group has acquired rights for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and Transfer of five toll road
projects for 2 period of 30 years basis Toll Cencession agreements with NHAL, group further
acquired rights during the Previous F.Y. 2022-23 for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and
Tranafer of three additional toll road projects for a périod of 20 years w.e.f. 29.10.2022 basis Toll
Concession agreements with NHAI, and the same have been recognised as Intangible Assets in
the financial statements. Further, the group has acquired seven concession agreements with
National Highway Authority of India (“NHAL") for Tolling, Manageinent, Maintenance and
Transfer of seven toll road projects for a period of 20 years fiom the Appointed Date, The
Appointed Date has commenced on 01.04.2024 and therefore the revenue and expemes of thet.e
seven road proje jects shalt be recognised from vext financial year,
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Notes to Consolidated Finarcial Stateraents for thé year ended March 31, 2024

Extension of concession period by the Authority in compensation for élaims made by the Group
are capitalised as part of Toll Collection Rights on aceeptance of the claim. Where the Group has
a contractual right 1o an extension in the concession period as per the concession apresment, the
same is capitalized when the right to extension in the concession period is established at the
estimated amount of eligible claims.

Amortisation of ]ntangible Asscts

Toli CoYlection Rights are amortized basiz a Consumption based model (using Passenger Car Unit
(PCU) projections) over the tenure of the Concession Agreement. The projected wraffic is based
on independent traffic volume projections: amortisation is revised in case of any material change
in expected pattern of economic benefits.

Other intangible assets - Saftware purchased is amortized over a period of three fo six years on
straight line basis from the month in which the addition is made. The estimated useful life is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period. with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity. compensated absences, and medical benefits.

i. Short term employce henefits
Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, expected cost of bonus.
ex-gratia and performance linked rewards falling due wholly within twelve manths of rendering
the service are ¢lassified as short-term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in
which the emplovee renders the related service.

ii. Post-Employment Benefits
Defined contribution pian: A defined contribution plan is a post-cmployment plan undet
which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further amounts. The Group contributes to provident fund and employees deposit linked
fsurance scheme, and have no further obligations bevond making its cobtvbulions. The
Group's contribution 10 the above funds are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Defined benefis plan;: The Group has an un-funded benefit plan for post-employment benefits
in the form of Gratuity. The value of ébligation under the pian is determined by the group based
on hest eslimate of the present value of the estimated future cash flows towards the gratuity
obligation. Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or
losses on scttlements are recognised in the Consolidated Stateruent of Profit and Loss as
employee benefits expense. Gains or losses on the curfatlment or seftiement of any defined
benefit plan aré recognised when the curtailment or settlement oceurs.

iii. Termination benefits
Ternmination. benefitz such as compensation under employee separation schemes (wherever
applicable) are recognised as expense in the Conseolidaled Statement of Profit and Loss.




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Nodtes to Cansolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

iv. Other long-term employce bénefits
The present valug of the obligation under lopg term employee benefit plans suely as
compensated absences s deterniined and is recognised in a similar manner as in the case of
defined benelit ptans.

Long term employes benefit costs comprising current service cost and gains or josses on
curiailments and settiements, re-measurements are recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss ds employee benefit expenses. [nterest cost implicit in fong term employee
benefit cost is recogmised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under finance cost.

Leases
The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract.

At the date of commencement of the Jease, the Group recoguizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term Ieases) and low value feases, which are accounted
for as under.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Shott term leases ave leases with z term of twelve montlis or less. For shott-term and low value
leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs inchide interest calculated using the effective interest method, amortization of
ancillary costs and other costs the Trust incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Finrancial Instruments

Financial assets and {inancial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and {inancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assels and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilitics, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. However, transaction costs directly atiributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {"FYTPL"™)
are rceognized immediately in. the Statement of Profit and Loss, o :

If the Group determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the trafsaction piice,
the Group accounts for that instrument at that date as follows:

s al the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair vahie is evidenced by & quoted price
in an active market for an identical asset or Hability (i.e. a-Level § input) or based on a
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difféerence between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain
or loss.

s in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Afiex
initial recognition, the Group recognises that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to
the extent that it arises froma change in a factor (including time) that market participants
would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.
Financial Assets

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirey at either amortized cost
or fair value, depending on the classification ol the financial assets.

1. Classificatidn of Financial Assets

Financial Assets that mect the following conditions are subsequently measured at amwortised cost
(unléss the same are designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)):

¢ 'The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
cotect contractual cash flows: and

» The contractual terivis of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ave solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding..

Financial Assets ai FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and all changes are
recognized in profit or foss.

2. Amortized cost and effective interest method
Income i8 vecognized on an effective interest method as per Ind AS 109 for finaneial assets other
than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss and is included in the "Other income” line item.

3. Impairment of financial assets (Expected credit loss model}
An impairment Ioss on financial asset is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Im_pairmeni']ess, if any, are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss for the periad.

4, De-recognition of financial asséts
The Group derecognize a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

assel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards-of
ownership of the asset to another party.
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On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entizety, the difference beiween the asset's carying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been récognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is. recognized
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in the Statément of
Profit or Loss on disposal of that financial asset.

1) Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case ot loans and borrowings
and payables, net of diréctly attzibutable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequentfy measured at amortized costs using Effective Interest Rate
method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are subsequently measured at fair
value.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabifity is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another frem the same
lender on substantiaily different terms, or the terms of an existing liability substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of the new liability. The difference in the respective carried amount is recognized in
ihe Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial liability is derecognized when the cbligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

¢) Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by Group are classified as either {inancial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity insteument,

Kair Value measurenient

TFair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using anather valuation techinique. In estimating the
fair valug of an asset or a liability, the Group considers the characteristics of the asset or liability
i market participants would take those eharacteristics into account when pricing the asset or
Hability at the measuentent date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in. these
financial Statements is determined on such a basis and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable vatue in Ind AS 2 “Inventory™ or value in
use in Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets™.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes; fair value measutements are :cate_gori_zed into Level
I, 2 61 3 hased on the degree to which the inputs to the fairvalue measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fait value measurement in its entirety, which are-described
as follows: '

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liahilities that entity can access at measurement date

» Level 2 inputs other than quefed prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability; either directly (as prices) or indirectly (dertved fiom prices); and

« Level 3 _inj}u_ts for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Caslt and Cash Equivalerits

Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand,
overnight mutual fund investments and short-teim deposits with an original maturity of three

mounths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are-
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Impairment of Non- Financial Assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating woits at each reporting date are reviewed for
impairment if any indication of impairment exists. If any indication exists, the (ireup estimates-
the asset's recoverable amount. use.

II" the carrying amount of the assets éxceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is
recognized for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific 1o the asset [or which the estimated fufure cash flows have not been
adjusted.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recogmized for an asget (other than a revalued
asset) in earlier accounting: periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of
impairment Lass is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Protit dand Loss.

Taxes im income
Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit {or the year is the tax payable on current year's takable incoric
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes it deferred. tax assets and. habll' 7
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attributable to temperary differences and to unused tax [osses. The currerit income tax charge is
calculated based ontax laws-enacted of substantively enacted at {he end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in fall, using the liability method on temporary differences arising
between the tax’ bases of assets and liabilities and their carrymg amounts in the financial
statements. However deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from the ipitial recognition
of an asset or liability that at the time of the transaetion affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred inconie tax js deterimined nsing tax rates and laws that lave been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected o apply when
the related deferred income tax asset/liability is realized or settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deduclible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only if'it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary
differences and losses.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics, Contingent Assets and Capital Commitments

Contingent Liabilifics

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of a present obligation arising from past events,
whep. it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a
present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

Centingent Assets
Contingent assefs usually arjse from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity.

Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of income js virtually certain, in which case
{he related assel is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date. A contingent asset is disclosed where an
inflow of economic henefits is probable.

Provisions

Provisions are. recogn ised when the Trust has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation..

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating,
investing and financing activities.

Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect methad adjusting the net profit for
the effects of’

L changes dunng the period in operating receivables and payables, transactions of a non-
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» non-cash iiems such as depreciaticn, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign
currency gains and losses;
« all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (inchuding bank balances) shown in the Consalidated Statement of Cash
Flows exclude items which are not available for generai use as at the date of Consclidated Balance
Sheet.

Distribution to unit kolders

The Group recegnises a liability to make cash distribulions to unit holders when the distribution
is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the SEBI InviT Regulations, a
distribution is authorised when it isapproved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager.
A corresponding amount is recognised direetly in other equity.

Earnings per Unit (EPU)

Basic EPU are calculated by dividing the prolit for the period atteibutable to unitholders by the
weighted average number of units outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPU are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) aitributable to unitholders by the weighted
average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units
that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital.

Recent Pronouncements

As on 31* March 2024, there are no new standards or amendment to the existing standards
applicable tg the Group which has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
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Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assurptions

The preparation. of the Group's financial statements requites management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect (he reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liahilities, and the accompanying disclosures; and the disclosure of cu:}ntmgent labilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require 2 material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's aceounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recogaised in the financial stalements.

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Group has determined that Appendix D fo Ind AS 115 “Revenve from Contracts with
Customers™ relating to “Serviee Concession Arrangements’ is applicable to the SPVs which
provides an acconnting by the operators of public Lo private service concession arrangements. The
SPVs have entered imo concession arrangenent with Nationgl Highway Authority of India
(NHAID (the “Authority™} as per which the individual SPVs would participate in Toll Operate
Tramsfer (TOT) of the toll roads infrasiructure. After the end of the Coricession arrangement, the
SPVs have to transfer the infrastructure i.c. tolf roads constructed to the Authority.

Accordingly, the SPVs have recognized the intangible assets as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note (d) Infangible Assets,

Future revenue projections for the balance concession period

The future revenue projections are based on the assumptions made by the Group’s management
regarding future traffic growth and inflation factor for assessing user toll fee as supported by the
studies from the third-party independent consultant for individual project done at reasonable
nteryals.

The Group uses the future revenue projections for the following purposes:

s Amortisation of Rights under Service Concession Arrangements (8CA) ie.
Intangible Assets-Toll Road Carriageway:

Toll Colleciion Rights are amortized on the basis of Consumption based model (using
Passenger Car Unit (PCU) projections) over the tenure of the Concession Agreement. The
projected traffic is based on independent traffic volume projectwns amorlisation is
revised in case of any material change i expected pattern of economiic benefits.

Classification of uqit kolders Funds
The Unit Capital has been presented as “Equity™ in accordance with the InvIT Regulations instead
: cial instrument. Refer note 16 on presenlation of "Unit capital” as " "g}uty
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instead of compound financial instuments under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 32-
Financia) Instruments: Presentation).

Fair value measurcrents

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. The Trust
engages third party valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information abour the
valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of investments are disclosed in
the notes to Standalone Financial Statements.

Fair valuation and disclosures

SEBI Master Circular issued under the SEBI InvIT Regulations reguires disclosures relating to
net assets at fair value and total retifns af fair value. In estimating the fair value of investinents in
subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Gronp engages independent
qualified exiernal valuers (o perform the valuation. The Investment Manager works closely with
the valuers (o establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs te the model. The valuation
report and findings are discussed at the meeting of the Board of Directors on yearly basis lo
understand the changes in the fair value of the subsidiaries. The inputs to the valuation models are
taken from observable markets, where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such
as weighted average cost of capital, tax rates. inflation rates ete. Changes in assumptions about
these factors conld affect the fair value.

Useful lives of property, plant, and equipment

Management of the Group reviews the nseful lives of property, plant and equipment at each
reporting date [ ensure that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the
Czroup,

Obligations relating to employec benefits

The employee benefit obligation depends on several factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using several assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/ (incowme)
include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions
will zmpact upen the carrying amount of einployce benefit obligations,

oy New D(.‘.h‘l ,.
%’a\ '
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Iimpairment of intangible assets

Inipairment exists when. the -carrying value of an asset or cash g generating umit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The recoverable amounts for the intangible assets are based on value in use of the underlying
projects. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from
forecasts over the remaining SCA period of the projeets.

Major Maintenance Expenses / Resurfacing Expenses

As per industry praclice, the Project SPV (NHIPPL) is required to carry out resurfacing of the
roads under the Concession. For this purpose, a regular maintenance along with periodic
maintenances is required to be performed. Normally, periodic maiatenance includes resurface of
pavements, repairs of structures and other equiptent and maintenance of service roads. The
maintenance cost / bituminous overlay may vary based on the actual usage during maintepance
period. Accordingly, on the grounds of matching cost concept and based on technical esti maigs, a
provision for major maintenance expenses is reviewed and is provided for in (ke accounts
annually.

The provisions for MMR as per indusiry practice has been made based on the first cycle of of
overlay expected to occur in five fo seven years and not based on the total MMR cost over entire
concession period. The discounting rate nsed for arriving at the present value for MMR provisions
is govermment bond rafe of 30 years for projeets acquired in first phase and 20 years for projecis
acquired in second phase.

Expected Credit Loss an financial assets

As per Ind AS 109, Financial Assets that are measured at amortised cost are required to compute
the Expected Credit Loss (ECL}. As al the reporting period. [nvestment manager of the Group
assessed the credit risk of the financial assets and concluded that no provision for ECL is required,
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3 Broperty, Plant and Equipment

(Al amounts in ¥ Inkh unfess oflerwise stated)

Particulnrs Temparary Plant & Office Furniture &

Structure Machinary Computer Equipments Fixtures Tora)
Gross ¢ Arrying Amouwnt:
Balance as =zt April [, 2822 - .50 - . 0.50
Additions 25,59 44,94 1742 4427 13222
Less: Disposals - : - - - -
Balance as at March 31,2023 25,59 45.44 17.42 d4.27 132,72
Additions 10.99 13.58 43.60 4832 26.75 143.23
Les§: Disposals - 1.09 - - 109
Balance x5 at March 31, 024 . 36.58 13,58 87.9% 65.74 71.02 274.86
Accunrolated Depreciatian;
Balance a5 ¢ April £,2022 - 0.04 - " D.04
Additions 1.49 4,32 0.52 0.88 7.51
Less: Disposals - - - ~ -
Balpnce as at March 31,2423 1.49 4.36 0.92 0.38 7.55
Additions 10.71 0.08 22,29 ¢a7 5437 48.11
Less: Disposals - 0,20 - - 0.20
Balince nx at March 31,204 1220 0.08 26.36 10.79 6.[5 55.57

Net Carrying Amonnt:
Balance as at March 31, 2023 24,14 - 41:08 16.60 43,39 115,17
Balance as at March 31, 2024 24.38 13.50 61.59 5495 64.87 209,29
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4. Capital Work in Frogress
(Al amounts in € ki unless othenyise stated)

s As at Asat
I

Particulars March 31,2024__March 31,2023
Plant and Machinery* 19.76 -
Total 19.76 -
* This Is pertaining to Solar Pawer Flants which &s under installatian at toll plaza,
Capital Work in Pragress (CWIP) ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1 Yeav| 1.2 Year | 2-3 Year |More than 3 Yesr Tota}
Project in Progress 19.76 - - - 19.76
Toatal £9.76 = - - 1976
As at Mareh 31, 2023 Less than 1 Year | I1-2 Year | 2-3 Year [More than 3 Yeat Tatal
Praject in Progress - - - - -
Total - - - - -

#.
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35 Goaadwill
CAIl amannts inn 2 lak) unless otherwise stated)
Asgag Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 201

FARFICULARS

Gross Conving Amount

Balance ai the beginning of the year 19,144.46 10;144.46
Additions ' - .
Lass: Disposals - -
Less: Impairment - -
Balunce at ihe closing of the year . 10,144.46 10,144.46

The carrying amount relales to goodwill arising on acquisition of Project SPV {NHIPPL) by the Trust and has been tested for Impairment
agningt the respective cash generating unit {CGU). The cnlculation uses cash Slow forecast based on financial models which cover remaining
fotore periods of respeutive concession periods of 10}) assets.

Bosed on a review of the fisture discounted cash Rows of 1he intangible assets (Toll Collection Rights) held by the subsidiaiy (NHIPPL), the
recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount of the asseis, and dccordingly no impairment loss has been recognised in the shdiment
of profit and lass for the year ended March 31, 2024,
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6 Other Intangible Assats

{AIL amounis in £ lokh smless plherwisa Sratend)

Particulars Software Toll collection vights Total

Gross Careying Amomni:

Balsinee as at-April 1, 2022 - 7,35,040.00 7.35,040.00
Addltious 216 2;84,966.64 2,84,968.82
Less: Dispasals - -
Bakince n5-at Mareh 31, 2523 2.10. 10,20,006.66 10,28,008.82
Addittons 0.06 1,11,993.43 1,11,991.49
Less: Disposals = - -
Balance is at March. 31, 2034 2.22 11,32,000.09 11,32,002,31
Accunivlated Amortization;

Balance as at April 1, 2022 - L355.61 1,055.61
Additions 0,25 £7.552.87 17,553.12
Less: Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 .25 18,608.48 18,608.73
Additions .68 2472206 24,722,774
Less: Disposals - - -
Balance as at Maorch 31, 2024 0.93 4£3,330.54 43,331.47
Net Carrying Amavat

Balanee as at March 31, 2023 121 10,61,308.18 10,01 40009
Balaner as o March 31, 2024 1.2¢ 10,88,669.55 19,88,670.84

MNuote:-

1. Tn FY 202 (=22, ihe Group has acquired rights for Tolling, Gpération, Maintenanee and Transfer of five toll rind
profees for a peried of 30 years basis Toll Coneession agreements with NHAL for o consideration of INR. 7.350.40
Crore and the sane have been recognised as Intangible Assets in financial statements. The Group firther aequired
righis during the Previous FY 2022-23 for Talling, Operation, Mainterance and Transfer of three additional (oll
rond projects for a peciod of 20 years basis Toll Concessian Agreeonts with NEAL for g considerntion of INR
2,849,606 Crore and the same igve been addition in (the Intangible Assets i finuacl statemnants,

2.Tol{ Collection Rights has beeri amorlized on the basis of Consum pion based model {using Passenger Car Unit
(PCU) profections) over the tenure of Ihe Concession Agreement e, 30 years and 20 yenrs basis respective
concession agreements for those 1ol rad projects.

3. Dering the. current year, the Group lus capitalised Initial lmprovement Warks amenniing to Bs, 1,119.93 Crores
to [nfangible Asset (For detailed note on initial impeovement works refer nete no. 54),
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7 Other-Financial Asscts: Nom Cuirent _
(Al anscumis in T Lk ombess olberwise sinfed)

Particulars o Asar Avt
HEUiars Mareh 31,2024 Marel 31, 2023
Yavesiment in Fixed Deposify
Fised Depofits with baoks* 9,016.99. 9,469.99
Security Deposils - 138 1.50
Intgresk receivable on Debenture résovery expense find 1.32 042
Inierest reczivable on fived deposits ) 241,17 18543
Déposit - Bebéntwre Redavery Expense Fund for NCD's (5.0 15.0
' 1017746 067244

“The Fixed Deposits-are kept in Debi Servicing Reserve Acconint {(DSRA) a5 per borsowing agrecments with lenders ind as per térms of e debentare Irist
deed, to be niliced at the end of ienure of long rerms harrowings fram Seniér Lenders and to maintain DSRA batanee for Pebenfre hatders, hence
chssitied as Other Financial Assets- Non Current ireespective of date of maluzity.

& Deferred Tax Agsets (Net)
LA amounts it ¥kl vl s mikevipe seaied]

Picticala: As at An ai
T Mareh31,.2024  March3, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets arising onacconnf of:

- Expense disallgwed as per Tncome Tax Act, 196 (, allovable in fiinne yeirs - .
= Unabgorbid depreciation 1,19,086.98 72.562.41
Provisioi on Initinl improvemsnt 2317931 .
Total (A} 1,44,266.29 7250341
BDeferred Tax Linbilities arssimgon acedunt of:

- Differeicy betvieen Book & Tas buse related 10 latimgiblc assels & PPE 1,32, 43.09 87871 .09
Totad (8 1,32, 743.00 7 977.09
Net (A-B) 11,523,170 168531

Recondiliation of Deterred Tux Assel! (Liabifisies}
A oty i 2 Bk wdess mdenvise giaigdy

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 Mlivech M, 2023
Opening Balance - Deferced Tax Assel 368532 %353
Defereed Inx inpome/ (expense) during the period reenziised.in profi & logs . 5,837 88 4422 70.
Cloying Bakunce - Deferried Tax Asset i 11,523:20 4,68532

As al March 31, 2024, bascd on thé expected future peatitabilily ofthe NBIFPL, & NEPPL ($P¥s), the manngesiiend 1113 recognised deferred tas assels on
the enabsorbed tax depreciation earried forward only and fiel recognizéd Deferred Tax Asscts on nigior ingintiinance abligation and business lsses for fhe
period, s3 cerrivd forward business kisseswill not. be available for uilisation within the time fimit alowable as per the lneome Tax Act based oa (he fifure
projections of the profilabilty af the entity in acvordance with pravision of Tud AS 12 "income Taxes”,

) Non Current Tax Assets (Nei)
(AL smounry.in ¥ Jokh widess ofherwise siated)

. Ak at ' Agst
Particwars March31,2034  March3l, 2023
Income fax refundable {ned of pravision) 2238 12.06

2238 1206

10 Other von eurrent assey
{V ot i % Yaeh ssalesss oieridse arated)
As at A1 At '

Partieuburs March3i, 2024 Mareli3t, 2023

Cupital advances ' _ 565.57 -

Advance piiic to NHAI far acquisilion of R3 agset® 15;69.988.18

Brodessing fees. paid for vndravys Joan . 9543 -
13,70,649.18. -

3This indndes nmoyunt of Bs, 15] 9,938, 14 Lakls perfaining to cojicession [ves yaidio NHA] by NEPPL Jfor the acjifsition of sévew projocts The -
appoiuted dale for lwgblﬂ_ ig with effec-from 15t Apzil 2024 | therefore the amaniit. paid to NHAT kas becn classified as capilal dvance,
A &

P
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11 Trade Receivables: Curremt
LA umonnts in 2 dakh unnbess oibervise staied)

Particalars Asat As at
March 31,2024 Maveh 3], 2023
Considered good-aunscenred 38320 T
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired (unsecured) 50.60 59,60
1,80 A10.47
Legsi- Allowanees for expecied wedit loss Te60) o0
385.20 35037

The recsivables.are iypothecated by way of first ranking exelusive charge to secure senior lenders amd pon eonvertible debentuee lislders in Tt

Trade Rereivalles ageing sclredule as an March 31,2024

Outstallilﬁ for following period from due date of piyment.
6 Monilis -1 )
Year

Particnlarg

-6 Months 1-2Years 23 Years Mare thog 3 years Total

Undisputed trade reccivablcs

7 Considered good 385.20 - - - - 385.20
ii) Which have significan merese in
credit risk

1) Credit impaired - - 39.60 - . 59,6

Disputed srade receivables

i) Cansidered good - - - - : R
ii) Which have slemificant inerease in
eredit cisk

it} Credil impaired - - - R . N

Total 385.20 - 5960 - - FXTED

Trade Rectivables ageing schiedule-as vo Mavch 31, 2023

Qutstanding for following pevioyd Trom fine dafe of payment.

Pierticuls -
et 0-6Mowths SVt v 23 Yeas  More tiam 3 yeurs Tota

Uudispated trade recelvables
) Considercd pood 35027 - " - . 350.87
i) Which have siguificant erease in ; ) A i ) i
eredid Tisk '
iii) Credis impaired - 59.60 - - - 59,60
Disputed trade receivabbes
) Considered good - - - - - .
it} Which have significant incresse in . } ) )
credit gk -
i} Credit impagred - v - . - -
Total J50.87 5960 - - - kAT

_/42,,
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12 Cash and Cush Equivalents*

AR movins i  lokch wiless siierivise siaicd)

} As at Asal
Pacticulars March 31,2024 Maceh 31, 323
Balances will; Banks

In Cyreint Accounts 1,260.12 733.06

In Escrow Accounts 445742 338.04
Draft in Hand - 314
Casly in Hang 15.17 7.,
Feced Doposits (having original maturity of less than 3 trmths) £,163.15 10,000,00
Overnight mutval fugg*» 33,4949 H.034.97

46,400.78 L2408

*Cash and Cash Equivalents indudes Rs. 6209.70 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs, Wil which arc umttifised balance jn Project SPY - NINPPL for nmitial

improvement works.of R 1 and R2 Projesty,

The balances in escrgw accounts are bypelhecued by way of first ranking exclusive charge 1o Secure senior lendurs sind non convertibké debenture holderz

in Trug),

** |nvestment iy Mutual Finds indudes Rs., [ 5,000 Lakhs raised in current year from il issue for leap projects. la bie ulifised for creation of DSRA
against ks raiscd for keap projects. Further these mvestments also incledes Re. 4106.06 Lokhs pertaining to one rime issue velived expenses nmilitized g5

an 31-03-2024.

13 Bink Batance Other than Caslamt Cash Eiquivalens

LA L e in 2 ki wnle sy odiarwise saledy

Particidars As at . Asar
March 31, 2024 March I, 2023
Bank Deposts with ozl malurity. of mare than 3 Monilis* 504,26 -
Mniteres] Accrued w bank deposits 372 .
SI2,08 -

* Fixed depusits amounting 10 Rs. 504,26 Laklis (March 31, 2023; Rs. Mil) i fien marked in foavour of Bank of Maharashira and kCpt as Nargin Mancy

agrinst the Bank Guarantee isgued to NHAD for R-2 Prajects by the group,

H Qiher Finnacisl Assets; Corrent

1A amawis i T lnkk iless othesise senzd)

Partiend As at Mat
arfieniars March 31, 024 March 3], 2023
Security depasils 4.54 292
Iriterest reeeivable o Fixed Deposiis - 3713

4.54 6.65

15 Qther Corrent Agsets

(Al smownis in 2 P wiless odenyise sialed]

Particulars As gl Asar
March 33, 2024 March !, 2023
Frepuid expenses® 470.02 382
GST apnir 52336 642.12
Processing fes paid for nodrown Toay 152,84 10349
Advairee 1 snppfiers I,157.23 . 5.59
Qihers 044 -
2303.89 1,634,056

* Prepatd includes

aund J expenses of Rs. Mil diuring the ewrrent period and Rs. 290.72. Lakh tu previons year,

Lt
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16 Linig Capital
el cnvonnts are i€ lakh wrlery oihersrse stored)

Purticulars As 31 March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2033

No of. Units Amoyut Mo of Uriits Amonnk
Linid Capital? ] _
Onening balance 12,64 05,200 TALGO32  59,52,00,000.00 589.442 82
Add: Units issued during the vear’ 385795400 1.37.206.41 13,12.05200 14101367
Léss: [ssue exnenses-{refer nole below} - 11,717.26) . - (BRI T2y
Bilage: nt year aul TITEZ 00,601 T67,093.37 126405300 RN F %7

* 38,57,95.400 units issucd at Rs. 124.14 per tinit during cufrent financiil year (13,0%.05,206) unit issued at Rs ;0% per unit in previous financial year).

Iy cuprent yoor the Trust offered an issue of 58.37,95 400 units ol Natons! Highways Infra Trost (“NH™), far cosh ot a price of124.14 per unit (e *issue price™),
agsrepaling 10 Rs 7.27.206.41 lakhs shrough Institotions] and peeferential placement is accordance with the Securities and Eschanpe Board of india (Infastruciure
[vestment Trust} Regulations, 2014 icluding the rules, circulars and puidelines issucd thercundae

In proviows year e Tn:sl olleeed an issoe of 13,12:05,709 units of National Highways Infiz Trus-t {"NHIT”), for cash at a price of 10400 per uod {the *issuc
price™}, npgregating 10 ° Rs 1 43.013487 Likhs Ihmunh nstitylionsl ond m‘cﬁ:lcntl'll plagement in aceardance veith the Securitivs.and Exchanpe Bigad of Indip
i|nivasiructure Investment Trosth Regulations, 2014 incladin, 1 rabey, circulags dnd guidelings issued théreunder.

Lssue expenses ¢f Rs. 1,717.16 takhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 832,17 Takhs) fneurred in connection with issue ol ymits hve been vedvced from the Unithalders capital in
accocdksnve with lad A% 32 Fimuncta! insements; Presenaiion

Rights/ preferenees and restricrions attached 1o Unis Capital

Bubject to the provistons of the InvIT Regalations, the indentur: of funds, snd applicable rufes. regulations and suidetines, the vights of the wmt holders include:

a7} The henetteia] interest of each wnitholder shalk be equal and limited to the preportion of e number ol 1he wnits iedd by that wnithelder to the wtal number ofunits.
bY Riglht o reeeive inenme ar distributions with respect 1o the urits held,

cj Right tn ahend the annual generl meefing and ather mevtings of nait hplders of the Trus,

d) Right 10 vote npan 311y matiersiresolutions proposed 10 relation sa the T,

€) Right $o receive periadic infiwmation laving a-bearing on the operation or performanee of the “Trust im accordance wilh the InvIT Regulations.

£y Righi ta apply Lo e Trust 1o ke up cerain issues a0 moetings for anit holders approyai.

£} Right to recctve additionak information, i any, in accordanes with TnvIT docaments led with Phocernent Memorandum.

In accordance vith the In¥IT Regolations, no unit holders shall enjoy supcrior voting or any othee ghts over any other unit holders, and there shall st be muktipke
classes of units. Thers shall be only et denomination of units. Not withsanding the ubave, subordinue units may be fssued only w the Sponsoe and its Assigies,
where such subordinatc units shall camy sitly inferior wotihg or any other rights éompare i thiz olher units.

bineler the provisions of the InvlT Regulations, not less than %0% of the net distributable cash Nows of e Trug is required fo be distritited 1w the nnishabders. and in
uceardance with such stelutory’ obdigation-the Frust has Tormulated o distribution policy w dectan: and distyibute the distributuble cash ews w its uisiilbelders atbeost
onea svery Tinaicinl year oy approved by the Hoard of [Dircetors of the Investment Mandger. The distributions mads by Toust 10 its unehoidirs ore hased on the Ned
Distribulablé Caslh Flews (RDCF) of the Trust snder the Inv)T Regulatons. The distribution in prapetion 10 Mg number of units beld by the wnithalders. The Trust
declares and pays in distribations in igdisin rupies,

Limitation-1n the 1. inhility of the nail hofders

The lability ol cuch unif halders towards the payment of awy amonsnt {that iy dnise i gelstion to the Trost incloding aniy taxes, Sutics, Mnes, levies, Habilitics, custs
or expenses) shull be limited only 1o the extent af the capital contribution of such unit Bolders wnd after sach eupitul contribution shall have been paid in ful by the
unil hafders, the unil holdees shall not be obligalcd (o make ani funber pryments.

The unit holders shull not have onv personal Fabitity or oblization with respest {a the Trust.

Classilieation of Unit Hulders' Fuils

Under the provisions of the bl Regulitions, NERT is required (o distribuie 1o Unithalders not less than ainety, pereent, of thé net distibuahé cash (lows of
NHITfor each financiof year. Accordingly, 3 partion of the uritholders® funds containg a contraciund obligation of the Trist to pey b ifs Unichwbders cash distributions.
The Unitholders® funds could therefore havee been classifitd as compound finoncial instrament whick contain both equily and Yability components in pecondanee wiil
Irnd AS 32 - Financial Instuments. Preseotation. However, in sccurdanee with SEB! Cireulos (No. CIRIMDIDEA 142016 dated 20-Dcl-201§ and No,
CIRAMIYOF/ 3772016 dated 29-Nov-2016) issued umder thi Tl T Regulytions, the unitholders’ fimds have heen classified as equity in order & comphy with the
mandatory requirements of Section 1 of Annexore A w the SEBI Cireulur dued 20-0ct-2056 denling with (e mininwsn discloseres Tor koy Tnansial stateineats. i
line with the akave. thi distribution vavahle 10 mis holders is rouounised as linbilite when the ssmesis aoarved hy the Invesomenr Mapaper.

Pretails of Unirholiders Holding Moare Than 5% Laits o The ’I‘ﬁlst

3 e Az ot March 3E, 2024 Asut Rdareh 38, T3
Nucne. af Uoitholders No of Units % No of Unjts %
Ondaria Limiied 32.80,50,150 25 00% 18,16,01.300 25004
CPP livestimest Bowrd Private Holdings Ine. 32.46,30,150 I5.00% 18, 14,08, 500 25.00%
SBI Balanced Advantage Frust 6.31,60,260 481% 631.60,260 5.69%
Wational Highways Authority of Indiz (RHAD 20,360.72,000 1548% 11,533.02,600 13.50%

As per revords of the Trisl, inchading its register of unitholders and other declaration reclived from nnitholders reparding heneficial interest, the abave milholding
represent both lepal and beneficid -.m‘n-:lshm of units.

The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by woy.of bonus enits aor hes it bougiit back aay class of units fram the date of incorparation il the: habince sheel
dnic. lfurther the Trust has net issued any anits for considoratipn atherthan cosh during the yeay.

Reconcilintion of nuenber of 1enits ouistant isg i sct out below:

As af ¥arch 31, 224 As af March 31, 023
Naof Unify Amourii MNa of Vuits Amuunl
Particulars rW\n [ 3
Number of Eintts at the heginning ol thevear 72.64,05,200 74416567 595260004 601,152
Units-issued during the yeas 58,57.95.400 7,27,206,41. 13,12.08.200 14301167
Nuriher ol Unis ut the end of the veur 1,31.22.00.500 4. 71.572.08 T2 64,05 300 7.44,185,67

* Amenni refated to issue expenses arenotdeducted in the reconciliation uf number of unit capitel duistanding.
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17 Other equtty F
(Al amgunts in ¥ lakh uplegs atherwise stated)
As At As At
Reserves and Sarplus March 31, 2024 March 3, 7023
Reizined Exrnings _
Balance at the beginning of tlic year (Z,469.86) 6,768.43
Totnl eompreh_ensi\_'e Incame for the year 29419.57 . 25,589.57
Qther Comprelicngive Income [or the year 0.13 -
Less:
Distribution to unit holders®
Interest 83,701.68 34:183.66
Cther Income 789.60 MHL320
Balance at the closing of the year T 27,541.44) (2469367

*The disivibytion relates to the distributions during the linancial year along with fhe distribution related to the lnst quarier of FY 2022.
23 and does nal include the distribution relating 1o the period Febrvaty 01, 2024 15 March 3 1, 2024 which will be paid afier Mageh 3 1,
2024. The distributions by the Trust rq jts unit holders are based an the Net Distributable Cash Floves of the Trust under the SEI3Y
InvIT Regulations.
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8 Borrgwings: Non Current
(AT amiciuuts o T takh unkess alhemise stated]

Patficulars As i A5 at
March 31, 2024 Mareld 31, 2123
Tecared
Non-Convertible Diebenture [, 50,000.90 1.50,000.00
Lyss, Unamortized Borrowing Cost 1,.360.91 141,80
Tatd (A) 1-48,639,00 14558820
Nate:- Oflier tevms mnd.candifions of NCT
i} terest ate 7.90% p.a payable sermi annunlly,
ii) Terms of repayiien Redemption of respective STRIP shall he hinde in equal istalments

iSTRPP A - sutang fronm eigih aniversary of deemped dara of abletment Ltk thirleerly anniversary,

i) STRPP-B- sarting lrem thirkcentbanniversary of deemeq date ol alfoiment 1ill eighieccmb unniversary,

{iiy STRPP-C-stocting trom vighteenth anniversary of deennxd date of altotment il wnaty G anniversary.
Term Laan:

From Darks ) 7,31.92770 143587.43
From Finucig! [nstition 3,05,000 00 -

16,26.92770 14308743

Less: Currenn Maturities of Lot Term Dosrovwines |Refer Nowe 2 3 10,0654.00 2000110

Less: Unamartised Bomrowing Cost 211785 417.30

Totut {B) 10,14.755.35 14357013

Grand Total {w(A+H) T1,63,39501 F N e T

3,658 Crore duering thie vear,

Loan from Banks inctude loan received fium IDB] Bank which is Promaler of IORY Trusiczship Services 1iming {ITSLY - Trusice of the Trust, thérefire e
transactioies with 1DBI Bank are discfosa in Refgbid Party Tiansaction,

Note:- Oher terms and comditions of Terin Loans
i} Intzrest ralz Benclnark Raee plus speead applicable an each reset dage far Facelity agreement.

il) TYernis of repaymuent Repayable i wnstzuctured quarerly instalbments wigh fag reperyinent die upie March 31, 2041 & Muech 31, 2047 gy
facility agreenient of RI & R2 Assels respectively,
Fepoyable ko vistruclured fquarterly instalments with Jast cepaymient date uplo March 31, 2042 for facility BEvECInt 6f
R3 Asset.

Security for Term Loates -

The Joan is sectired by,

- first part pugsts eharpe on all immovable azels {ifany), movable ussets and receivibifes of the Trast imelidisg bug nut limited o,

{10 the interest mad principal repaymenls on the leans advancad by the Trus 1o Projeel SPVs

(%) dividends ta he paig by Preject SFVs g the Trost

= {irst i s Security nteres| on Trust Escrow accouit and all sub-acconnts Hereunder, including DSRA,

- pledge of 1 00% equity slares of Frjecl SPVe (NHIPPL & NEPPL} i demateriztized form held by 1he Trag

- assignmeat ol laans advancad by thé Tram 15 Priject 8P¥s (NHIFFL & NEPTLY 20 securities crenfed by the Tmst inchding i wssignmenr of Tighis af
substitnion, lecminatian and invgeation of provision of Escrow agreemert i case al defail. ’

- egative lien en irsmwepble Jssals {ineluding cusrent assels and cash Hows) of the Prafect SPVs (NHIPPL & NEFPL) subject te sule of obsoleis jioms of ears!
ambxdances, ol toll equipment tic. tinder normyl business practive, subject 10 maiximum amulative value of INR 5 Crare i any fimancial yemr for R projecs /INR
2 Crose per praject in any financial year for R2 & R3.

The senior bnders of i T'rust fnve afsp been provided with a eorporate guavante: fioim Project SPV (NHIFPLY 10 Btarantee updo the secnred oblignlions of 1 Tryst,
The finds lmwe been mised ag Trustievel from unithalders and domestic lenders, ind the sang fave been lent 1o Prajoct SPY (NEUFFL) iy payraend of concession foe
by WHIPPL 10 NIHAL ‘Fhe cashilows viz, ill evflections tre-lying in NTTPPL, Accordingly, corporale Bllarmantec amaonnting updn the secured obligations of the Trast
via Corpurate Guaraniee Deed dated £4,03.2622 and 03.01.2024, vallid aeross the tenuré of the Toan of fie Tonst ie up 1o 31.03. 2041 and 37,03 2042 respeclively,
has beon pravided by the Projecy SV ( NHIPPLLY i the senior kewlers ofife Tmst, ’
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Nawige of Sepuriiy for Nen-Conwertible debeniniras:
Thie déberture holders aro séovied Ty:

he present titme. In i event, the Tiysl acyuires nity. immavabla properdy it fiiturs, e Trust shall mengage sxid propenty within, 180 {one hundred £7plky) days fram
1he date of acquisition of such imrmslahic:as_sci:s_ The Debenture Trustee shal) be atithoriszd 10 do all acis;-deeds, and eniex inls necemiiy documents, rermoe,
nmmmwk_mxdfbrmhdifl_calinm,ns Imity-ba reguired to sive effeel the sa:n:,-inchtding-d;mj-iug out the due diligence as 9y be requirey ty Debentare: Trusgee;

by a firsl ranking pari passty Sickrity Inicrest over the Hypothecnied Asseis {tncluding Recgivables), bolh prészat and foture; ang

¢} Nepative'L.ien Undferaking -~ _

d) corporate guaranles execiited by tie Project- SEV {NEUPPLY in Ervpuir of the Debenture Trustee for suaranieeing the due Tepayment of the secured obligitons in
accordnivcewith tha ienns of e Dehioture Trijst Decd,

Thet non conventilis debenanir holders of ihe Trust acting tl:rmgh.ci:bg]tllrc-u_'l_lstee.!ﬁvc also been provided with z carporate giaranie: from Project SPVNEAEPE,)
te- graraner the nepayinenf of imowi-mised from nam cenvertible debuture holders by the Trust. The fads have been raised at Trust level from debennhaldzys

have been lend to Projuct SPV (NEIPPL) for poyines of corression - fee: by MHIPPL 15 NHAT, Aciordingly, cometale guarantes IMOWUINE uple the seeired

ohligations via Corpurate Gunmnise Died dined 21.10.2022 §s valid. til? o) outstanding principal and acerued interes) payable ty (b Trust are satisfied ty the non

There lave been o hrcacbe_._q in finzecigl covenants with respect 1o te bosrawings finim 2iller sonios-lenders or debenture holdors,

Oifer Fiancial Tiabifites: Non Current
(AN agioudds im T bk unbess sthentisz slatel)

Pacticu)ars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 Marih 37, 2003
Credlitors.for capiral sap plies and sendces . 2090
2094 -

20 Provisions: Non Cirrent

2

AAIR ausguids i T Frfly il egs otherwie ghal)

Parlicutyrs Asal Asoar
Mureh 3), 2024 March 31, 2011

Provisiow far emsplayeey hegefits

Gratuity {omifidog) {Reder Noie 39) 53 4t

Leave Encashment quniunded) - (Refor Now 39) 3339 6.96
Provision for majnr maintenapee (Refer Mate 53) ’ 152223 630744
Provisfon fir lafimsimemre U purack: (Refer Note 54) 20,6482 34 -
Todal 33,92337 6JI5 8T

d) Natgre of provisiing for majucmiintenance

The-compamy is neguiced to operale and neimain lhe prajeet @iy dusing jhe enire conccssing period and hand over the praject bagk 1o NEBAY &5 per the
ioinlenance standaris prescribed in tencessign agrecmens.. For this purpose, a ceeclir maimemnee alang witk perladic mainenanes is required to be povformed,
Mornlly, periodic waincnance Anclodes yesurface of avements, ropsics uf sinlaums__and‘othe: cqQuipmcit and niiptenance ofservice roads. A per industry pratice,
e perjindic maknienaice is expecied 19 ey oice i five to seven yeurs. The prevvisions for MMR as per-indusiry praitics has hesy mpde based any (e first cycheof
of overlay espected.fo occilr it five 1o seven years anid ol byssd o te total MR cest Qver enlire concassion perind, The disconriing rate uger for arriving gl fhe
present valse for MMR provisions is govéyamen bond rate of 30 years for prajects aceuiced in fivst pliase ang 20 years for projecis.nequired in secdng plase. The
UntitHEnance cost / biteminaus overtay may vary based on tha actiad usage during mainrenance period, Accoedingly, an tle erounds of ninichifig cost concepd and
based on teelhica] estimates, 3 praovision for major maintenance expenss i reviewed ind is povided for i e financia] stateries in ench reporting perfod,
Considering ika the expense 1o befiscurmed i depended on wacious foctars including e usage. wer dnd 1ear of the:toll road; bitgminows oiverliy, &, it is ot
passible w estinrte e exaa fiveinng 30 the quanivm of the cashfiow.

Deindls of sisvernzut fn Provisimes

LAl umums in 2 Jak antless athruis safed)

Particulars Asal’  Asat
. : Mueely31, 2004 Maih 31, 202
Opening Bafance ;07,44 KR
Add: Accretion diiting \he yegy - - _ oo
Provisins fox Major Maintermnce Obligation 844405 58020
Unsindirig fiance cost on majér maiatenance provision 470,79 i1
Less: Dtilized durine e year - . -
LClosing Walmee . ) 521228 67,84

Borrowings: Currenit

{Al aw0uuis in T lakly wnlesk athemvise daled}

Parficulacs Ag sl Asat
Mayrely.31. 3024

" Cursent Mariuriiies of Long Tean borrwings (Refci- Note No. | ) 1005400
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22 Trade RPayables: Ciaront

LAl ariunte iin 2 filch untess athervise aped)

rrifcnlarg As As ot

Bldrvel 31, 2024 Marets 31, 2013
Talal putslanding, dics of mierg 1 small eerprises” 275.99 13723
Total autsianding, dues pf ¢ reditors oflier hizn micro aned smaki enlerprises
(Ouistandiog for kess ihan 12 monihs Fone e due dgte of Py 4.479.00 187117
Total A, 75400 40841

MNote:.
Details of dues to micre and snall Ciulerprives a3 per ASMED Aet, 2005,

The troup has certain dues ta supplicss registered undel Micro, Smalt and Mediom Enterprises Divelapimnt Act, 2008 "MSMED Act’). The disclosures purmant io

the said MSMED def gre as follous

Asat Asat
. Bnrch 31, 2024 March 31,202
i) The principai amouit Femitiniig unpid ta any supplier ot the end of the vear
XI5.90 1317.33
b) Interest seered and due therean t supplias under MSMED Aci on tle above JMOUNE rEmining ungiaid
oy supplicr at the end of AT, - .
€) The amount of interest paid by the Buyer i terms of sectién 16 of the MIMED Act, 2006, along witl i
amound of the payment jaode 10 the supglice beyand the appoineed diy duripg the year -
d) ‘The amgunt of interest due apd payabie for the period of delay in making etyment (which have beziy paid
bur beyond e apgoiuted day during the year} bt withow adding the intercst specified under fle MSMED
Act, 2008 - -
¢) The sunpugl ol interesi, acered and remainine wipaid al the end of each accounting year
0 The amonnl of fisrtlaer interest feaaining due and payable even iy tlinmm_:eding years, until such date when
the interest dwes above wr actually paid to the small entarprises, for the purpnse of disdllowanced ol i
deductible expenditune under secrion 23 of thir MSMER Act, 2006
Disclosure of payabiz fo veadars.as drfined under the “Micro, Siall and Madiym Enierprise Developmen
Act, 2006 & bayed on the infarmetion svaikibie with the group regdiniy U satus of regigrasion of such
vendars wnder the said Act, ns per te intimation reccrved from them ng Tequests made by the snmp,
Trade Payable ageing schedule sl March 31,7024 M| vt in 2 Jukh wndesis otherwise anicily
Ouigtanding for feltawing period rom duc date of payinent.
. - -
Purtieulars Notnet = s than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2.3 Years Mlore tn’3 Yoares “Total
I MSAE - I7599 - - - 199
it] {Hhers 358428 534,02 60.70 - - 147900
Hi} Disputed ducs - MSME - - - - . -
) Dispitled dués - Others - - - . . -
¥ Trade Puyobles inclode unbiiled rvables amounting to Rs 3,883 28 Lakigs, o
Trade Payableapeing scledulé as af March 3 F20%3 (AY amaunts im T Ikl undess stherwje stofed)
Ouisianding for fellowing period Ermm duc ilate nl psyinent,
Farii Nurl die™ e .
arlicutars vt diie V.ass thean 1 Year 13 Vears 23 Yeirs Mare {han 1 Yeury Total
TMSWE - Y3713 - - - 1733
i1 Othyers 245300 1,303.07 . . - 341157
iii) Disputed dues - MSME . . - - - "
) Dispuded dues - Qifers - - - - -

¢ Trade Payabhas imludt:unhillad.m;uligs Imounting 16 Rs 2468710 Lakhs,
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23 Ouher Financial Lisbilitics: Curreut
{AI amaunrs in 2 |xkiv wATess otfieredse 4 died]

Particalkacs

aAsa Asat
March 31, 2024 Mawch31, 3023
luterest-acerued byt not dus on NCD 5,162.08 412959
Dauble 1ol] Fee payable to NHAL 1n)e 151,17
Security Deposit 419 419
‘Employecs payable 18 -
Faynble to NiIMPL dlag -
Crediars-for capila) supplies and services 2,004,23 .
Total 72153 328195

24 Provisions: Curvent

LA amaiabs it T lakd tmlesa caherwis: sed)

Pariiealars

Asal As at
March 31, 2024 March-31, 2623
Provisioa for Emplayee Beaehils
Leave Encasbrwent (uinfundd) 34a1 55
Sratuity {undundad} 0.07 0.0
Frovision far Infragtractore Upgrade 79,0258 -
Tedal 79,3016 U356

25 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

(AN amounts i 7 lakd untess mlerwige Fasl]

Particnlars

AsAar Af at

Alarch 3L, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provisegn Jor Ingeme Tax 188,74 EA
Less: Advance Tax & TDS Receivalie (7.08)
Taial 181,66 498
Recanciliation of Curreat Ty Liahiliticx
Particulars Asal Asat

Mlarch 3L, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opuwing, Balance Baog 16177
Add: Income Tax Payabtie for the var $44.30 47380
[eas: [ncaemes (nxes paid diring the year induding eardier vear mes) (713.67) {676.64)
Cloging Balice 18060 595

26 Otler Curvent Linbiliies

LAl amoumts m T bih onbess otherwis gaied]

Earticulars

Asat Asat
Marel 31, 2034 March 31, 2023,
Siatutory ducs payable 462,78 H5.35
Uneamed Revenve - A
Advance recgived 0.45 300
Emplnyees payable - 4.64
Tolal 453.23 Im.
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27 Revenue from opersfious

- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
nis for the year endeéd March 31, 2024

(Al amounts in % lakh unless othenvise atatéd)

Phaiticelars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 3], 2623
Sale of Services
Revenue from Toll Collection 94.390.77 1i8,708.93
Other Operative Revenue
Interest on delay in Toll Rémittance - 8.27
Toial 04,390,757 @720

28 Interest income

(Allamours in ¥ lakh unless olhenyize stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year cnded
March 31, 2024 March 31,2623

On fixed deposits with banks &871.71 37343

Total 871.71 373.43

29 Profit on sale of investments

Gl ansouis in 2 Takly ualess olictwise stajed)

Particulars

For the year cnded For the year ended ~

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Profit on redemption of Mutual Fonds 214116 671.17
Total 274116 671,17

30 Other Income

(A amaunts in 3 laids unless othwrwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Qther ngn eperating income
Liabilities no longer required written back 32.06 -
Other Income 2747 328.11
Total 39.53 316.11

31 Operating Expenses

(AN 3monms in 2 Inkh unless etherwise sinled)

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended

Oparation and Meintenance Expenses
Major Matntenznce Obligation
Total

March 31, 2024 Moarch 31, 2013
5,22155 3,145.85
8,444.05 5,879.20
13,665.60 9,025,05




NATIQNA-L HIGWAYSINFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statentents for the year ended March 31,2024

32 Employce Benefit Expenses

{AH amoumts in T Jakh utkess otheywise-stared)

Pariiculars

For the yearended  For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024 ‘March 31, 2023

Salartes and wages

Contributiod to provident and other funds (Refer note 391
Gratuify Expenses (Refer nate 39(iijA)

Leave Encashment Expense ¢Refer ilofe INiiB)

Staff Welfare Expenses

Ewployee Insurance Policy

Relocation and Transfer Expenses

Total

33 Finance Cost

96198 23208
65.87 1527
21.09 4,42
31.34 751
43,06 38.84
2623 .

4.03 .
1,156.60 289,01

(Al amounts jn T laklr niless otfienyise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended For the yesr ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Tuterest on Long term borrawings 13,059.49 11,244,091
Interest on Debentiures 11,882.48 512050
Unwinding finance cost on major maintenaace provigion 470.70 24,95
Unwinding interest on infrastructure upgrade 2,396.83 -
Other Finance Charges 213.58 221.87
Total 28,623.17 16,621,32

34 Depreciation and Amoriizatign Expenses

(AN ataws in T inkh pless atherwise stuted)

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended

Maveh 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 48.30 7.41
Amortization on Intangible Assets 24,722.74 17.553.i2
Tofal 24,771,104 17,560.63

35 Audit Fees

{Adl amonits in T lakly uidess otlyérwisc s1ated)

Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Statutory audit fees 8.14 4.53°
Limited review fecs 8.82 2.26
Tax audit fees 1.53 0.94

Total 13.49 .73
Cetification and other charges .72, . 0.93

TFotal 1.72 0:93

Further an amount of Rs.3 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rsd
of one time expenses in.the Unit Capital. {Refer note no 16)

£

lakh) paid to auditor as certificafion charges has been bocked'as part




NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registrat'inn Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

36 Other Expenses

CAN aaus in T laldh unless.atherwise statad)

Particulars For the year énded  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31; 2023
Advertisement expenses 19.81 3575
Legal and Professional fees 1,262.92 1,542.22
Community Engagement Progran 39.84 .
Diirector’s sitting fees 18.88 15.10
Travelling and conveyance 3143 19,30
Training and Seminar Expenses 4142 7.21
Guest House Expenses 16.7?
Telephoue and internet charges 41.29 6.58
Power and fuel 233.79 58.78
Environment, hiealth and safety expenses 6422 13.06
Fee, subscription & taxes 380.72 13.42
Recruitment expenses 2,25
Bank charges z1z 1.53
Drata-Management Expeases .50 3.00
Provision for expected credit Joss - 59,60
Vehicle hire charges 1%6.01 631,58
Repair and maintenance expetises 38.71 14,71
Preliminary Bxpenses wrilten off 2.55 -
Bad Debts Written Off - 9.90
Directors Sirategy Meef Expenses 16.41 -
Miscellaneous expenses 99.04 30.03
Total 2,569.62 102427

37 Tax Expense

(Al amonng in T lakh wiless utherwise staled)

Piirticilars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Current Tox #86.30 47339
Provision for Taxation-Earlier years {2.52) 0.01
_ 883.78 473.90
Deferred tax expense/(eredit) (6,837,88) (4,422,79)
(5,954.10) (3.918.39)

Effective tax Reconcilizfion:

(AL amtounts i 7 Iakh unless ptherwise stared)

PARTICULARS

Accounting Profit before Income Taxes

Tax at India’s statatory income tat rate for SPVs (25.17%)
Tax at India"s statutory income tax rate for Bus

Marginal Rate (42.744%)

Increase/ (reductiony in taxes on acegint of:

lmpacr of deferred fax on reversible allowance/ disallowance of business
expense and income, as per Indian Tncome Tax Act, 1961

Impact of exemption w/s 10(23FC} of the Tndian Income Tax Act, 1961

available to the Trust

Incame ta erse. reparted In the statement ol profit-and loss

iness Trusts - Maximam

For the year eided For the year ended
Marchi 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
23 46547 21,740.68
(18.569.40) (14,086:70}
41,681.52 33,215.05
11,920.25 9.663.51
(40,986.47) (32,741.15)
{5,954.10)




NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number - INAnvIT/20-21/0014
Notes to thé Consolidated Finaij cial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

38 Earning per Unit

. (Al anvounts i T 1okt unléss athervize sinjed)
Parficulars For theyear enided  For the year ended.
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Basic and dilyfed EPU )
Net Profit/ loss availabie for unitholdgrs (in T lakh) 2941970 35,689.57
Weighted average aumber of units for EPU computation

73,36,14,275.96 05,64,68,737.53
EPLU- Basie and dilnted

3.%0 391




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

. SEBI Registration Number :- IN/TpvET/20-21/0014
Notes to the Consolidated Finaucial Statements for they

39 Disclosuie pursuant t6 Tnd A9 Employee beaefits'
D Defined contrilygion Man

ear ended March 31, 2024

Thes group has provident fund whicly is the defined contribution plan, The group is required to couteibme o specitied percentage
of payroll c0sis 1a the recogrised provident fund to finyd the benetils. The only ohligation of (he 2roup with respect to these

plans & lo maks: the specified conlributions.

An amouiit of Rs.65.87 kikhs (March: 31.2023.: Rs 15.27 lakhs being contribution made to mcogiised provident fund s fs
recagnised as expense aud ineluded under Employee bencfils expense ( refer Note 32) inthe Statement of Profjt and Loss,

(i) Defitied benefir plans:
A Disclosiic g E gratutty
@) Fealures of its defined bengfje plae;

The geoup has o tunflnded difined benefir gratuily plan The grutuity plau is
-Gratuity Act), Under the Acl, emplayee who has compléted five years

Bavenied by the Paymant of Gratnity Act, {972 (" the
of service is entided 1o speeific bepefit. The leyel of

beoefits provided depends on 1he member's lengtly of service and salary al teticament nge. Every employee wie has compleled
tive vears or mare of service £els a pratuily on departure at 15 tlays salacy (last drawn salary) for-each completed year of service

a5 per he provision of the Act,
The key features are oy wnder:

Blan Features

i Hepefiloffored

i Salary Dafnition
i Benafit ceiling

it Vesting conditions
v Bencii eligibility
vi  Retirgment age

E5/26  salary % duration of service

The amounts recognised in Balusce Shiet are a5 follows ;

Basic slary inchiding dearniess sHuwance (iF aiy)

Bienefn ceiling of Rs. 20,00,000 wos applied

5 years of conlinuos secvice {nal applicable in caso of deaili/disabiliry)
Upon death or resigmation / withdrawal prretien wnl

60 Years (or] end of concession period, whichever is ealier

LAl nmcanmits in € Faf ibes s othenvise siafed)

Pudicnlars As ut 31 March 2034 As at 31 March 2023
Curvent Noo-cirrent | Ciorens Nou-cuyrent
Grataity 0.07 2531 0.0 441
Leaye cacashmeny 201 3339 0.55 .96
‘Fotal .08 5470 (.55 1137
i) Amouet vecHznised in (ke stateient of prafit and lgss s as uwimnder:

’ (AR amawnts in 3 bkl puless oibonwise staled)
Descripition As af 31 Marel 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Curpent service cagl 2077 442
Intercst cost 033 | .
Net inipact on profit (before ) 2110 442
Actugrial lass/{ZainY recopnized durine the yer (.13 -
Amoumit recopnized in fotal comprefisive income 2097 442

() Clinege i fhw present value of otdization:

(Al amgunts i T laidh ynless olherwise stated)

the year

Descriplion As ot 31 March 2024 As a1 31 March 2023
Present vilue of defined benefj obligation ns at the 4.42 -

| Deginning of e year ]

Curcent servict cost 20,77 4432
Inderest ¢ost. 0:33 -
Benefits paid

Acnarinl loss{(pain) 013y -
Picyent value-of deftned benefii obBgaiion as 2t tlie end of 25.34, 4.42

{ili) Recénciliation of present value of defined Benefit obbigation and ike fair value of nssets;
’ LA avnns i 3 lkh uness atheryriss staed)

Einfaxled net liahilityfe

Deseription As at 31 March 2024 As at 3 March 2023

Present value of wofimded Bbligation as at the end of the year 2530 442

Fair value of plan asscts a3 af the-end of ile pering finxdegd - -
anized.dy llonce sheet 5.3 4.42




NATIONAL BIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

SEBI Registration Number :-

IN/nvIT/20-21/0014

Notes to the Consolidated Finaricial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

(V) Breakup of actiirial {gainjoss:

CAlEanoynis i ¥ bl miless ollierwisé statey)

Diescription As at-31 March 2024 As at 31 Mareh 2023
Actuarin} (gain)lass from charige in phic assunsplion - -
Actvarial (gain)loss from change in fingncial assumption - -
Acluarial _[Eaj:)?loﬂj'ﬁ‘um_cxpc_ricﬁm adjustment {0.13)]

Total actnarial (gain)ioss 0.13) -

v} Actoarial assumptions

Deseription As ot 31 March 2024 As 3t 31 Maych 2023
Disconnt rafe 7.38% T7.,18%

Raie of increuse in compensution levels 7.00% 2UH%
(Retirement age {years) o0 40

Notes:

1) The discount cate is based on the prevalling macket yield of tnding Gavermment ponds as ar the balance sheet date for the

estimaled lerms of obliaations,

2} The: estimates of fture salary increases considered (akes inrg accounl the

{actors.

(v} Expeeted expense for the next anomal reporting period

inflation, seriorily, promotion and other relevant

CAN Aot in ¥ Eakl wiluss othereise stated)

Deseripilan Asat 31 Mareh 2024 As a1 3t March 2023
Service cost 304 12.16
Imerest casl 1.83 .33
Actuarial assi(pain) . Rl
Expected Expense for ibe gext 2mmal repuriing poried 3107 12.49

{vii) Sensitivity analysis for g bty GalpEry

(AT amoails i T kY nuless aiberwizs slated)

IDeseription As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 Maveh 2023

Intpact of ehange in desconnt rate

Presén vaive of obligation atihe end of the year 2539 442
- Impact due 10 ercasc.af 0.5 % (L) {0.33)
- Impact due (o docrense of 0.5 % 1.9] 037

Tispuiet of chapge iy salary inereage.

Peesent vilue of obilzpation 1t Ahe end-of the year 2539 447
- Impact due {o inerease of 0.5 % 1.91 034
=Impact dize 10 decreose of 0.5 % (1.75) {033}

The above sensiviey analysis is based on p change an assumpiion while holding all oiher assum
is ulikely to accur and changes in somne of e assumplions miny be correlated, When calentati
beoelit obligmion 1o signifiea actudal assinptions ihe same method {present valye of
with the projected wsiit credit nvetbod at the end.vf the reporting period) hias been appli

the defined beuefit obligation linbility recognized inthe balange sheet.

pricns constamt. B practice; this
g the sensitivity of the definéd
the defined benefit obligation ciboubiced
ad which was applicd while calowluting

The ouctheds and types of assinpfions used in preparing the seasitivity amlyss did nat change comijmrcd 1o previous year.

(viil) Maturity profike of defined bencfit obligation

G amauts o ¥ takh wnloss otherwise stabed)

Deseription As at 31 Marels 2024 As 2t 30 March 223

Wiihin niéxi 12 months 0na7 0.01
Belween.1-5 years 3.28 11
510 § years 058 0.23
Beévond § yeurs 2.4 4.07

B Leavecneashment

Amaunt vecognized in fhe statement of profit and loss is 23 under:

(A anounig i 2 laki unlegs ul'mm_rh: e

Description As at31 Murch 2424 Ay at 31 March 2023
Cutzenl service cost 29,88 751
Initcrst cost 0.55 -
Actinacinl loss/{eain) recognized duging, the year 0,91 -
Amount recdgnizid in fhestaloment of pirofef and loss 3134 751




NATIONAL HIGHWAVS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Number ;- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014
Notes t0 the Consatidsited Financial Statements for-the year endedd March 1, 2024

4% Stateaient of Related Partiey )
A, List of Rélated Mactics a3 per requivement of IND AS 24 —“Related Party Diselosn fes™

Mational Highways Tiefra Projects
Peivate Linited ("NHIPEL")

) {Subsidiary Company}
Enterprises wliere Condrol / sigaificant influence exiss

NHIT Easfern rajects Private
Limeited (‘NEPPLY
_[Subsidi:lry Ceanpany}

D. List af additional related parties as per Regulation 2(0}ey) of the SER] LvlT Repulations
TPartics to the Trist

Naional Highways Infra lnvesimeat Managers Private Limited (NEILIMPL) - Invesiment lanagea (IM) of the Trust
IDB! Tristeaship Services Limited (1T8L) - Trustes of e Trust

Mational Higlwvays Authority of lestia (VHAI)- Sponsor

National Higloéays Inv[T Project Managers Private Limited (MHIPMPL)- Project Munager -

Fromofers of the Partics o the Trost specificd abaee.

Government of India (aciing ilirongh Ministry of Rasd, Transpont & Higlways (MORTH)} - Promoler of NETMWPL
TDR Bank Limited (1081 Bank) - Promoier of [TSL )

Government of Indin (acting throngh Ministry of Road, Transpon & Highwoys (MORTH)) - Promater of NEAT
Nutional Highways Awhbrity of ldia (NHAT} Prematés of NHIPRPL

Dirertors af the partics o the Trust specified nhove

Direcfors of NHITMPL

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyval

Mr. Shailenda Murain Roy

Mr. Malavir Prasad Shecran

Mr. Pradeeyp Qingh Khoroly

Mr. N.R Y.V MK, Rajesdrn Kumor

Mr. Sumil Bose

Mr. Bruve Came {Ceased 1o b Directoe wie . 07.1 1.2021)

Mr. Amil Rumas Ghosh (Ceased o be Direcwor wee £ 15.11.2025)
Mz, Kavita Sk {Ceased to be Divetar w.c.f. 08.11.2021)

Mr. Pushkar Vijay Knlkami {Appoinied as Directar wef 03.11.2023)
Mr. Dicbapratim Hajara (Appoimed s Director w.a.F 08, 1.2023)
Mr. Vinay Kumar (Appointed as Nominee Diroctorw.e.[. 27.03,2024)
Ms. Ushu Monad {Appointed as Woman Tndependen Director woe . 16.04.2024)

Directors of NHIUPPL

Mr, Suresh Kiistion Goyal

Mr. Stwilendra Niciin Roy

Mr. Mahavit Prisnd Slnna

Mr, Muralidhar Rao Bagpihn

M. MR V.V MK, Rpjendra Kurar

Direclors of NEVEL,

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal

tir, Mathew George

My, Mabavir Prassd Sharma (Appointed as Dircctor w.e.f. 15.04:2024)
Mr. Shailendra Narain Roy (Appoinied as Directar w.e £ 15.00.2024)

Directors of ITSL

Mr. Pradeep Humar Jain

Ms. Jayashré Vijay Rasade

Mr. Pradeep Kumir Malbotra
Tis. Raljinder Kair Maa!

Ms. Jayaknmar Subramonipiliai
Direetors of NEPM['L.

Mr. i‘-\.k]_lil K hoys
My, Ashish Kumaor Singh

q
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Notes fo the Consalidafed Financial Statements for tie year ended March 31, 2024

C. Trnsaciions with Relased] Pardiey doring the year

)

{ ANl amawpts in £ kakix unlesy olheowse staled)

) Year ended Year ended
Forticalars 31st Mareh 2024 31st Marck 2023
Natinual Higliwavs Tofra D
Investiment Mamgei Fec 1,350,001 1421.17
Advanec Investment Manager Fee Paid 4.93 86.06
Expense incurred by NHIMPL on bl ol NHLT 1535 3970
Expenscs incurred ea behalf of NEPPL by NHIIMFPL 2500 -
Otiwr Support Services to NHIPPL 229 312
Expemea menmed by NHIPPL for NHIIMPL Behalf 65 -
Reimbursemei of Bxpenscs - 0.07
atianat Hisliways Auiborily uf isdia {NHAI
Issue of unils 6f Trust 10 NHAI 1,09081.07 21.66.83
Inierest and olher inceme distribution £.641.92 558934
Payment relicd lo aquisition aolinteepible assets - 184,966 65
0 &M Expensts 96.03 115232
Dauble tall fees 52800 6947
Reimburseinent for Witial hngrovenent Warks 3,145.59 -
Indepeydent sogineers fees 238 36 -35.38
IDB] Frustesship Services Limiiril {ITSL)
Paymient of Truslee Fee S50 1373
Otler fees rebated? to Rawsd 1 & 2 Assels i.50 3.54
Oher Fees rebited 1o Rownd 3 Assels ("Prayect Leap®) 17.53 -
Secnred Loaa givento NHIT 000,00 -
Tilerest Expesse incored on Loan give o NHIT 4.38 -
Repaymen ol Principal Amouwn .00 -
Loun Fricessing Fees Paid 1o them 41,30 -
National Hiztwyays in VI Pra
Project Manager Fees 116830 120

Suml_lmry of Transactions with Key Managerial Persongel (KMP)

AN ninctuds in 7 dakh wiléss aibsesine sntal}

- . Year eded Year eirded
Name of KNP and Natere of ‘Trassaciion 311 Macci 2024 st March 2023
Mg, Suresh Kefshan Goyal - Rélmbursconend of Expeisey 0.79 0.3%
Mr. M.P. Shasina - Dirextor’s Silting Fees 5,00 6490
M. Shafendra Namin Roy - Direclod Sitting Fees $.00 640
Mrs, Ajaita Ser ~ Short Term Employmant Benefits - 1.84
Mr. Aran Kumar Jlig =~ Short Term Eraployment Berselits 69.15 -
Me_Ann Kusoar Jin - Réimbursement of Expenses 3.31 .
Mr. Bhanu Shanea {(CS} - Shorf Tenn Emplayment Renelits 149 19
Mr. Bliane Shama (C5) - Reimbursement of Expinscg 047 -
Ms. Aashima Agarwal-(CS)- Short Tenn Employment Benefits 6.23 -
Ms. Aashina Agarw: :I [CS)— Rejmborsement of Expenscs 058 .




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUSY
SEBI Registration Number ;- INAWITH0-210014
Notes to the Conselidated Figancial Statements for {he year ended March 31, 2024

T Clasing Balnces with Related Partics
LAl anwanis fn 3 lakh waless uthemise staled)

Pariicutars As at March 31, 2024 Asat Mk 31, 205
Matianal Hishways An Lorty :
Tssue of unils of Trust to NHAL 2,27,003.91 592283
O &M Expeises payabli TI7.98 8033
Double tall fees payable 10.19 15017
Independent Englivers Fees payable 45145 27603
Amount Payahla for Initial Improvesment Works f20.65 -
Nitteanl Highwiyy Tnfrs Ervestment Alnnagers Privatc Limited 19 L1 6935 O]
Advance TM Fee 4493 -
I Fee Payable. - [ 3H
Priyatde by NHIPPL, far Other Suppar Services 16,60 -
Experscs Payable - 048
Amett Payahle by NEPPL for cxpenses incugred on their betwlf by MHIMPL 25.00 -
iDB] Trusteeship Services Limlted
Tristee Fee Payable 1.73 1.73
Qther Fees retaied 16 Roand 3 Assels {"Projeet Leap™) 268 -
IDOT Biink Limited
Oustanding Secured Loan Amowg 9440 09 -
540,00 72,50




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI'R&giS!rq_itidn_Num ber = INMivIT/20-21/0014
Notés to the Cousolidated Financial Statements for .the_ year eénded March 31, 2024

A Disaggren ation.of revemwe ) _
Revenye recognised fmainty comprises-of revenue frum foll colkections, chiims with NHAI, caniract revenue, Set put below i the disaasregation of the
Growp's i'evel'nm-fn:m_l cantracts with custimers;

(A aonoumis in ¥ kB poless ollsrwis stwed}
For the yéar

Deseription cnded F::-:E;ga;r:;d;’;d
Mareh 31, 2024 e
Operatiag revenire
{a) Toll income ¢User Fer) from ighways 54,390,777 68.705:53
(b Intercst on delay in Toll Remjismoce - 827
Total reveaue 04,3077 &8,117.20

Thetable below presents disagerspufcd revenues fiom contracts witk customcrs based an mature, amonnt g fiming:

Types of Types of Services For the year For the year eaded
S.No. Products by by Téning: . ended March 31, 1023
Natore March 31, 2024 ) '
1 Services At the poind in 94.390.77 68,1720
time
B Assets and babilities velnied ¢o contraets with Custimeis
The following table provides information abaut receivabies, conlract assits and contrae) [inbilities frons contiact with customers:
As At As Ar
Descrigtion March 310, 3024 | Marel 30, 2002
Curfent Currend
Condrart assels
Trade receivables:
- Reccivables ender seryvice LanLEsSion AT EEnents J85.29 J30.87
Tutzl 385.20 J5.87

C. Performnacey QObligacian
Lacame Erom toll eoBeciion

The pecfanmance thligtion in secvice of iul| collection is recorded ag per rules nofified by NHAI and appraved by monagement and payment js omerally
due al (he time of providing, service

Contraef revenae . i
The perfonmance oblisation under strvive Concession npreeimends {SCAY is dug on'completion oFwork a5 per terms of SCA.

D. Disclosnre oy per Appendix « C & D of Ind A8 118 - Seryice Coilcc'ssion.Arranggmems"
All the below service -concession arrmzement have been acconated wunder intangihic asset mogel

Till year énided Mareli 31, 2624

Name of Coneessionaiie, Stard af Eiid ‘of Conicession Period of Coitression
Congegsion period  poried umdcr”  sitee die appainted
unider contession toncessioy diite
agreement, apreement (in days)
(Appyinied Date) .
National Highways (nfra Projeets Privale Limilad 16.12.2021 15.12.205) §37
Nationzl Highways Infra Projecis. Privdte Linied 29.10.2022 28102042 520

Tiw:above TOT prajects shall have Jllewing righis qliligitions i aceordaace wilth the Cancession Agreement entered inte with the respective
Government Authoritics

8. Right 10 use the Specificd Assets

b Obligations o pravide ar righis o ésoept provision of services

c. Ohligations to deliver ar.ci  receive al the End of coiivession
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42 Capital Manwagement

For the purpose of the Group's capitel maragement, capital includes issued unit- capital and oll other resérvis attelbatable to the wnit holders of the
Gioop. '

The puimery ghjective of the Group’s capital mangaenwend is to ensire iial & mailains a strong credit rating aud healthy capital ratios in order to
suppart jts business and maimise unit holder valie, ) . _
The Group mwanages its capital stnictare and makes adjustments to it in light of clianges in cconomic conditions and the requirements of the Tnancial
covenands. Ta naintain or adjust the capital strociure, the Group may adjust the dividend payement / income distribition 10 unit holders (subjest o the
provisions of SEBI InvIT Regulations which cequire distribution of wt feast 90%of the uet distributable cash fows of the Growp to unit holders). retur
capitzl fo unit holders -ar issue now units. The Gronp mnilors capifal using 2 gearing rutio, which s net debt divided by iotal capital plus el The
Gronp’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio optivnom;

(AB ey in 2 kb uoess otherwise srared)

Particohurs ’u'._t Ad at
March 31, 2024 | Macel 31, 2023
Met Dbt Components:
Long Teom Borrowings (Non-Cuatent poction) TE63.39494 2.92,158.12
Current Materities of Togg-Temm Bomowings 10,044.00 2,000.,00
Trade Payahles 4.754.89 4.UDg.40
Qther Hnancial liabilities 730543 5,244 95
Less? Cazgh dnd Cash Equiviheots (46.400.75) £21.124.08)
Less: Other Financial Assels compriging DSRA FDs (10.637.46) {9,670.8)
Nete Debt (i) 11,28.421.12 211.656.76
Capita) Componenis:
Lintit Capital 14.67.093 47 74160432
Inifial Settleiveni Amown (.10 0.1a
Oihér Eguily. {2754} .44) (2.440%.863
Total Capital (i) 14.39.552.13 7.39,134.56
Capital and Diekd il = (f + ()] A5,67.973.25 Lk 11.791.32
Gearing Ratio (i) 43,949 26.55%.

Finanein] Cuvenanis:

In order te achieve this overall objetive, the Board of Ditecturs of [nvestvient Manager, wmongst other (hings, ais 1o ensure that
cavenants atiached to the interest-hearing loans and borawings thal define capital structnre requiremends. Dreaches in
would permit the kenders to cail loaus and borrgwings. There have been ao breaches in fhe Snancial covenauis of
barrawing in the current year, No changes were made i the olbyectives, policies or processes for mannaing capital during flx ¥

2024 and Mareh 3], 2023,

il meets fnancial
meeting (he financial covenants
any interest-beariig Wans and
cars ended March 3¢,

43 Fintneind Risk dlanagement Ohjectives and Poligics
The Group i in the process of formulalion of #s risk management palicies with an objective of identification and analysis o risky Giwed by the Group, 1o
set appropeiace risk limits and coutroly, and 1o manitor risks and adheence to limils. Risk management. policies shall be reviewed regularly ie reflect
changes in marked condilions and the Group™s activities. )
The Board of Directors of Iovestinent Manager has ovenll responsibility for the estohiishment and oversight of the Group™s risk nanazeenl
(ranework. )
Trv perfloeming ifs operating, investing a Dndneing activilies, the Group-is exposed to the Credin risk, Liquidily yisk ond Matket risk.

Market Hisk

Market risk &5 the cisk that (e Faif valoé 6f future cash flows of a (nancinl instrument wil Ninctvatg because HF changzes in wiarket prices. Macket risk:
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risls, currency risk and other price risk. Pingneial instrumeats affected by market risk include Toans wnd
basrawings, {tetcivable and Payables and Investments measured at EVTPL.

The sensitivity avalyses in the faflowing sections relafe to the position as March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

‘The sensitivily analyscs lrave heen prepared on the bagis that the amount of nel debt, the ratio of fived to fuing mferest rates of the debt re al!
constant.

The foliowing assumptions have béen wade in cafenlating the sensitiviy analyscs?
The sensitivity of the relovand profit of less item is ihc eflcet of the assumed changes in respietive market risks, This iv based on 1he financial essets and
financil-liabilities held at Masch 31, 2024 & Mareh 31, 2023,




NATIONAL HICHWAYS INFRA TRUST
SEBI Registration Nuriber ;- IN/EnvIT/20-23/0014
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Foreign Cuerency Risk i

Pareign currency risk is the risk thet the fair value gr fitture eash llows oF an expasure will flucruate because of changes m foreian exchuge raics. The
Geoup- icansaces business primazily. in [ndian Rupées onty, and hence, the sensilivity of profil and_ |ass of the Group.t a possible clange in Breign
exchange rates is non-exisiont 1 én 31" March, 2024 and 315t March, 2023

Inicrest Rite Risl
Imtesest rate risk; is the risk-1hat e fuir voluc or Fature cash Tws of 3 fmaneial mstrunicn will Auctuate beeause of changes in marker interet cales,
Exposure to risk of changes in marict inlerest rates ‘generally relates primarily to loang-tesn _c'lcb'lvpbli'ganims witly loating intezesl raes,

The follawing 1able provides a break-up of the groap fixed and floating rale borcowings:
{All arnounds in 2 Lkl wnloss oibernise Silled)

, Asat Mareh 31, |- As af Mareh 31
Particulars 2974 ' 2093 ’
{Flonting Rute Borrowines 10,26,927.70 1.45,987.43
Sensitivity analysis based o averape outsta iding Dela: (AN Smovnta in.2 Lo undesy othersise stoped)

Asat March 31, | As arMareh 31,
Particulars 2024 03
Incrense or decrease in inferest iz by 25 basis ponts 256732 364.97

Price Risk
Price risk iz the risk that the fair value or Blure eash fows of a financial instreinent will Musinate beeause of chianges in markel prices-{ather thag ose
deising [vom inferest tate risk ar currency riskd,

Credit visk

Ciedit risk is the cik that counteepady will nat meet its obligafions under a financial instrument or enstamer egnlract, keading 1o a financial loss Wil
tespeet 1o credit risk arising from ather fmaneial assets of e Group, which eqmprise Baluices with banks, Trade Reccivables, Lonns and Advances aind
hrvestnents. The Group's expasure ta credit risk ariges Fom default of the Guntemay, with maximun vxposuce equal to (he earrying amount of these
inslrument, '

The corrying valone of inancial sissets represents the iaxinum credit risk, The maxinum eNpase to eredif risk was Rs. 57,481.35 Lakh gnd Rs.
3115404 Lakh as at Morcl 31, 2034 and March 31, 2023 respectively, being thetola currying vitlue of Trade recelvables, lnvesinments, Balarces with
bank, bank deposits ard ofhier foancial assets. '

Liyuighty Risk

Lieeridity risk is tlse risk that an vaiity will cncouneer difficufty in mecting obligntions associaied with fiancial Gabitities that are scitfed by delivering
cash or another financhl assais.

The Group is exposed ta Tiguidity risk duc 1o bank borrowings and frade and other payables,

The Group measures risk by fonseasting cash flows.

Tlie Groups approwh & managies {ghidity i to ensure, a5 fir ps possitle, that it wilf alvways b sy iftelen linatidity fo meer its liabilitics when due
wilhaut incurring iaccepiatile kosses or risking daminge 1o the Group's reputation. The Group ensures tiat it has suificient fimds i meel expectad
operationad expenses, servicing of finanein! obligations,

ln additian, processes and policios relufed to such rislc iz overseen by sendnr nmobgement, dManagement monitors the Growp's nel Equidity positios
through rodling forccast on the basis of cipected cash floves,
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The tahfe below summarises fhe matiriky profile of the gronp's fmanciaf liabilitjes baged ol conlractual und iscaunted paymenis,

(Al Anuhmis in 314 unless geherwise stated)

AS 1t 31032024 ﬁ:}:ﬂ";“ <1 ¥r, 13 Yis, 3 Yrs.

Term Loae 029,309 85 10,054.00 76.861.00 9.87.893 85
Non-Conwertible Debentyres 1.48.539.00 - - 1.48.639.09
Trade Payables ;754,00 L7519 - z

Qther Financizl Liabilities 2.303.43 7305 43 - -

Total £ ,55,509.36 22,114.43 26,862.00 1,36,532.9.4]
As af 31-03:2023 &:L:’::’g <l Yr, 1-3 ¥irs, >3 Yrs.

Tenm Loan 14537013 Z.000.00 5,000 040 1.37.570.13 [
Non-Converiible Debentures 14858820 - - 1,483,538 20
Trade Payables. 400840 4,003 40 . -]
Citlier Fimancigl Liabifities 5.284.95 5,984.95 - -

Tofni 3.03,451.67 11,293,346 004,00 2.86,158.33

44 Pisclosure Pursuzat 10 IND AS 36 "Impairaent of Assors”
Based o impaimicat testing done which invalves review of the fumte disconaied cash [l of the subsidiary, the recaverable amount is higher 1kan the
casmying amount of the investinent made in (fie subsidiary andl accordingly, no pravision (o impairment is required to be recognised i the hooks ay, on
ihe repocting date. In case of goadwill based on impainment testing racovernbk wmount is higlwr then (he cascying valie a5 on the feparting date, hence
ne provision lor impainment & requined fo be recdaiised in the boaks as on repariing dale.

45 Financinl Instrument by Criegory
(AN amontts in 2 lakh unles atherwise siated)

As ai 3xt Maieh, 224 AS 8t 3151 Marek, 2023

Particulars . Al . . Ar o

Amortized Cosi FIVPL At EVOCI Amuriizéd Cosi FIVIL ALFVOC]
Assels:
Tuade Reosivables 345,20 -. - 350.47 . .
Casly il Cushy Equivalonis 16,490,78 - - ar4z24.08 - .
Bank Baiances Otlwer than 51798 } _ ) B i
Cash & Cash Equivafents "
Onher Einancial Assets 10,142 40 - - 2.,679.09 - .
Total 5744135 - - JEIM.04 - -
Liabilities:
Binrowings 1L13,448.04 - - 29415833 - -
Trade Pagables 4,754.00 - - 4.008.40 - .
Qllier Findneial Liobititics 730543 - - 5.284.95 - -
“Total 11,845,509 36 - - I3 450.67 - .

Befawlis and Iwcaches

Thiere are-no defgults during the year with respect fo repayment of pringipul and paymend o bneres! and no brepees aFthe s and condifions ol the
borrovwings.

Thiere are no bieaghes during the year which pecmitted lender ba demand aceekeraicd Paymenl.

SOUMGI D
ﬂ’ N
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#¢ Falr Values of Assets and Liabilities :

The carrying amaunt of alf Fnoncial assets and labilitics appenring in the financia) stateitents & vehisanable approximation af fair values. Fairvalug of
the finaiicial assets and liatiiliLies & 1e smonnt al whieh fic insCrument could be exchanged in a current transaclipy etveeen willing parties, ofier thay

in a foreed or Kquidation sake

The Gmui: 18 required {0 present the Statement of total assety at fair value gnd Statement of 1otal reiurns at faie value as per SEB( Cirenlar W,

CIRTMDIDF/ 147016 dited Octobes 20, 2086 a5 a pant of these financial statements - Refer Statement of Ned assets a1 fajr value angd Stalemen| of
Tolal-Rewrns at B value

Fair Valie Hicrarchy

The Group s the tallowing Iikvarely for-fair valye measnrenient of the-Group's finanvid assets and liabifities:

Level | - Quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicnl-assets or Ipbititics,

Level 2 — Inpuits ather itvan quoted prices inchided within Level |. thit are obscrvible for the asse or liability, either dircetly {ie. as prives) or induectiy
(., derived from prices),

Level 3 < Tuputs fur the assets or (abifiies that are mot based on abservablc market data (unobservable npms).

Fatr value of finnueind asseis aud financkxl Fiabililtes that ire not neeasttred at Lair valive (hut fyir vahe disclosures are required)
A 2rspaueds En 7 b wdoss ofhereise stated )
Cm-r_vigg_\?nlnc Fair Vafne
Fiirticutbars As i As at As ar As at
st March, 31 March, 7023 3ist Mareh, 2024 3lst March, 2023

Financial Asaets at Antordized Coge:

Trade Reccivahkes 385.20 330.87 385.2¢ 33087
Cash and Cash Equivalents 46 400,78 2,124.08 46,400.78 21.124.08
Bank Balances Qiher than

Cash & Cash Equivalens iz ) 512.98 )
Loans & Advances - - - -
Othier Finaneial Assas 10.152.40 §.679.09 10,182.40 %.670.09
Fatal XTA81.35 AL 154,04 57TABI 3% 30540
Finanein| Liabilisics af Amortized Cogt:

Barmgwings* 11,73, 448,94 2,94,158.31 L1,73,248.94 2,04 158,33
Trade Paynbies 4,754.99 4 008 A1} 4.754 09 4,008.4iy
Other Financial Linbilitics 130543 3.284.95 7.305.43 328405
Total 1E.85,509.34 3.03.451,67 1155,500.3¢ 30345167

The carrying value of fisancial sssets ad other financial linkilitics nrsasured at amartised cost are constdered to he same a3 hekr Fair valyes burzely due
0 their shart e natare.

*The carryiny vahn: of borrowines approximales the fiir value a3 the instruments arg at prevailing macked rate
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Statemeat af Confingent Liﬂbiliﬁes’Confillgenl-als_sgls
(AL puuonuds im 7 Lakly WRlvss ollunge staledy

A!ﬂ' As af
Pariitnlzrs March 34, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cantingent Linbilifics -
Slamp Duty ori Concession sgreenent on Belgous Kagal
Project {eefer note (a) below) 6,990,004 -
Comparate Guaramen issued iy favaur of Semior Lenders &
Debenture Trsutee of the Trust (refer note [c) ) 4,37, 700.00 3.50.000,00

Coutingent Agyeis

Stamp Duiy én Concession aprrement on Belgnum Kapal
Project (refer note (b betow ) 6,990.00 -

8) Stamip Dhely on Cancession Agresment on Belpaom Kagat Projecr - The group hng receivd notice from Otfiee of Depuly Regisicar of Stamps,
Government of Kanwtaka. As per ihis notice additional starnp duty of Rs 69.90 crore lns beeg imposed on the group for the concession agreement enrcred
inte for Belpaym-Eagal road,

Sramp legislzlion in ceriain-states {ineliding, Foarmmnka) alse specities that copy of e mgin document in respect of any prapedy, or any business within (e
stale a0 needs w be stomped with arigimal amow of samp duty, if the original documien tn3 nol bean stamped with fulf Amonal of the stamp duty
applicable for piace of business,

As regards to the applicability of samp duty on Concession Agreement, it may please be- npted that there is 1o specific enlry i respeot of fhe concession
agreement. Such agreemends are stamped under (he residugey calegory of e agreementz and a 1omingl amnl wag paid on s ggreements, We 3 given
to undersiand that the Karnatika Siale Goyt, hins piven instructions to procitre copies of licence fAgreement-of 1ol celleeling agensies in respect of ropds
pagsing through stote of Kanuiats, We have further been issued o ngiice for negvery of shorltik in slawp duly,

Vorious jodicisl pranduemens by various high courts lave divergend views ang the issue iy debarble and thene s no clarity en the same.

The group is contesting this imposition of defici samp duly on concession agreement notice with Government of Kamaiaka, We are hlso in et of
copies of fetters sent by NIHAT t the &ammtales State Govt clarifyieg the issuc. The grotp is in e process of Hing injuction willy the Dharwand benétr of
Karnataka High Conrt,

b) Cinttingeng Axspts

Stanp Dufy on Concession agreenvent on Belgamm Kagal Projert- In (he event of the slamp duty becoming payabie, it shail be riimbiesed by NIAI ps
conlirmed by thom vide Jetier No. NI{M!’F&AIMVITE{}Zl~23.|'CLFN_GST&SD{E—IﬂGS?D) daled 28,09.202'1. Since no pravision has been recagrised in
the books with sespect 1o stunp iy, ibe reimbursesont has nol been necopnived ax an fssey considering the guidance i Ind AS 17, .

€] Corporale Guarantees

317 Morch 2004 Rs4,37,700.00 Lakh
31™ Murch 2023 Rs 3,50000.00 Lakh

The Project SPY company (NHITPL) has issned Corporate Gusenmices anounting to Rs. 2,000 Crore or secured ulaligations an 14.03.2022 wy Rs 877
Crore or securexd obligarions on DB.0L. 2024 in, fvour of Senior Lendeis, Bs. L300 Crate or secured obligations o 20,10.2022 in favour of Bebenlnre
Trusiee of the Teustfor the benclit gf NCD holder.

“The group dering previous yesr 1us caried aut a fair valuuion of Compdrale Guamiees referred abave from an independent extenal valuer. Nasis such

valualion repont and mimagemend estimale, fair vaiue of cvporale glrrniee is estivtated o be Nil

Fiaaweial Infarmation ef Fnvestm ent hlkager
The susmvary financials of Invesingen; Marmger are nol disclosed silongwyith these fnaneials a5 its netwosth is not materially evded:

T Code on Socil Scamity. 202 ¢Code) relating to cimployee benefits during emphoynienl and post-employment benelily reeeived Prosidential Assent in
September2020. The Code s been published In the Gazette of lodin, Hawever, the date on whieh he Cade will come info effeet has ot been nolified The
Group will assess Hie impacy.of th Cade when it comes into effect und will recard any reluted impact in fhe period the Code becomes effective,

Withholding Tok. i biliey-for inteery Acerucd basi not due on non sonvertilde debentmres
The Trust bns tssued publicly [isied non empvertibie chenhires” ("NCDs") with intzrest peyxbie on semi-anmial basis, (nterest on these- NCDs was dug for
paymene on 5 Anril 2022 and For ghe pupose of payraent of ierest, record date was 16 April 2024 and debenture-fwldess cxisting ns on 10 Apfil 2004 npe.
cntitled to the coipon interest Teust las recosded Jeabdlity of istevest acerued 1l 3 bst Mareli 2024 and tire is:70 eredit in Sivour of any payee at the time of
creating such proviston as cntitled payee will b idenlifiable g5 on record date i, o 100April 2003,

£
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Distribuiton made (AR anwonnls n 7 bakluswbeis otlieryise skafed)
. For the yeur ended For the year caded

Farticubyrsy Marcl 31, 20247 Marel( 31, 2023.
Iwcrest 4224045 R985.30
Return-of capilal - -
Divicend - .
Oiber income ot the Trust &2.92 240,39
Tofal 4281338 ' 023578

“The disicibution refates jo the distritwdions during the fmaicial year aloig witly the distribulion relaied o the lasl quarier ot FY 2022-23 i does nan

wchide the distribution relating to the period Fabruary 07, 2024 to March 31, 2024 which Will be paid afler March 31, 2024, The distribulions by e Trst
io.jls unithalders arz based on the Net Ditiibatable Cash Flaws of the Trast vader the SEBT TvIT Regulations,

Deiaily of Projeet Managément Feées o Investniene Mau_agumeut Fees

Detils-of fees paid 1o projeet wanager and investiment manager as required pussmm to SEBI Circular N, CIRMEMDFA 27501 6, dated 29 Neaveulr
20185 are. 25 undey:

Preject Fanagenent Feos:
The profect ryanager Notional Highways InVIT Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMPL.') 1or NHIPPL (Rt & R2 aszels) and is endithed to fyad fees
kasod on the Project Iiplementuisn and Management Agrecrncnt (PIMA) signed by bt the parties dated 300: March 2021 75 amended o Sik March
2024 NHIPNIPL is alsg Project Marsger for NEPPY, (R3 Agsuls) wie, F tsi April 2024 a5 per deed of pdlwerence signed on Tth Manch 2024,

lnvesteat Maggement Feo:

1) The Investmein Mangger's fes o et agrevinent duted 218 Oclober 2000 wil initially be Bs. 1,100 1akh (Rupces Eleven Hundra Lakis) per s,

i} The Investmend Management Agreement i3 revised and the fee with effict from 13y April 2023 hag been agreed a1 Rs ) 800 Lakhg \Rupees Exphtecn
hundred lakhs) far ihe Fiomuial Year 3033-24

i} The nageiment fee sel o in parigraph (i) abbre shall he subjeet to evealition.on 14 anmel Basis ot the rate of 109 of (he mangement fee for gz
previous yenr

v} Any applicabde faxes, cess o charges, ag the case iy ke, shail be in addiiton 1o (he nmagemasd fee and shalf be payabie by Mational Highvays inira
Trust (NHIT) to'the Investinerd Mlamger (NHIIMPL) )

Payment ef theguency: Payment of manngement fee slall be maile by Natienal Higlways Mnfig Trust (NHIT) fer 1he Invesment Marsiger (MHIIMIEL) iy
advawg on a Quiteterly basis ab tie beginning of coch quarter of o finaneiyl year.

Provision fur Major Mainieaanee )
The group has a.contmetu ablizalion lo mainlain the performapce stindards of the Project Highways ivrespect oFridipg gualily and alljed WMEIIures a8 per
e performiance poramciers stipaluted padec the respective Concession Agreemends: Cost of sueh. abligation s memsyred ot iy tiest ‘estinuie of the

oul using 'Dl'sc-uuﬁtm Cusl Flows imeilspd vith the disgpum rule faken as the cigh-ltee inlerest-rlg ie. the discnuming rate vsed for Ariving ot the Jreser

valti far MMR provisions i Bovernient:bond tate af 30 years jor projects aceuirsd in firs phase aud 20 years for prujecls aequired in seeond phase, The
group has recagnised finance cost on mujor maiienapce praviston for the year emded Maopch 31, 2024 amounting to Rs, 47079 Lokl (BY. Rs 295

loklg). The provision far MajorMainkeimnee Obligation pg at March 31, 2024 huy been recognised in the financial statements af Rs 844305 Cakhsip. 7,

As jer the etncassion agresment between NHIPPL and NHAL, the cancessionaire i obfigaled 10 underuke initial improvemeny works as specified in

Schiedite B including étriain {mprovement warks required initinlly and then 10 extend rquiired répairs mainlranee, regular vpkeep of ihe TPraject Highway,
These obliguiions will require. outilyw of ceanamic resourzes ang will b Relftlied aver the perfod of time. Therefore: a provision shail be recopised and

meastred as per Ind AS 37 for mﬁu*aeiml_.ubll'gqh'uiis toward the Fair Value of ffure npgrie services and. coresporidingly ihe group shell capitalizg fie

present value of Provision for opgrade sarviees 1o thie intangible asset a1 the (fme ofacquisifipn:

At time of acquisition of SPV thiere wag uncertaindy with raspeet fo.the casi estimades for the initial imipravement: work ta be dotie and the group il in
diseusgion with NHAI for de-seopins ol vérnin work, Furtier, as'per (nd g 38, an ianpitde assel-can be recoptiised if, and only, if i cost of I asset cap -

-be meagured reliably,

Since the cast for initia) impravement wark wis not aseériaigble until 15t Dec 2073 (under Ind-AS 38) becayse of discimsigii aeound de-scopisie of varigus
wetks, na yeliable estimates coold i made far the Tair Valye-of I said scope, This was funther substantiated with: the technieal note preparcd by ife
technical depadtmnt basis their diseyssion ard meelings with NIZAL and varipus weiidors, Cansidering thar the managcnienl- s now aseértined i cogs
based om contracys awnrded and - sign off received frain the EMIC, {estinaled as required undef Ing A5 38) bas now | bissed an discussinns will iis
lechpical corsultonts, capitylisad \he injtig- impieveen| “worls amodinting o Rs, 1:21,237.32 Lakhs (Undiscoumted Yalue) oix 151 Dec 2013;
Furitier the group hag alsa recpgnised plovigien far, Bitial iiprovement works osper Ind AS 37 amouatipg 1o Rs; 1,11,993.43 Lgkhs (Present )7
December 2023 with cortesponding ipict i Statement of FrofiL and Lass. amounting {o Rs. 1174.63 Laiché and Hs 239683 Lokl
amaortization of injtial improvemen work and winvinding of interest on provigion of Sitial impravenient respectively,

Aohwa

Actual jnitia! j»

e up to Mafich 2024 is-Rs. 14,346.87 Lakts,
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35 Statement al Cymmitenfs

(Al amounis in: 2 Jokly iindigs olherwise staced)

‘ As af Asaf

Particolars March 31, 2024 March 31, 202
Estimated axount.of contmels EEmaining t6 be execyted on

capital aceount and not peovided far 4969313 -
Toral TR =

Segmenl Regoriing

Salient aspects of the Taliing Concession Arrangement

Thi Project SPV (WHIFPL} hs-eitered ina five COMLLgSion agreentenils with National Higlhwny Aulhonty of Indiz C'NHAT™ on March 3, 3021 fur
Tolling, Managemenl, Mainienwnce and Trangfer of five tall road projects for a Periad of 3 yenes oo he Appointed Date. The Appainted Diie by
commenced an 16, 12,2021 . Tie toll ronds covered urder fie concession agreement 95 Todbasys:

- Palonpur’ Khemana — Abn Road Project {from ki 5044000 to ki, SAGHO0) of NH-17, cOnMcling the stites of Gujrat and Rajasthan

- AbuRoad- Swaroapganj Peoject (irom km G46+H00 10 kin iS’J'?+OQI]) of NFI27 | in tlje state of Rejosthan

~  Maharashirn Kamatika Botder (Kagal) - Belgum Project (from km §46+000 1 iy ETTHIN of NR-45, carkiecting the siatey of Kamatks ind
Nlalacadira

- Chilocgarh- Kota & Chitoegarh Projecy {Fom kit BHFO20 p Lyn HOS24H120) of WH-27 iq the stude of Rafasthun

+  Kolhkala Bypass- Kirmool Higlway Project (iiam ki L35+A69 10 km 21 1-H0G) of NH-44 - conngzting the staes of Telongana and Andlwa Prdesh

In previous Finnogial year, Project SPV (NHIPEL) enered into three pew coikesgion agrecments with Naijom| Highway Auihority of hadiq ("NHAFY on
Sepleivber 26, 2027 for Tuiling._Mumgmnml, Mainlenance and Transfer 6 three tol! road prajeets for o perind of 3¢ vears from 1be Appoimied Dale The
Appoinied Date has sommenced oo 29, 10.2022. T toll ronds avverad wader the concessfon uercenenl as foliows:

- Agra bypass Section (from knt 0.0 1o o 32.800) of NH-12 i the s1ale of Yitar Pradesy
- Barkh-.*df—Wadnur—Depd!mi—Kzlnpw Sectri ¢From kn 36,600 fo R 1750000 of NT{-f¢ in the state of Moharasistra
- Shivpuri— Mansi Section from km 1305 A7 to km 1380.387) of WH-27 in the stales of Madhya Pradesk and Utiar Prafegly,

The pruject SPYV {NHIPPL) is reguired 10 apemte and nwintain fhe Project/ Project Facilities in aceordance with the provigiow of the Agreemend, Applicable
Lawa and Applicable permis. .

Tha Projet SPY (NEPPLhas entered (nta seven concession agreemeits with Natiotad Hiphway Autkarity of Indiz "NHAE?) far Tolting, Munagemest,
Maintenance and Transier of seven ll road projects fora period of 20 years frtim the Apnaimed Daje. The Appomted Date hus commenced an §1,04.202.¢
ad therefare the revenne ang expenses of hese seven rosd precds shall be rezognised from exy fimpcial year, The toll rands cavered sinder the eonoession
ngreciment ace a5 follows;

Chiclw - Klaragpur Projeot ; Chiclaa — I{lmm_gpur Section of WH 49 vvith a 1ol length af 56,12 ke, in (e slate of West Beigal,

Rerws ~Labhnadon Profect : Rewa - Kagi — Jabatnr ~ Laklwiadan scetion of NH 30 and NH-34 wiil 3 Iotat fength of 306.34 kms, in the ate of Madima
Prachkesh;

Korhugao - Kajjtur Project ; Kachugaoi - Rakbaidubi Bys Junction  Kaljhar section of N 27 with  total langih 01 14.17 kms, in the state of Asam

-Kaljhar — Patacharkuchi Projet - Kaljlar - Patcharkuchi section of NH 37 witl Motal dength of 27,30 kms, in the stase of Assam?

Laithoadon - hahagon (Mohgaom) ~ Khawast « Lalthoodan — Mahagzaen {(Maligaon) — Khawasa seclion 0f NH 44 with a rota[ length of (7,35 ks, I
thic stnte of Madiipg Pradesh

-Orai - Barah Project : Orpi - Baraly section of NH 27 with a wial Jength of 62.99 ks, & e srate of Liitar Pradesty, and

=~Chitmdurgn Bypass ~ Hybli Project! Kamaiaka Project : €hitradurga Bypass — Chitratfurga - Davanagere — Haveri — Hubli seetion of M3 48 wriih g tokal
fength of 21447 kuvs, in the state of Kanmtaka.

The Group acquired rights dor Tolling, Management and Mamtenaine’ of the schen tolf rods wnder the concession agreement signed. with WAL for
considerdlion of TINR. 15.65,983.13 Lakhs , and the same heve been eeeognized in curery year financial statoments o5 Capital Advaiiee jp NHAI i
appointed daie for the Project is we f 91.04,2004,

The Growp is Fequiced {0 operate-cexd maimain the Project! Project Pacililics in accardare with the Provision of e Coicessian Agreement, Appii
Linws ad Applicable peonits.
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58 Material Developimnents

The: Trust has invested the amount of R, 240,610 Lakh i the Egtilly share erpital of the NHI? Easiorn Projects Private Limiled {Fraject 8PV's - ) dirring
the yeor. NEPPL geqilired rights for Talling, Managemant gnd Maindesznce of the seven ol roads under fle cONCesSion agreemesit signed with NHAT for
censidemiion of INR 15,69,984.18 Lakhs , Appofated date for the Peojeet is wee.f 01,04.2004,

59 Tiwe Board of Divectors of il tavestmerd Marager has deelared d istribukion for January 2024 of Rs. D63} per wnit which comprises of Rs. 9,606 por upit gs
ihterest and Rs; .02 per unif 15 othe? jicorag on suephus fimds at the Trust level i their mecting hel on 4ih March, 2024, Funiher, the Bonrg of Dirvetors
af the lavesiiient Manager has declared digtritiufion for February 2024 & Magchy 2023 of Rs, D;7|§I5 perunit which comprises of R, 0587 per unit as

The Board of Dircerors of the lnvestmend Mariager s declared dislriburiun for Quarier 1 of FY 2023-24 of Rs. 1.657 per unit which comprises of Rs,
1.693 pex unit as inerest-and Re. 0,007 per unil as gther income-on surplus finds-an te Tros lovel it their meeting held on 24 February, 2024,

The Buard, of Directors of (he ivestment Moanager bod daclarcy disribudion for Quarier 2 of Fy 2023-M of Rs. 1.816 per unit which camprises of Rs.
L7 per omit as inteeest and Rs. 0042 per umit as giher income on surpldus Tiyds ot e Trast Tevol in {heir meeling held an 8th November, 2023 and iy
Baard of Dircetors of the: fvvestmin Mamager had declared disuibation For Quarier 1 of FY 2023.24 9P Rs. 1554 per unit sehich compriscs of Rs, 1742 per
unit as interest ond Rs, 0012 per unit us oflser incame on surplus funds arihe Tros bevel T theéir meeding held on £11 Augngt, 2003,

€0 Financiat Ratios 1s-on Marcl 51, 2024 ne MErrchi 31, 2023

§. No. Particubics As gt As.nt
) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Assel mtla .
- o
! {Curent Assats Current LiahilifyY 04 Z.00
Debi- Equity ratio .
- 3
- {Dchilf Eguifty) vz 044
3 Delt service coverage rtia 154 519
{Net Operating Cosh Gows Deld Serviee Obligution) o )
Indoyest service covernge ratio
4 &
LEBIT/Finanéa Cos() L84 2_3]
5 Networth (Viit Capitai + Otber Equity) 14.39,552.13 7.30.134.56 |
& Assét Céawr Rahg 0 kM)
) Relurnon Byuity (ROE ratig) s -
7 {Net Prolit/ Equity) 270% 3181%
§ Tolat Dt to lota] assots 043 s
) Net profit ofter (ax 1 41970 25 580,57
10 Om@ﬂiq;';edmmabje prefirence slxes {quantity and vilpe) : - i
11 Capital cederfintion reierveidebontine redemplion reseri - . -
12 Long tén, debr 1o working capiial {27.60) 21 .67
i3 Eanting per unit 3900 ER|
14 Eveplary iamaver mitio NA N4,
|5 Trude reecivable (urnoyer ratip 24504 195 23]
16 Trde finyilble limover mrio .46 353
17 Currod liability st 0.3 0.04;
18 Bed delt to aovguid recefvabic ratio - N
MNet Capited isnover ratio _
19 (Totaldncemé / Net Working Capital) 12.30) 516
g Opérating nyargin % ¥7.54% .39%
Nel piol aiter {ax ritig . ]
2 : 192
: (Net prafit/ Total Income) 30.19% J6.65%
Return on capitat emplayed ratia
2 {(Net Profirbefare Tax plus Fince Coaty (Equily + Debi)) 9% IN%
Retury o jivesment N .
23 (Tazomeon Investuacnt / Avern i Cost of Tnvestiment) 81 1217
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61 Adsets pledgedt s seviwity

02

63

i

Uneler security provisians for external lenders, the shares of SPVs e, NHIPPL & NEDRL. leld by NHIT (Trust) are pledged 1o external lendersto Truse
Whercas the toans provided by Trust to NHIPPL & NEPFL are assigned 1o the extenal leiiders, Also it inay be noled it hc shares are nat pkdged 1o
debeniwe holdecs. The <yl amounrs of oxsets Pledged ns secutity for ciiprent an ney eorrend bormgwings ang ;

Particulars As at 31xt Marck 2024 Asat 31st March 1923
Curvenr

Financial assefs

First Charge .

Trade recaivables : 38520 150.87
Cashv-and cosly cquivalents 46,4001, 78 21134.08
Ouber Tuiia) assces 517,52 06.65
Now Fisnacial asseis.

First Charge

Oiher-ciirent, asseis 2.303.89 153,06
Total current asseis Pledized az séeurity 49,607.39 A 5.85

Non Curreat

Drher financinl pssety 10,177.36 941244
Non -current tax assets {Nei) 234 1246
Tatal nen current nssets pledged as sequrity 10,2002 9.640.50
Total asscts pledped uy seearily 59.807.63 J2.30.06

Key sourees of estinkation

The preparation af Consolidaded francial stuloments in canformity with [nd AS fequires the Group o myakes estithates and assomplions fhat affect (1%
reporied zmeunts of fncome. ang eipemses of the period, the: reported balanees of nssetg and liabilitics and tw: distiosures reluting 1o cardingent liobitigas ag
of the dave of the fogncial susanents, The estimates and wlerlying. assunplions aee reviewed on an ongoing bosis. Revisigns 1
include ahawance for doubtut lous fother receivables, fait vl medsurement gre, Difference. iTany, between tye
e periad in which the results are lnown,

o aceoumnling eslipgies
wetual resulls and estigaies is reconnised

Uisclosave pursuaat iv Ta AS 13 "Borrowiig Cosig”
Borrowing cost eapitalised during she year Rs. Nl [March 31, 2023 - Ry il

Debault amd hreaches

There are oo defaulis during he year willy FESpeCt b repaymenm of principal yed Faymetit of interest and wo bronehes of the lerms and conditions of 1he
borrowings. There are no bregelics during the year which permitted fender 1o denkund apcelenalig payment,
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NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST
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Notes to the Consolidated Finsnicial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional regilitory information required by Schisdwle HI

Detatls of benawi property ket

Na proecedings have becn iniligied on or & pending asainst the: group fiir halding benamj Property under the Benami Transaztions {Prohibiiion) Ad, 1988
{350t 1988) and Rules made thereunder,

Witfm) defaofrer

“The group i3 not declared wilfy defawlter by any bank or finaneial istitytion or povenuhend or any sovenment aulliorify.

Compliance with pumber of layers of conepanics

The group hag complied willy i numiber of Inyers prasecibed under ihe Companies Act, 2013

Undisclosed iiecome

There: i 0o ficoine sucramdered or disclosved ag meame during the cuirrent op Previons year in the g assessmenls nnder the lncome Tix Acl, 1981, dut s
not been recorded iy the baoks of aconmn, ’

The greup have nol received o fund fram any person(s) or entily{ics), incleding forign emities (Funding Porly} with the undersianging Cohellur peconed
in writing or othenviee) thar s Teost shall

(a) divecily or indicecily |eisd or invest in ather persung or entilies idenlified in Ady manner whalsocver by or on bebpdf of the Funding Farly (UNimalc
Berieficiries) or

{b) provide any guaraice, seeufily or the ke on bebalf of the Ultimate Bewefitiarics

The group have not advance or loaned o invesied {either from borrowed fimd ac shage peamitnm or any ciher sonsce or kind of fund) by the SOMpPANY 0 o7 iy
nity person(s) or cutity fies), including foceign entitics (Fanding Party) with the tiaderstunding (vlwther recorded I writing or odherwise) that the Toust shal):

() directly or inlirectly Iénd or nvest i gther persons or cmities identifi=d in Y manker whotsoever by or gn behalf of e enmpany (Uhimgite
Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on bebalFof the Ullimate Benefieiarics

Details of crypto curveney or virual enrrency

The group Tas rol teded or invested in SIYPIO currency o virwel eucrensy during the corront Or previous year.

Valuatian of Properiy, plant qed equipincnt aod intangible nsset

The proup hay not revalued jis property, plant 2nd equipmer or inlangfhle assets or bath during the eweyene or proviays year,

The Group dit not have angy longrtenn sontracts includding derivativee conimet for which there were any material Torescealile logses,
Relatlonslip with struck off companies,

Thi: graup does nid have Aty fratraclians witl e companies strrck off under Section 248 of companies Act 2015 and therafare no Forther disclpgye
required therewnder,

Comparatives Rguees lewe been reckisificd/egrouped wherever neccesany 1o conlinn 10 the earreni peried classification,

For AR. & Cop.
Clartered Accounlants
Finn Registration s, 002744C

Fur and a bebalf Board of the Nasionai Highwirys .
Infrk nvesiment Maniagers Private Léusited (Bvestment
Managzer of Mrtiongt Higbwayy Infea Teusy)

Ji¥~
CA Mohd., AziinWosari Mahavie Parsad Sivmg
Pactaer - DEre:ctpr
M.NG.S_I 1623 . BIN: 02721580 DIN7 83158415

Date Mathew Goorge
Flage : New Delpi Chiief Firmicial Oifeer
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